DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 049 817

24

PS 004 512

AUTHOR TITLE Feldman, Ronald, Comp.; Coopersmith, Stanley, Comp. A Resource and Feference Bibliography in Early Childhood Education and Developmental Psychology:

The Affective Domain.

INSTITUTION

California Univ., Davis.

SPONS AGENCY

Office of Education (DHEW), Washington, D.C. Bureau

cf Research.

BUREAU NO

BR-6-2867

PUE CATE

CEC-1-7-062867-3053

NOTE

155p.

71

EDRS PRICE

EDRS Frice MF-\$0.65 HC-\$6.58

DESCRIPTORS

*Affective Behavior, Aggression, *Bibliographies, *Child Development, Creativity, *Early Childhood,

Individual Development, Motivation, Social

Develorment

AESTRACT

This bibliography provides a comprehensive listing of the reference literature in early childhood (ages 2-9) psychology and education dealing with the affective domain. Categories such as achievement mctivation; aggression; anger and frustration; character and mcral development; creativity; games; and social behavior are included. One cf the 27 sections lists general references in the field of education and child development and includes books, anthologies, and papers. (References and material relevant to the cognitive domain will appear in a separate report.) The biblicgraphy was prepared for use by both the practitioner and the researcher and includes nontechnical treatments of subjects as well as major research articles. Articles published within the past ten years (1960-1969), and especially within the past five years (1965-1969), are emphasized. Four different types of articles are entered for each topic: theoretical treatments; specific research findings; teacher practices; and curricular material. A code identifies listings of particular use to persons involved in teaching or curriculum design, and listings which contain a review of the literature. Availability information is also given. (Author/NH)



PS 004512

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.
EDUCATION & WELFARE
OFFICE OF EDUCATION
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN REPRODUCED EXACTLY AS RECEIVED FROM
THE PERSON OR ORGANIZATION ORIGMATING IT POINTS OF VIEW OR ORIN INATING IT. POINTS OF VIEW OR OPIN-IONS STATED DO NOT NECESSARILY REPRESENT OFFICIAL OFFICE OF EDU-CATION POSITION OR POLICY.

ED049817

A Resource and Reference Bibliography in Early

Childhood Education and Developemental Psychology:

BR-6-2867 PA-24

The Affective Domain

Prepared by Ronald Feldman and Stanley Coopersmith University of California, Davis.

1 Fublished under a grant from Research for Better Schools, Inc. a private non-profit corporation supported in part as a regional educational laboratory by funds from the United States Office of Education, Department of Health, Education and Welfare. The materials and views presented in this publication do not necessarily reflect the position or policy of the Office of Education and no official endorsement by the Office of Education should be inferred.

We acknowledge the cheerful collaboration, dedication and cooperation of: Vivian Jacobson, Coventry Svane, Rick Crandall and Marilee Kindell. We thank Carl Kamm for his conscientous, scrupulous assistance in locating and transcribing appropriate entries. We also acknowledge the efforts and support of Ronald Parker and James Edmondsen.





Resource and Research Bibliography in Early Childhood

Education and Developmental Psychology: The Affective Domain

The reference literature in early childhood (ages 2-9) psychology and education can readily be classified into one of two broadly defined domains, the affective and the cognitive. The affective domain includes topics dealing with interpersonal, emotional, motivational or personality-trait orientations. References in the affective domain extend across both education and psychology and include such categories as achievement motivation; aggression, anger and frustration; character and moral development; creativity; games; and social behavior. It is this affective domain and the specific topics within it that we survey in this bibliography. The cognitive domain deals with such topics as intelligence, language, the mechanisms of the perceptual and thought process and the teaching and learning of reading, writing and mathematical skills. References and materials relevant to the cognitive domain are not included in this bibliography but are being included in a separately prepared report.

We should note at the outset this bibliography is intended to be comprehensive but not exhaustive of the literature on the affective domain. For one thing it is our hope that this bibliography will be a resource to the teacher who is interested in a specific topic as well as to the researcher who wishes to examine the specific findings on a given topic. To satisfy both the practitioner and researcher we have included major research articles on a topic with particular attention to review articles, and at the same time included some nontechnical treatments on that subject. Another basis for selective rather than total summary is the consideration that sheer bulk often makes a bibliography difficult to use. The reader is faced with a deluge of articles and little basis on which to select. We have exercised our selective judgment, omitted some topics, e.g., sex typing, child psychoses, and tried



to provide representative articles of quality work. We should also note that we have emphasized articles published within the past ten years (1960-1969), and even more heavily articles published in the last five years (1965-1969). These articles generally contain references and summaries to older work and bring the reader to the findings and treatments receiving current major emphasis. Persons who wish to read further will find further references in the review articles and general references. Another basis for restriction was that the literature was particularly directed towards early childhood, i.e., the ages of 2-9. While we occasionally went below and above those ages where the treatment gave important perspective the vast majority of the articles are limited to the early child age range. A final and important consideration in using this bibliography is that we have attempted to include four different types of articles in each topic. These are theoretical treatments, specific research findings, teacher practices and curricular materials. For that reason we hope that the bibliography will be of use to teachers of young children, theorists, investigators, college teachers and educators involved in interrelating theory, research and practice.

To expedite the usefulness of this bibliography we have added some letter codes before the listing. Listings with the letter "e" in their left margin are particularly well suited for persons involved in teaching young children or in curriculum design. Listings with the symbol "r" in that same position contain a review of the literature on that particular topic. Some of the references refer to ERIC catalogue listing numbers. For those unfamiliar with ERIC we should note that ERIC is an acronym for "Educational Resources Information Center." This Center is an agency of the Bureau of Research of the Office of Education. ERIC publishes a "monthly abstract journal announcing recently completed research and research related reports and current research projects in the field of education." This publication can be found in many libraries or

can be ordered directly from the Superintendent of Documents, U. S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D. C. 20402 at a cost of \$1.75 an issue or \$21.00 a year. Copies of most reports abstracted in the monthly ERIC listing can be purchased from: ERIC Document Reproduction Service, National Cash Register Company, 4936 Fairmont Avenue, Bethesda, Maryland 20014. The costs of all articles are noted with the reference. In such cases of reports, handbooks, private documents which have not received widespread distribution we have noted the address of the author or agency from which they may be obtained.

The main body of the bibliography is introduced by a Table of Contents which lists topic section heading and page information. The first section of the bibliography covers general references wide ranging or nonspecific in content. The remaining sections sequenced by topic headings in alphabetical order each contain items relevant to that specific topic. Three sample entries follow. In each instance the reference is presented in traditional form and then with descriptive labels replacing the original components.

- I. Appel, M. H. "Aggressive Behavior of Nursery School Children and Adult Procedures in Dealing with Such Behavior." <u>Journal of Experimental</u> Education, 1942, 11, 185-199.
 - Author(s). "Title of article." <u>Title of journal</u>, year of publication, <u>Volume number</u>, page numbers.
- II. e Williams, F. E. <u>Classroom Ideas for Encouraging Thinking and Feeling</u>.
 Buffalo, New York: D.O.K. Publishers, 1970.
 - Author. <u>Title of book or anthology</u>. City of Publication, Publisher, Year of Publication.
 - (e = Of interest to teachers and curriculum design personnel.)



III. e Rochester City School District, Project Beacon. Ego development guide for primary grade teachers. Rochester, New York: RCSD, 1965 (ED 025-813).

Corporate author. Title of report. City of issuance: Issuing body,

Year of Issuance (Eric Document Catalog Reference Number).

(e = Of interest to teachers and curriculum design personnel.)



Table of Contents

| Sec | ction Title: (In alphabetical sequence) | Pag |
|-----|---|-----|
| 1. | General References | • |
| 2. | Achievement Motivation | |
| 3. | The Affective Domain - General References | . 1 |
| 4. | Aggression, Anger and Frustration | . 1 |
| 5. | Altruism, Competition, Cooperation and Sharing | . 2 |
| 6. | Bibliographic Compilations Relevant to the Affective Domain | . 2 |
| 7. | Books, Story Telling, Films and Television in Affective Development and Education | . 3 |
| 8. | Character and Moral Development | 3 |
| 9. | Classroom Management, Teacher Given Guidance and Discipline | 4 |
| 10. | Creativity | 5 |
| 11. | Curiosity, Discovery Learning, Exploratory Behavior, Inquiry Skills, and Relevant Developments in Early Childhood Science Education | 5 |
| 12. | Differentiation and Identification of Healthy and Normal Patterns of Early Child Behavior | 6 |
| 13. | Early Prevention and Treatment of Neurotic and Antisocial Behavior | 6 |
| 14. | Fantasy and Reality in the Thinking of Young Children | 7 |
| 15. | Games, Game Behavior and Materials | 8 |
| 16. | Interpersonal Perception in Early Childhood | 8 |
| 17. | Longitudinal Studies - General References Relevant to the Affective Domain | 9: |
| 18. | Miscellaneous Emotional States and Responses in the Young Child | 9 |
| 19. | Parental and Home Influences on Affective Development and Education- | 98 |
| 20. | Personality in Early Childhood - General References | 10 |
| 21. | Personality in Early Childhood - References on Specific Traits | 10 |
| 22. | Role Play, Drama, Puppet Shows and Group Discussions | 11 |
| 23. | Self-Concept and Self-Esteem | 113 |



| 24. | Social and Solitary Play | 123 |
|-----|---|-----|
| 25. | Social Behavior | 129 |
| 26. | Social Background and Personality Characteristics of Minority and Culturally Disadvantaged Children | 138 |
| 27. | Social Science Education - Developments Relevant to the Affective Domain | 145 |



Section 1:

GENERAL REFERENCES

Selections in this section of the bibliography are of two varieties: introductory or overview statements on the disciplines of early childhood education and development or general comments on broad issues and concerns in these fields. Included among these selections are general texts; anthologies of published materials, and books and papers on such broad topics as the socialization process, experimental programs, and educational programs in other countries. (For general references that fall totally within the affective domain the reader may refer to section 3: Affective Domain - General References.)

- e Allison, Mary L., (Ed.) <u>New Educational Materials</u>. New York: Citation Press. 1967.
- e Almy, Millie, <u>Ways of Studying Children</u>. New York: Teachers College, Columbia University, 1959.
 - Almy, Millie, "Intellectual Mastery and Mental Health." <u>Teachers College</u> Record, 1962, 63, 468-478.
- e Auleta, Michael S., (Ed.) Foundations of Early Childhood Education: Readings. New York: Random House, 1969.
 - Bandura, Albert, <u>Principles of Behavior Modification</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1970.
- 4 Bandura, Albert and Walters, Richard H., Social Learning and Personality Development. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1963.
- e Bergman, Rita E., Children's Behavior. Jericho, New York: Exposition Press, 1969.
- e Bernstein, S., et al., "Report on the Analysis of Some Process-oriented Curricula. An Annotated Listing. Program Report R101." Sycracuse, New York: Eastern Regional Institute for Education, 1969. (E.D. 033-963).
- e Bettelheim, Bruno, The Children of the Dream. New York: Macmillan, 1969.
- e Beyer, Evelyn, Teaching Young Children. New York: Pegasus, 1968.



- Bronfenbrenner, Urie, "The Changing American Child--A Speculative Analysis."

 Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1961, 7, 73-84.
- Bronfenbrenner, Urie, "The Psychological Costs of Quality and Equality in Education." Child Development, 1967, 38, 909-925.
- e Bronfenbrenner, Urie, Two Worlds of Childhood: U.S. and U.S.S.R. New York: Russell Sage, 1970.
 - Bruce, P., "Three Forces in Psychology and Their Ethical and Educational Implications." In D. E. Hamacheck, (Ed.), Human Dynamics in Psychology and Education: Selected Readings. Boston: Allyn & Bacon, 1968.
 - Buhler, Charlotte and Massarik, Fred, (Eds.) The Course of Human Life. New York: Springer, 1968.
- e Burmeister, Eva, Tough Times and Tender Moments in Child Care Work. New York: Columbia University, 1967.
 - Button, Alan D., The Authentic Child. New York: Random House, 1969.
- e Byler, Ruth, Lewis, Gertrude and Totman, Ruth, "Teach Us What We Want to Know: Report on Survey of Health Interests, Concerns, and Problems of 5,000 Students in Selected Schools from Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve."

 New York: Mental Health Materials Center, 1969.
- e Caldwell, Bettye M., "What is the Optimal Learning Environment for the Young Child?" American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1967, 37, 8-21.
- e Caldwell, B. and Riccuti, H., (Eds.) Review of Child Development Research,

 Volume III. New York: Russell B. Sage, in press.
- e Chandler, Caroline, Lourie, Reginald S. and Peters, Anna D., Early Child Care.
 New York: Atherton, 1968.
- e Chauncey, Henry, (Ed.) Soviet Preschool Education, Volume I: Frogram of Instruction. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
- e Chauncey, Henry, (Ed.) Soviet Preschool Education, Volume II: Teacher's Commentary. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969
 - Chess, Stella and Thomas, Alexander, (Eds.) Annual Progress in Child Psychiatry and Child Development. New York: Brunner Mazel Publication. (Annual)
 - Clausen, John A., "Perspectives on Childhood Socialization." In John A. Clausen (Ed.), Socialization and Society. Boston: Little, Brown, 1968.
- e Coleman, J. S., <u>Equality of Educational Opportunity</u>. U. S. Department of Health, Education and Welfare. Washington: U. S. Government Printing Office, 1967.
- e Eisenstadt, S. N., From Generation to Generation. New York: Free Press, 1956.



- e Entwistle, H., Child-centered Education. London: Methuen, 1970.
 - Erickson, Erik H., Childhood and Society. New York: Norton, 1950.
 - Evans, Ellis D., (Ed.) Children: Readings in Behavior and Development. (2nd ed.) New York: Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, 1968.
 - Ferguson, Lucy R., <u>Personality Development</u>. Belmont, California: Brooks-Cole, 1970.
 - Flanders, James P., "A Review of Research on Imitative Behavior." <u>Psychological</u> <u>Bulletin</u>, 1968, <u>69</u>, 316-337.
 - Fowler, W., "Dimensions and Directions in the Development of Afecto-Cognitive Systems." <u>Human Development</u>, 1966, 9, 18-29.
- e Fraiberg, S. H., The Magic Years. New York: Scribner, 1959.
- e Frank, L. K., "Fundamental Needs of the Child." Mental Hygiene, 1938, 22, 353-379.
- e Frost, J. L., (Ed.) <u>Early Childhood Education Rediscovered: Readings</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1968.
 - Gale, Raymond F., <u>Developmental Behavior</u>: A <u>Humanistic Approach</u>. New York: Free Press, 1969.
 - Gardner, D. B., <u>Development in Early Childhood: The Pre-school Years</u>.

 New York: Harper and Row, 1964.
 - Gardner, D. B., "The Influence of Theoretical Conceptions of Human Development on the Practices of Early Childhood Education." Paper presented at the Convention of the National Association for the Education of Young Children, Salt Lake City, November, 1969.
- e Gessell, Arnold and Ilg, Frances, <u>Child Development</u>. New York: Harper and Row, 1949.
- e Gewirtz, Jacob L., "On Designing the Functional Environment of the Child to Facilitate Behavioral Development." In Laura L. Dittman (Ed.), Early Child Care: The New Perspective. New York: Atherton Press, 1968.
- e Gross, B. and R., "A Little Bit of Chaos British Infant School." Saturday Review, May 16, 1970, 71-73, 84-85.
 - Hamacheck, D. E., (Ed.) Human Dynamics in Psychology and Education: Selected Readings. Boston: Allyn and Bacon, 1968.
- e Hartup, Willard W. and Smothergill, Nancy L., (Eds.) The Young Child:
 Reviews of Research. Washington: National Association for the
 Education of Young Children, 1967.
- e Headley, Neith E., Foster and Headley's Education in the Kindergarten.

 New York: American Book Co., 1966. (Fourth Edition)



- e Hechinger, F. M., (Ed.) <u>Pre-school Education Today</u>. Garden City, New York: Doubleday and Company, 1966.
- e Holt, John, How Children Learn. New York: Pitman, 1967.
 - Hoppe, Ronald A., Milton, G. Alexander, and Simmel, Edward C., (Eds.) <u>Early</u>
 <u>Experience and the Process of Socialization</u>. New York: Academic Press, 1970.
- e Hymes, James L., <u>Teaching the Child Under Six</u>. Columbus, Ohio: C. E. Merrill, 1968.
- e Isaacs, Susan, The Nursery Years. The Mind of the Child From Birth to Six Years. New York: Schocken, 1968. (Reissue of 1929 Edition)
- e Isaacs, Susan, <u>Social Development in Young Children: A Study of Beginnings</u>.

 New York: Harcourt, Brace and Co., 1933.
- e Jackson, Philip W., "Alienation in the Classroom." Psychology in the Schools, 1965, 2, 299-308.
- e Jackson, Philip W., "The Student's World." The Elementary School Journal, April, 1966, 345-357.
- e Jersild, A. T., <u>Child Psychology</u>. (6th Edition) Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1968.
- 2, 8
 Jessor, Richard and Richardson, Stephen, "Psychosocial Deprivation and 23, 25
 Personality Development." In National Institute of Child Health and Human Development, Perspectives on Human Deprivation:

 Biological, Psychological and Social. Washington, D. C.: NICH and HD, 1968.
 - Jones, R. M., (Ed.) Contemporary Educational Psychology. New York: Harper Torchbooks, 1966.
- 19 Kagan, J., and Moss, H., "Personality and Social Development: Family and Peer Influences." <u>Review of Educational Research</u>, 1961, 31, 463-474.
 - King, Edith W. and Gerber, August, The Sociology of Early Childhood Education. New York: Van Nostrand-Reinhold, 1968.
 - Kliman, Gilbert, <u>Psychological Emergencies of Childhood</u>. New York: Grune and Stratton, 1968.
 - e Kohlberg, L. and Stodolsky, S., <u>Preschool Education</u>. Glenview, Illinois: Scott, Foresmand and Co., in preparation.
 - e Landreth, Catherine, <u>Early Childhood: Behavior and Learning</u>. (2nd Edition)
 New York: Alfred A. Knopf, 1967.
 - e Leeper, Sarah H., Dales, Ruth J., Skipper, Dora S. and Witherspoon, Ralph L., Good Schools for Young Children. A Guide for Working With Three-, Four-, and Five-year Old Children. (2nd Edition) New York: Macmillan, 1968.



- e Leonard, George, Education and Esctasy. New York: Delacorte, 1968.
 - Lesser, G. S., (Ed.) <u>Psychology and the Educational Process</u>. Glenview, Illinois: Scott, Foresman and Co., 1969.
 - Lippitt, Ronald, "Improving the Socialization Process." In John A. Clausen (Ed.), Socialization and Society. Boston: Little, Brown, 1968.
 - McCandless, B. R., Children: Behavior and Development. (2nd Edition) New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1967.
- e McCandless, B. R., "Childhood Socialization." In Davis A. Goslin (Ed.),

 <u>Handbook of Socialization Theory and Research</u>. Chicago: Rand McNally,
 1969.
 - Mead, Margaret, "Technological Change and Child Development." Understanding the Child, 1952, 21, 109-112.
- e Miles, Matthew, <u>Learning to Work in Groups</u>. New York: Teachers College, Columbia University, 1959.
- e Moffett, James, A Student-oentered Language Arts Curriculum, Grades K-6: A
 Handbook for Teachers. New York: Houghton Mifflin, 1968.
- 11 Moore, Omar Khayyam and Anderson, Alan R., "Some Principles for the Design of Clarifying Educational Environments." In David A. Goslin (Ed.), Handbook of Socialization Theory and Research. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1969.
- e Murphy, Lois B., <u>The Widening World of Childhood</u>. New York: Basic Books, 1962.
 - Mussen, P., (Ed.) Manual of Child Psychology. New York: Viley, 1970.
- e National Training Laboratories Institute for Applied Behavioral Science.

 <u>Human Forces in Teaching and Learning</u>. Washington, D. C.: National
 Training Laboratories, 1968.
- Neill, A. S., <u>Summerhill: A Radical Approach to Childrearing</u>. New York: Hart, 1960.
 - Neubauer, Peter, <u>Concepts of Development in Early Childhood Education</u>. Springfield, Illinois: Thomas, 1965.
 - Parke, Ross D., (Ed.) Readings in Social Development. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
 - Parsons, Talcott, "Youth in the Context of American Society." In Erik H. Erikson (Ed.), The Challenge of Youth. (Anchor Edition) New York: Doubleday, 1965.
- 15, 19, Patterson, G. R., Shaw, D. A. and Ebner, M., "Teachers, Peers, and
 13 Parents as Agents of Change in the Classroom." In F. A. M.
 Benson (Ed.), Modifying Deviant Social Behaviors in Various
 Classroom Settings. Eugene, Oregon: University of Oregon, 1969.



- e Pearl, Arthur, The Atrocity of Education. Saint Louis: New Critics Press, in press.
- e Pines, Maya, Revolution in Learning: The Years From Birth to Six. New York: Harper and Row, 1967.
 - Phillips, Leslie, <u>Human Adaptation and Its Failures</u>. New York: Academic Press, 1968.
- e Portola Institute, Inc., The Big Rock Candy Mountain: Resources for Our Education. (Periodical available from: Portola Institute, Inc., 1115 Merrill Street, Menlo Park, California.)
- e Rasmussen, Margaret, (Ed.) Readings from Childhood Education: Articles of
 Lasting Value. Washington, D. C.: Assoc. for Childhood Educ.
 Internat1., 1966.
 - Raths, J., "Mutuality of Effective Functioning and School Experiences." In W. B. Waetjen and R. R. Leeper (Eds.), Learning and Mental Health in the School. 1966 Yearbook of the Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development. National Education Assn., 1966.
- e Read, Katherine H., <u>The Nursery School: A Human Relationship Laboratory</u>. (4th Edition) Philadelphia: W. B. Saunders, 1966.
- e Ribble, Margaret A., The Personality of the Young Child: An Introduction for Puzzled Parents. New York: Columbia University, 1955.
 - Ritchie, Oscar W. and Koller, Marvin R., The Sociology of Childhood. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1964.
- e Schulman, Anne S., <u>Absorbed in Living, Children Learn</u>. Washington, D. C.: National Association for the Education of Young Children, 1967.
 - Seidman, Jerome, (Ed.) The Child: A Book of Readings. (2nd Edition)
 New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
 - Singer, Robert D. and Singer, Anne, <u>Psychological Development in Children</u>. Philadelphia: Saunders, 1969.
- e Smart, Mollie S. and Smart, Russell C., <u>Children: Development and Relation-ships</u>. New York: Macmillan, 1967.
 - Spiro, Melford E., Children of the Kibbutz. New York: Schocken, 1965.
 - Stoff, Sheldon and Schwartzberg, Herbert, (Eds.) The Human Encounter.

 Readings in Education. New York: Harper and Row, 1969.
- e Stone, L. J. and Church, J., <u>Childhood and Adolescence</u>. (2nd Edition) New York: Random House, 1968.
- e Talbot, Toby, (Ed.) The World of the Child: Birth to Adolescence from the Child's Viewpoint. New York: Doubleday, 1967.
- Wheeler, L., "Toward a Theory of Behavioral Contagion." <u>Psychological</u> <u>Review</u>, 1966, <u>73</u>, 179-192.



- Wickes, Frances, <u>Inner World of Childhood: A Study in Analytical Psychology</u>. (Rev. Ed.) New York: New American Library, 1966.
- Willems, E. P. and Raush, H. L., <u>Naturalistic Viewpoints in Psychological</u>
 <u>Research</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
- e Young, Leontine, Life Among the Giants. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1966.



Section 2:

ACHIEVEMENT MOTIVATION

This section contains references on the general area of achievement motivation. These references deal with definition and assessment; antecedent child rearing and experiential factors; and methods of fostering in the educational setting. (For references on related topics the reader may refer to section 8: Character and moral development; section 19: Parental and home influences; and section 23: Self-concept and self-esteem.)

- Adelman, Howard S., "Reinforcing Effects of Adult Nonreaction on Expectancy of Underachieving Boys." Child Development, 1969, 40, 111-122.
- Adkins, Dorothy, Measurement of Motivation to Achieve in Pre-school Children. (E.D. 021-617) Honolulu: Hawaii University Educational Research and Development Center. Washington: Office of Economic Opportunity, (Report #0EG-4218), 1968.
- e Alschuler, Alfred S., "The Effects of Classroom Structure on Achievement Motivation and Academic Performance." Educational Technology, 1969, 9, 19-24.
- Alschuler, Alfred S., The Need to Achieve: An Introduction to Achievement Motivation Courses for Schools. Middletown, Connecticut: Education Ventures, Inc., 1969.
- e Alschuler, Alfred S., Tabor, Diane and McIntyre, James, <u>Teaching Achievement Motivation</u>. Middletown, Connecticut: Educational Ventures, Inc., 1970.
 - Atkinson, J. W., (Ed.) Motives in Fantasy, Action and Society. Princeton, New Jersey: Van Nostrand, 1958.
 - Atkinson, J. W. and Feather, N. T., (Eds.) A Theory of Achievement Motivation. New York: Wiley, 1966.
 - Barry, Herbert, Child, I. L. and Bacon, M. K., "The Relation of Child Training to Subsistence Economy." <u>American Anthropologist</u>, 1959, 61, 51-63.
 - Bartlett, E. W. and Smith, C. P., "Child-rearing Preactices, Birth Order, and the Development of Achievement-related Motives." <u>Psychological Reports</u>, 1966, 18, 1207-1216.
 - "Bibliography on Achievement." Clearinghouse on Educational Differences, 1966. (E.D. 011-310) Cambridge, Massachusetts: Harvard University.
- e Brown, Roger, "The Achievement Motive." In the Author's <u>Social Psychology</u>.
 New York: The Free Press, 1965.



- Callard, Esther D., "Achievement Motive of Four-year-olds and Maternal Expectations." Journal of Experimental Education, 1968, 37, 14-23.
- Carpenter, Virginia F., 'Motivational Components of Achievement in Culturally Disadvantaged Negro Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-A, 3991A-3992A.
- Cattell, Raymond B. and Butcher, H. J., The Prediction of Achievement and Creativity. Indianapolis: Bobbs-Merrill, 1968.
- e Crandall, Virginia, "Achievement Behavior in Young Children." Young Children, 1964, 20, 76-90.
- 21 Crandall, Virginia, Katkousky, W. and Crandall, V. J., "Children's Beliefs in Their Own Control of Reinforcements in Intellectual Achievement Situations." Child Development, 1965, 36, 91-109.
 - Espinosa, Renato, "Final Report on Head Start Evaluation and Research: 1967-68, to the Office of Economic Opportunity. Section II: Achievement Motivation and Patterns of Reinforcement in Head Start Children."

 University of Texas, Austin. Child Development Evaluation and Research Center Report Number OEO-4202, 1968. (E.D. 023-458)
- 17 Feld, Sheila C., "Longitudinal Study of the Origins of Achievement Strivings."

 Journal of Personality and Social Fsychology, 1967, 7, 408-414.
 - e Hartup, Willard H. "Early Pressures in Child Development." Young Children, 1965, 20, 270-283.
 - Heckhausen, Heinz, The Anatomy of Achievement Motivation. New York: Academic Press, 1967.
 - Hill, Kennedy T. and Dusek, Jerome B., "Children's Achievement Expectations as a Function of Social Reinforcement, Sex of S, and Test Anxiety."

 <u>Child Development</u>, 1969, 40, 547-557.
- 26 Katz, I., "The Socialization of Academic Achievement in Minority Group Children." In D. Levine (Ed.), Nebraska Symposium on Motivation. Lincoln, Nebraska: University of Nebraska Press, 1967.
 - Katz, I., "Academic Motivation and Equal Educational Opportunity." <u>Harvard Educational Review</u>, 1968, 38, 57-65.
 - Katz, Lilian G., "A Study of the Changes in Behavior of Children Enrolled in Two Types of Head Start Classes." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 29-A, 1476A-1477A.
 - E Lippitt, R., Fox, R. and Schmuck, R., "Innovating Classroom Practice to Support Achievement Motivation and Ego-development." In E. M. Bower and W. Hollister (Eds.), <u>Behavioral Science Frontiers in Education</u>. New York: Wiley, 1967.
 - Lunneborg, P. W., "Relations Among Social Desirability, Achievement, and Anxiety Measures in Children." Child Development, 1964, 35, 169-182.



- McCandless, Boyd R. and Stiles, Jo Ann K., "Child Development." In Robert L. Ebel (Ed.), Encyclopedia of Educational Research (4th Edition). Toronto: Collier-Macmillan Canada, Ltd., 1969.
- McClelland, David, "The Importance of Early Learning in the Formation of Motives." In J. Atkinson (Ed.), Motives in Fantasy, Action and Society. Princeton: D. Van Nostrand Co., Inc., 1958.
- McClelland, David, The Achieving Society. New York: Van Nostrand, 1961.
- McClelland, David, et al., <u>The Achievement Motive</u>. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1953.
- 17 Moss, Howard A. and Kagan, Jerome, "Stability of Achievement and Recognition-seeking Behaviors from Early Childhood Through Adulthood." <u>Journal of Abnormal</u> and Social Psychology, 1961, 62, 504-513.
 - Motanelli, Dale S. and Hill, Kennedy T., "Children's Achievement Expectations and Performance as a Function of Two Consecutive Reinforcement Experiences, Sex of Subject, and Sex of Experimenter." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1969, 13, 115-128.
 - Myers, Albert E., "Risk-taking and Academic Success and Their Relation to an Objective Measure of Achievement Motivation." Educational and Psychological Measurement, 1965, 25, 355-363.
 - e, 9, Raths, Louis E. and Burrell, Anna P., 'Meeting the Needs for Belonging
 and Achieving." In Seidman, Jerome M. (Ed.), Readings in Educational
 Psychology. Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1955. (Reprinted from
 Do's and Dont's of Need Theory. Bronxville, New York: Modern
 Education Service.)
 - Reynolds, David, <u>Bibliography and Abstracts of Findings Relative to Personality and Achievement</u>. Philadelphia: Temple University, 1964.
 - Rosen, B., "Socialization and Achievement Motivation in Brazil. Sociological Review, 1962, 27, 612-624.
 - Rosen, B. and D'Andrade, Roy C., "The Psychosocial Origins of Achievement Motivation." Sociometry, 1959, 22, 185-218.
 - Sears, Pauline S., "The Effect of Classroom Conditions on the Strength of Achievement Motive and Work Output of Elementary School Children."
 (E. D. 001-136) Washington: Office of Education, Cooperative Research Program (DHEW), 1963.
- e Sears, Pauline S. and Hilgard, E. R., "The Teacher's Role in the Motivation of the Learner." In E. R. Hilgard (Ed.), Theories of Learning and Instruction, The 63rd Yearbook of the NSSE. Chicago: The National Society for the study of Education, 1964.
 - Smith, Charles P., (Ed.) Achievement Related Motives in Children. New York: Russell Sage Foundation, 1969.



- Smith, Donald C. and Wing, Lucy. "Developmental Changes in Preference for Goals Difficult to Attain." Child Development, 1961, 32, 29-36.
- Smith, M. B., "Competence and Socialization." In J. A. Clausen (Ed.), Socialization and Society. Boston: Little, Brown, 1968.
- Sclomon, D., "The Generality of Children's Achievement-related Behavior."

 Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1969, 114, 109-125.
- 17 Sontag, L. and Kagan, J., "The Emergence of Intellectual Achievement Motives."

 American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1967, 37, 8-21.
 - Stein, Aletha H., "The Influence of Social Reinforcement on the Achievement Behavior of Fourth-grade Boys and Girls." Child Development, 1969, 40, 727-736.
 - Stivers, Eugene and Kowatrakul, Surang, "Increasing Children's Achievement-Oriented Behavior in Nursery School." Project report, Child Development Research and Evaluation Center for Head Start. Philadelphia: Temple University, 1968.
 - Tamagini, Jeanette E., "A Comparative Study of Achievement Motivation in Achieving and Under-achieving Grade School Boys." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 4339-A.
- 9 Thompson, George G. and Hunnicutt, C. W., "The Effect of Repeated Praise or Blame on the Work Achievement of 'Introverts' and 'Extroverts'."

 Journal of Educational Psychology, 1944, 35, 257-266.
- e Weiner, Bernard, "Implications of the Current Theory of Achievement Motivation for Research and Performance in the Classroom." <u>Psychology in the Schools</u>, 1967, 4, 164-171.
 - Winterbottom, Marian, "The Relation of Need for Achievement to Learning Experiences in Independence and Mastery." In J. Atkinson (Ed.), Motives in Fantasy, Action and Society. Princeton: Van Nostrand, 1958.
 - Wyer, Robert S., Jr., "Effects of Task Reinforcement, Social Reinforcement, and Task Difficulty on Perseverance in Achievement-related Activity."

 Journal of Personality & Social Psychology, 1968, 8, 269-276.
 - Wyer, Robert S., Jr. and Bednar, R., "Some Determinants of Perseverance in Achievement-related Activity." <u>Journal of Experimental Social Psychology</u>, 1967, 3, 255-265.



Section 3:

THE AFFECTIVE DOMAIN - GENERAL REFERENCES

The references in this section of the bibliography represent nonspecific, broadly conceived issues relevant to the affective domain. The selections consider the theory and practices involved in healthful social, motivational and emotional development in early childhood. (For nonhealthful development see section 13: Early Prevention and Treatment of Neurotic and Antisocial Behavior.) Selections in this section fall into one of two general categories: Those providing a general introduction and discussion to the significance, contributions and procedures employed in the affective domain and those that deal with specific topics at a fairly high level of generality. Included among the selections are books and papers on such topics as definitions of the affective domain; the interrelation between affective and cognitive domains in education; humanistic psychology and the humanization of the educational process. Others include ethical issues involved in teaching affectively oriented processes; assessment within the affective domain and suggestions for teaching values, fostering of general emotional capacities and equipping children to deal with and utilize typical student concerns. (A section of general relevance is section 12: Differentiated, Healthy and Normal Patterns of Early Child Behavior.)

- Alschuler, Alfred S., "Psychological Education." <u>Journal of Humanistic</u> <u>Psychology</u>, 1969, 9, 1-16.
- e Association for Childhood Education International. "Implications of Basic Human Values for Education: Nursery-kindergarten Years, Primary and Intermediate Grades." Washington, D. C.: ACEI, 1964.
- e Association for Supervision in Curriculum Development. "Perceiving, Behaving, Becoming: A New Focus for Education." Washington, D. C.: ASCD, 1962.
- e Association for Supervision in Curriculum Development. "Humanizing Education: The Person in the Process." Washington, D. C.: ASCD, 1967.
 - Beatty, Walcott, H., "Emotion: The Missing Link in Education." In Walcott H. Beatty (Ed.), Improving Educational Assessment and an Inventory of Measures of Affective Behavior. Washington, D. C.: Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development, 1969.



- e Beatty, Walcott H., (Ed.) <u>Improving Educational Assessment and an Inventory</u>
 Of Measures of Affective Behavior. Washington, D. C.: Association for
 Supervision and Curriculum Development, 1969.
- 23 Beker, J., "The Influence of School Camping on the Self-concepts and Social Relationships of Sixth Grade Children." <u>Journal of Educational</u>
 Psychology, 1960, 51, 352-356.
- e Bessell, H., "The Content is the Medium: The Confidence is the Message."

 Psychology Today, 1968, January, 32-35.
- e Bessell, Harold and Palomeres, Uvaldo H., <u>Methods in Human Development</u>. San Diego: Human Development Training Institute, 1969, and 1970. (Brochure and other material available from Human Development Training Institute, 4455 Twain Avenue, Suite H, San Diego, California, 92120.)
- e Biber, Barbara, "A Learning-teaching Paradigm Integrating Intellectual and Affective Processes." In Eli M. Bower and W. G. Hollister (Eds.), Behavioral Science Frontiers in Education. New York: Wiley, 1967.
- 8 Elatt, M., "The Effects of Classroom Discussion Programs Upon Children's Level of Moral Judgment." Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, University of Chicago, 1969.
 - Borton, T., "What Turns the Kids On?" Saturday Review, 1967, April 15, 72-74+.
 - Borton, T., Reach, Touch, and Teach: Student Concerns and Process Education.

 New York: McGraw-Hill, 1970.
- e Borton, T. and Burgess, B., "Process Education and the Needs of Young 4, Children." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in
- 7, Early Education: Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press.
- 14, 22 Washington, D. C.: Office of Child Development (DHEW).
 - e Borton, T. and Newberg, N., Education for Student Concerns. New York: McGraw-Hill, in press.
- 1, Bower, Eli M., "The Modification, Mediation and Utilization of Stress During the School Years." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1964, 34, 667-674.
 - Bower, Eli M., "The Achievement of Competency." In Waetjen, W. and Leeper, R. (Eds.), Learning and Mental Health in the School. Association for the Study of Child Development, 1966. Yearbook, 1966, of the Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development. Washington, D. C.: NEA.
 - e Bower, Eli M., "Promoting Educational Competence and Mental Health in the Classroom." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education: Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press.

 Washington, D. C.: Office of Child Development (DHEW).
 - Bronfenbrenner, Urie, "Soviet Methods of Character Education: Some Implications for Research." American Psychologist, 1962, 17, 550-564.



- Bronfenbrenner, Urie, 'Motivational and Social Components in Compensatory Education Programs: Suggested Principles, Practices, and Research Designs." Washington, D. C.: Office of Education (DHEW), 1968, (E.D. 024-464).
- e Brown, George I., <u>Human Teaching for Human Learning</u>. New York: Viking, in press.
- Bugental, J. and Tannenbaum, R., "Sensitivity Training and Being Motivation."

 Journal of Humanistice Psychology, 1963, 3, 76-85.
 - Buhler, C. and Massarik, F., (Eds.) The Course of Human Life: A Study of Goals in the Humanistic Perspective. New York: Springer, 1968.
- e Burgess, Bonita, G., "A Bibliography." Philadelphia: The School District of Philadelphia, 1970. (Available from the Intensive Learning Center, Philadelphia Public Schools, Fifth and Luzerne Streets, Philadelphia, Pa., 19140.)
- e Burgess, Evangeline, <u>Values in Early Childhood Education</u>. Washington, D. C.:
 1 National Education Association, 1965.
 - Carr, D. B. and Willenberg, E. P., "Teaching Children Values." Freeport, Long Island, New York: Educational Activities, Inc. (Phonograph records with unfinished stories and filmstrips.)
 - Churchman, C. W., "Humanizing Education." The Center Magazine, 1968, November, 10-33.
 - Clarizio, Harvey F., (Ed.) Mental Health and the Educative Process: Selected Readings. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1969.
- e Coopersmith, Stanley, "Applied Motivation in Education and Early Development."

 In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education:

 Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development (DHEW).
- e Culbert, S. A. and Culbert, Joann, "Sensitivity Training Within the Educational Framework: A Means of Mobilizing Potential." <u>Journal of Creative</u>
 <u>Behavior</u>, 1967, 2, 14-29.
- 26 deCharms, Richard, et al., "Can Motives of Low Income Black Children be Changed? Theory, Ethics and Implementation of Motivational Change in Elementary School Children." Symposium prepared for the Annual Meeting of the American Educational Research Association, Los Angeles, February, 1969.
- e D'Evelyn, Katherine E., <u>Meeting Children's Emotional Needs: A Guide for Teachers</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1957.
 - Diederich, P. B., "An Ethical Basis for Educational Objectives." Ethics, 1947-48, 58, 123-132.
 - e Drews, E. M., "Beyond Curriculum." <u>Journal of Humanistic Psychology</u>, 1968, 8, 97-112.



- e Eiss, Albert F. and Harbeck, Mary B., <u>Behavioral Objectives in the Affective Domain</u>. Washington, D. C.: Behavioral Publications, 1969.
- 1 Farr, Audrey L., "A Cognitive Approach to Promoting More Effective Personal Functioning in Third-grade Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-A, 3995-A.
 - Farson, Richard E., "Emotional Barriers to Education." Psychology Today, 1967, 1, 32-35.
 - Ferney, Gary Axel, "An Evaluation of a Program for Learning in Accordance With Needs." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 4327-A.
- 1, Fox, R., Lippitt, R., Schmuck, R. and Von Egmond, E., <u>Understanding Class-room Social Relations and Learning</u>. Chicago: Science Research Associates, 1966.
 - e Franco, J. M., Ego Development Guide For Primary Grade Teachers. Rochester, New York: Project Beacon, City School District of Rochester, 1965, (E.D. 025-813).
 - Giammatteo, M. C., "Emotions in Kids--Are You Part of It?" Field Paper 22.
 Portland, Oregon: Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory, 1969.
 - e Goodykoontz, Bess, (Ed.) <u>Basic Human Values for Childhood Education</u>. Washington, D. C.: Association for Childhood Education International, 1963.
 - e Grollman, Earl A., (Ed.) Explaining Death to Children. Boston: Beacon, 1967.
 - Gunther, B., Sense Relaxation: Below Your Mind. New York: Collier Books, 1968.
 - Inkeles, Alex, "Social Structure and the Socialization of Competence." Harvard Educational Review, 1966, 36, 265-283.
 - e Jones, Richard M., <u>Fantasy and Feeling in Education</u>. New York: New York University, 1968. (Also, New York: Harper and Row Colophon Edition.)
 - Kantor, Robert, The Affective Domain and Beyond. Stanford, California: Stanford Research Institute, 1967.
 - e Kapfer, Philip G., "Behavioral Objectives in the Cognitive and Affective Domains." Educational Technology, 1968, 8, 11-13.
 - e Kelley, Earl C., "The Place of Affective Learning." <u>Educational Leadership</u>, 1965, 22, 455-457.
 - e Krathwohl, David, Bloom, Benjamin S. and Masia, Bertram, <u>Taxonomy of Education-al Objectives</u>, <u>Handbook II: Affective Domain</u>. New York: David McKay, 1964.
- e Levine, Milton I., M.D., "Early Sex Education." Young Children, 1966, 22, 11-15.



¹⁵ 22

- 1, Lewis, Annabelle, "Developing Social Feeling in the Young Child Through His 24 Play Life." Individual Psychology Bulletin, 1947, 6, 52-60.
 - e Maslow, Abraham H., "Some Educational Implications of the Humanistic Psychologies." <u>Harvard Educational Review</u>, 1968, 38, 685-696.
- e Maslow, A., <u>Toward a Psychology of Being</u>. Princeton, New Jersey: Van Nostrand. 1968.
- e "Metropolitan Effort Toward Regional Opportunity, Wethersfield, Connecticut." Family Life Education. A Guide to Curriculum, 1967, (ED 025-783). Washington: Office of Education (DHEW).
 - Minuchin, Patricia, Biber, Barbara, Shapiro, Edna and Zimiles, Herbert,

 The Psychological Impact of School Experience. New York: Basic Books,
 1969.
 - Mogilnick, Robert L., "The Educational Implications of Some Writings on the Development of the Affective Domain in Children." <u>Dissertation</u>
 <u>Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 3919-A.
- e Montz, R., "Selected Techniques in Affective Education to Promote Involvement and Motivation." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), <u>The Affective</u> Component in Early Education: Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.: Office of Child Development (DHEW).
- e Ojemann, Ralph H., "Should Educational Objectives Be Stated in Behavioral Terms?" The Elementary School Journal, 1968, 68, 223-231.
 - Ojemann, Ralph H., "Should Educational Objectives Be Stated in Behavioral Terms?--Part II." The Elementary School Journal, 1969, 69, 229-235.
- e Otto, H. A., (Ed.) <u>Human Potentialities: The Challenge and the Promise</u>. St. Louis: Warren H. Green, 1968.
- e Otto, H. and Mann, J., (Eds.) Ways of Growth. New York: Grossman, 1968.
- e Perls, F. S., Hefferline, R. F. and Goodman, P., Gestalt Therapy: Excitement and Growth in the Human Personality. New York: Dell (paperback), 1965.
- 9 Peters, R. S., Ethics and Education. (Abridged) Glenview, Illinois: Scott, Foresman and Co., 1967.
- e Prescott, D., Emotion and the Educative Process. Washington, D. C.: American Council on Education, 1938.
- e Ptaschnik, Jeffry, "Social Development Program. 1967 Report." Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania Public Schools, 1967, (ED 025-792).
- e Randolph, Norma, <u>Self-Enhancing Education: A Program to Motivate Learners</u>. Stanford, California: Stanford, 1966.
- Raths, Louis E., Harmin, Merrill and Simon, Sidney B., <u>Values and Teaching</u>:

 <u>Working With Values in the Classroom</u>. Columbus, Ohio: Merrill, 1966.



- e Rogers, C., On Becoming a Person. Boston: Houghton-Mifflin, 1961.
- e Rowson, Joseph, (Ed.) <u>Impact 70</u>. Des Moines, Iowa: Polk County Board of Education, 1970.
- e Rubin, Louis J., (Ed.) <u>Life Skills in School and Society</u>. Washington, D. C.: Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development 1969 Yearbook.
- e Ruesch, J. and Kees, W., Non-Verbal Communication. Berkeley, California: University of California Press, 1956.
- e Schenectady City School District, New York. "Curriculum Guide for Early Childhood Education. Behavioral Goals--Pre-kindergarten Through One." (ED 027-940)
- e Seashore, C., "What is Sensitivity Training?" N.T.L. Institute News and Reports, April 1968, 2, 2.
 - Seidman, Jerome M., (Ed.) Educating for Mental Health. New YOrk: Crowell, 1963.
- e Sonntag, Joyce, "Sensitivity Training with Gifted Children." Gifted Child Quarterly, Spring, 1969.
 - Strandberg, Warren D., "On the Teachability of Virtue." <u>Dissertation</u>
 <u>Abstracts</u>, 1968, <u>28-A</u>, 3574-A.
 - Taylor, Marvin J., (Ed.) <u>Introduction to Christian Education</u>. New York: Abingdon, 1966.
 - Theory Into Practice, April, 1969, 8 (the whole issue).
 - Thweatt, William H., "Development of The Ideal-Student Values Inventory with Resulting Comparison of Teacher Values." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 26, 5883-5884.
 - University of the State of New York, State Education Department, Division of Higher Education, Albany, (12224). "Psychological Humanistic Education." Educational Opportunity Forum, Fall, 1969.
- e Widmer, E. L., "Why Kindergarten?" Young Children, 1966, 31, 297-303.
- e Williams, F. E., <u>Classroom Ideas for Encouraging Thinking and Feeling</u>.
 Buffalo, New York: D.O.K. Publishers, 1970.



Section 4:

AGGRESSION, ANGER AND FRUSTRATION IN THE YOUNG CHILD

This section of the bibliography contains references describing the circumstances and characteristics of the interrelated patterns of feelings and behavior involved in aggression, anger and frustration. (References on closely related topics may be found in section 9: Classroom management, Guidance and Biscipline, and section 12: Differentiation and Identification of Healthy and Normal Patterns of Child Behavior.)

- 24 Albino, R. C., "Defenses Against Aggression in the Play of Young Children."

 <u>British Journal of Medical Psychology</u>, 1954, 27, 61-71.
- 24 Ammons, Carol H. and Ammons, Robert B., "Aggression in Doll-play: Interviews of Two-to-six-year-old White Males." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1953, 82, 205-213.
- e Appel, Madeleine H., "Aggressive Behavior of Nursery School Children and Adult Procedures in Dealing With Such Behavior." <u>Journal of Experimental Education</u>, 1942, <u>11</u>, 185-199.
- 7 Baker, R. K. and Ball, S. J., <u>Violence and the Media</u>. Washington: U. S. Government Printing Office, 1969.
 - Bandura, A., Ross, D. and Ross, S. A., "Transmission of Aggression Through Imitation of Aggressive Models."

 Psychology, 1961, 63, 575-582.
- 7 Bandura, A., Ross, D. and Ross, S. A., "Imitation of Film-mediated Aggressive Models." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1963, 66, 3-11.
 - Bandura, A. and Walters, R. H., "Aggression." In H. Stevenson (Ed.),

 <u>Child Psychology, N.S.S.E. Yearbook.</u> Chicago: University of Chicago

 <u>Press.</u> 1963.
 - Bender, L. and Schilder, P., "Aggression in Children." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1936, 18, 400-525.
 - Berk, Laura E., "Effects of Variations in the Nursery School Setting on Environmental Constraints and Children's Modes of Adaptation." Child Development, 1970, in press.
 - Berkowitz, L., "The Expression and Reduction of Hostility." <u>Psychological</u>
 Bulletin, 1958, 57, 257-284.
 - Berkowitz, L., Aggression: A Social Psychological Analysis. New York: McGraw-Rill, 1962.



- Berkowitz, L., (Ed.) Roots of Aggression. A Re-examination of the Frustration-aggression Hypothesis. New York: Atherton, 1969.
- Berkowitz, L., "Control of Aggression." In B. Caldwell and H. Riccuti (Eds.),

 Review of Child Development Research, Vol. 3. New York: Russell B.

 Sage, in press.
- Bloch, Jeanne and Bloch, Martin B., "Predicting the Behavior of Children Under Frustration." In J. Seidman (Ed.), <u>The Child: A Book of Readings</u>. New York: Rinehart, 1958.
- Body, Margaret K., "Patterns of Aggression in the Nursery School." Child Development, 1955, 26, 3-11.
- e Boet, Johanna, "A Further Study in the Modification of Assertive Behavior in Young Children." Unpublished Master's Thesis, University of Iowa, 1943.
 - Borsky, Marilyn L., "The Relationship of Some Aggressive Characteristics to Reading Achievement in Fifth and Sixth Grade Males and Females."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 27-A, 1257A-1258A.
 - Burks, Henry L. and Harrison, Saul I., "Aggressive Behavior as a Means of Avoiding Depression." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1962, 32, 416-422.
 - Buss, A. H., The Psychology of Aggression. New York: Wiley, 1961.
- 21 Byram, C., "Longitudinal Study of Aggressive and Self-assertive Behavior in Social Intention." Unpublished B.A. Honors Thesis, Radcliffe College, 1966.
- 17, Cohen, Stewart, "The Development of Aggression." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 16 1968, 28-B, 4745B-4746B.
 - e Coles, Robert, "Violence in Ghetto Children." Children, 1967, 14, 101-104.

 (Reprinted in Stella Chess and Alexander Thomas (Eds.), Annual Progress
 in Child Psychiatry and Child Development. New York: Brunner/Mazel,
 1968.)
 - Crowder, T. H., "Experimental Modification of Response to Frustration in Pre-school Children." Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, State University of Iowa, 1949.
 - Davison, J. B., "Factors Influencing Young Children's Responses to Frustration." Unpublished M.A. Thesis, University of California, 1957.
 - Dawe, Helen C., "An Analysis of Two Hundred Quarrels of Pre-school Children." Child Development, 1934, 5, 139-157.
 - Ditrichs, R., Simon, S. and Greene, B., "Effect of Vicarious Scheduling on the Verbal Conditioning of Hostility in Children." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1967, 6, 71-78.
 - Dollard, J., Doob, L., Miller, N., Mowrer, O. and Sears, R., <u>Frustration</u> and <u>Aggression</u>. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1939.



- 21 Dorman, Lynn, "Assertive Behavior and Contitive Performance in Pre-school Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 30-B, 2397B-2398B.
 - Fawl, C. L., "Disturbances Experienced by Children in their Natural Habitats." In R. G. Barker (Ed.), The Stream of Behavior. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1963.
- 3, Feldman, Ronald E., "Teaching Self-control and Self-expression Via Play."

 24 In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education:

 Developing, Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development (DHEW).
 - Feshbach, Norma D., "Sex Differences in Children's Modes of Aggressive Responses Toward Outsiders." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1969, 15, 249-258.
 - Goldman, Morton, Keck, Jonathan W. and O'Leary, Charles J., "Hostility Reduction and Performance." Psychological Reports, 1969, 25, 503-512.
 - Goodenough, Florence L., "Anger in Young Children." <u>University of Minnesota</u>
 <u>Institute of Child Welfare Monograph No. 9</u>, Minneapolis: University of Minnesota, 1931.
 - Green, Elise, H., "Friendship and Quarrelling Among Pre-school Children." Child Development, 1933, 4, 237-252.
 - Green, Elise H., "Group Play and Quarrelling Among Pre-school Children." Child Development, 1933, 4, 302-307.
 - Hartup, W. W. and Himeno, Y., "Social Isolation Versus Interaction With Adults in Relation to Aggression in Pre-school Children." <u>Journal of Abnormal</u> and Social Psychology, 1960, 59, 17-22.
 - e Hendrick, Joanne, "Aggression: What to Do About It!" Young Children, 1968, 23, 298-305.
- 7 Hicks, D. J., "Imitation and Retention of Film-mediated Aggressive Peer and Adult Models." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1965, 2, 97-100.
- e Jackson, Philip W. and Wolfson, Bernice J., "Varieties of Constraint in a Nursery School." Young Children, 1968, 23, 358-367.
 - Jegard, Suzanne and Walters, Richard H., "A Study of Some Determinants of Aggression in Young Children." Child Development, 1960, 31, 739-747.
 - Jersild, A. T. and Markey, F. V., "Conflicts Between Pre-school Children."

 Child Development Monographs, 1935, 25.
 - Kaplan, Louise J., "The Relationship Ectween the Child's Responses to Frustration and His Moral Judgment." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 27-B, 2859B-2860B.
 - Kuhn, D. Z., Madsen, C. H., Jr. and Becker, W. C., "Effects of Exposure to an Aggressive Model and 'Frustration' on Children's Aggressive Behavior." <u>Child Development</u>, 1967, 38, 739-745.

- e Lederman, Janet, Anger and the Rocking Chair; Gestalt Awareness With Children. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1969.
 - Lesser, Gerald, "Application of Guttman's Scaling Method to Aggressive Fantasy in Children." Educational and Psychological Measurement, 1958, 18, 543-551.
- 16 Lesser, Gerald, "The Relationships Between Various Forms of Aggression and Popularity in Children." <u>Journal of Educational Psychology</u>, 1959, <u>50</u>, 20-25.
 - Linder, Marie A., "Verbal Conditioning of Aggression in Doll Play: Comparison of the Effect of Two Therapeutic Tools on Aggression of Nursery School Boys in a Therapy-like Situation." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 23, 1201-B.
 - Longstreth, Langdon E., "The Relationship Between Expectations and Frustration in Children." Child Development, 1960, 31, 667-671.
 - e Lorenz, K., On Aggression. New York: Harcourt, Brace and World, 1966.
 - Mallick, Shahbaz K. and McCandless, Boyd R., "A Study of Catharsis of Aggression." Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1966, 4, 591-596.
 - McKee, J. P. and Leader, F. B., "The Relationships of Socio-economic Status and Aggression to the Competitive Behavior of Preschool Children." Child Development, 1955, 26, 135-142.
 - McRae, K. N. and Love, Sandra G., "Aggressive Behavior in Preschool Child." Journal of Pediatrics, 1968, 72, 821-828.
 - Moore, Shirley G., "Displaced Aggression in Young Children." Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1964, 68,200-204.
- 17 Morris, H. H., Escoll, P. J. and Wexler, R., "Aggressive Behavior Disorders of Childhood: A Follow-up Study." American Journal of Psychiatry, 1956, 112, 991-997."
 - Muste, Myra J. and Sharpe, Doris F., "Some Influential Factors in the Determination of Aggressive Behavior in Preschool Children." Child Development, 1947, 18, 11-28.
 - 9 Nelsen, E. A., "Social Reinforcement for Expression vs. Suppression of Aggression." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1969, 5, 259-278.
 - Nelson, Janice D., Gelfand, Donna M. and Hartmann, Donald P., "Children's Aggression Following Competition and Exposure to an Aggressive Model." Child Development, 1969, 40, 1085-1097.
- 12 Noshpitz, Joseph D. and Spielman, Philip, 'Diagnosis: Study of the Differential Characteristics of Hyperaggressive Children." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1961, 31, 111-122.



- 3 Overholt, Thomas W. and Schenk, Ambrose P., "Violence and Human Values: The Implications of an Interdisciplinary Seminar for Curriculum Revision." Journal of General Education, 1969, 21, 107-122.
 - Pastore, N., "The Role of Arbitrariness in the Frustration-aggression Hypothesis." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1952, 47, 728-731.
 - Patterson, G. R. and Cobb, J. A., "A Dyadic Analysis of Aggressive Behaviors." In J. H. Hill (Ed.), 1970 Minnesota Symposium on Child Psychology, Vol. V. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press, 1970.
 - Patterson, G. R., Cobb, J. A. and Ray, Roberta S. "A Social Engineering Technology for Retraining Aggressive Boys." In H. Adams and L. Unikel (Eds.), Georgia Symposium in Experimental Clinical Psychology, Vol. II. Elmsford, New York: Pergamon Press, 1970.
 - Patterson, Gerald R., Littman, Richard A. and Bricker, William, "Assertive Behavior in Children: A Step Toward a Theory of Aggression." Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, 1967, 32, No. 5 (Serial No. 113).
 - Patterson, G. R., Ludwig, M. and Sonada, Beverly, "Reinforcement of Aggression in Children." Unpublished Manuscript, University of Oregon, 1961.
- 12 Pearson, Gerald H., "The Chronically Aggressive Child." Quarterly Journal of Child Behavior, 1951, 3, 407-448.
- 14 Pittluck, P., "The Relation Between Aggressive Fantasy and Overt Behavior."
 Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, Yale University, 1950.
 - Rabkin, Leslie Y., "Passive Aggressiveness and Learning." <u>Exceptional</u> Children, 1965, 32, 1-3.
 - e Redl, Fritz and Wineman, David, <u>The Aggressive Child</u>. Glencoe, Illinois: Free Press, 1957.
 - Rexford, Eveoleen N., (Ed.) <u>A Developmental Approach to Problems of Acting</u>
 Out. New York: International Universities Press, 1966.
 - Ricketts, Agnes Fairlie, "A Study of the Behavior of Young Children in Anger."

 University of Iowa Studies in Child Welfare, 1934, 9, No. 3.
 - Schall, Mary H., "A Study of the Effects of Three Anthropomorphic Models on the Social Adjustment of Children With Specific Regard to Their Overt Aggression Contacts While at Play." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-A, 3039A-3040A.
- 24 Sears, Pauline S., "Doll Play Aggression in Normal Young Children: Influence of Sex, Age, Sibling Status, Father's Absence." Psychological Monographs, 1951, 65, 42.
 - Semler, I., Eron, L., Meyerson, L. J. and Williams, J. T., "Relationship of Aggression in Third-grade Children to Certain Pupil Characteristics."

 Psychology in the Schools, 1967, 4, 85-88.

- e Sheviakov, George, Anger in Children: Causes, Characteristics, and Considerations. Washington, D. C.: National Education Association, 1969.
 - Siegel, Alberta E. and Kohn, Lynette, G., "Permissiveness, Permission and Aggressions: The Effects of Adult Presence or Absence on Aggression in Children's Play." Child Development, 1959, 30, 131-141.
 - Thompson, George G., "The Social and Emotional Development of Preschool Children Under Two types of Education Program." <u>Psychological Monographs</u>, 1944, <u>56</u>, (Whole No. 258).
 - Ulrich, R. E. and Flavell, J., "Human Aggression." In C. Neuringer and J. Michael (Eds.), Behavior Modification in Clinical Psychology. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1970.
- e Ulrich, Roger and Wolf, Marshall, "Research and Theory on Aggression and Violence." Science Teacher, 1969, 36, 24-28.
- e "Violence and Aggression." (Various Authors). <u>Today's Education</u>, 1969, <u>58</u>, entire issue.
 - Walters, Richard A. and Brown, Murray, "Studies of Reinforcement of Aggression: IV. Transfer of Responses to an Interpersonal Situation." Child Development, 1965, 36, 563-571.
 - Williams, Christene B. and Vantress, Florence E. "Relation Between Interna-External Control and Aggression." American Journal of Psychology, 1969, 71, 59-61.
 - Williams, J. F., Meyerson, L. J., Eron, L. D. and Semler, I. J., "Peer-rated Aggression and Aggressive Responses Elicited in an Experimental Situation." <u>Child Development</u>, 1967, 38, 181-190.
- e Wolfson, Bernice and Jackson, Philip W., "An Intensive Look at the Daily Experiences of Young Children." Research in Education, 1969, 2, 1-12.
 - Worchel, P., "Hostility: Theory and Experimental Investigation." In Dorothy Willner (Ed.), <u>Decisions</u>, <u>Values and Grousp</u>, <u>Vol. I</u>. New York: Pergamon, 1960.

23

21 Zunich, Michael, "Children's Reactions to Failure." <u>Journal of Genetic</u>
Psychology, 1964, 104, 19-24.



Section 5:

ALTRUISM, COMPETITION, COOPERATION AND SHARING

References dealing with the four interrelated topics of "altruism," "competition," "cooperation" and "sharing" are found in this section of the bibliography. Altruism signifies self-sacrificing generosity; competition refers to vying with others for some valued position, honor or possession; cooperation is indicated by working with others toward the accomplishment of a common goal; and sharing is revealed by temporarily or permanently giving away part but not all of one's possessions. (For relevant references on other topics the reader may refer to section 8: Unaracter and Moral Development; section 25: Social Behavior; and section 27: Social Science Education - Developments Relevant to the Affective Domain.)

- Aronfreed, J. and Paskal, V., "Altruism, Empathy, and the Conditioning of Positive Affect." Unpublished Manuscript, University of Pennsylvania, 1965.
- Azrin, Nathan A. and Lindsley, Ogden R., "The Reinforcement of Cooperation Between Children." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1956, 2, 100-102.
- Baldwin, Clara P. and Baldwin, Alfred L., "Children's Judgments of Kindness." Child Development, 1970, 41, 29-47.
- Bryan, James H. and London, Perry, "Altruistic Behavior in Children." Psychological Bulletin, 1970, 73, 200-211.
- e Carlson, Thelma, "The Sharing Period in the First Grade." <u>Elementary</u> <u>English</u>, 1966, 43, 612-614, 618. (Also ED 025-501).
- 25 Damrin, D. E., "The Russell Sage Social Relations Test: A Technique for Measuring Group Problem Solving Skills in Elementary School Children." <u>Journal of Experimental Education</u>, 1959, 28, 85-99.
 - 5 Darlington, R. B. and Macker, C. E., "Displacement of Guilt-produced Altruistic Behavior." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1966, 4, 442-443.
 - Dollard, Dilman J. and Adelberg, Kathryn, "The Learning of Sharing Behavior." Child Development, 1967, 35, 695-700.



- e Eiffermann, R. R., "Free Social Play: A Guide to Directed Playing." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education:

 Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development (DHEW).
 - Fischer, W. F., "Sharing in Preschool Children as a Function of Amount and Type of Reinforcement." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1963, 68, 215-245.
 - Fry, C. L., "A Developmental Examination of Performance in a Tacit Coordination Game Situation." Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1967, 5, 277-281.
- 25 Goldberg, M. H. and Maccoby, E. E., "Children's Acquisition of Skill in Performing a Group Task Under Two Conditions of Group Formation."

 Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1965, 2, 898-902.
 - Graves, Elizabeth A. "A Study of Competitive and Cooperative Behavior by the Short Sample Technique." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1937, 32, 343-351.
 - Greenberg, Pearl J., "Competition in Children: An Experimental Study."

 American Journal of Psychology, 1932, 44, 221-248.
 - Handlon, Britomar J. and Gross, Patricia, "The Development of Sharing Behavior." Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1959, 59, 425-428.
 - Harris, Mary B., "Reciprocity and Generosity: Some Determinants of Sharing in Children." Child Development, 1970, 41, 313-328.
 - Rart, Betty M., et al., "Effect of Contingent and Non-Contingent Social Reinforcement on the Cooperative Play of a Preschool Child." <u>Journal of Applied Behavior Analysis</u>, 1968, <u>1</u>, 73-76.
 - e Meise, Bryan, <u>Effects of Instruction in Cooperation on the Attitudes and Conduct of Children</u>. An Arbor, Michigan: University of Michigan, 1942.
 - Isen, A. M. and Rosenhan, D. L., "Success, Failure and Altruistic Behavior."
 Unpublished Manuscript, Swarthmore College, 1969.
 - Krebs, Dennis L., "Altruism--an Examination of the Concept and a Review of the Literature." <u>Psychological Bulletin</u>, 1970, 73, 258-303.
 - Leeds, R., "Altruism and the Norm of Giving." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1963, 9, 229-240.
 - Lenrow, P. B., "Studies in Sympathy." In S. S. Tomkins and C. E. Izaad (Eds.), Affect, Cognition and Personality: Empirical Studies. New York: Springer, 1965.
 - Leuba, Clarence, "An Experimental Study of Rivalry in Young Children."

 Journal of Comparative Psychology, 1933, 16, 367-378.
 - Liebert, Robert M., Fernandez, Luis E. and Gill, Linda, "Effects of a 'Friendless' Model on Imitation and Prosocial Behavior." Psychonomic Science, 1969, 16, 81-82.



- Macaulay, J. and Berkowitz, L. M., (Eas.) Altruism and Helping Behavior.

 New York: Academic Press, 1970.
- Madsen, M. C. and Shapira, A., "Cooperation and Competitive Behavior of Urban Afro-American, Anglo-American, Mexican-American, and Mexican Village Children." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1970, <u>3</u>, 16-20.
- McClintock, C. G. and Mattin, J. M., Jr., "Development of Competitive Game Behavior in Children Across Two Cultures." <u>Journal of Experimental Social Psychology</u>, 1969, 5, 203-218.
- Midlarsky, E., "Aiding Responses: An Analysis and Review." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1968, 14, 229-260.
- Midlarsky, E. and Bryan, J. H., "Training Charity in Children." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1967, 5, 408-415.
- Mithaug, Dennis E., "The Development of Cooperation in Alternative Task Situations." Journal of Experimental Child Psychology, 1969. 8, 443-460.
- Mithaug, Dennis E. and Burgess, Robert L., "The Effects of Different Reinforcement Contingencies in the Development of Social Cooperation." <u>Journal of Experimental Child Psychology</u>, 1968, 6, 402-426.
- Nelson, Janice D., Gelfand, Donna M. and Hartmann, Donald P., "Children's Aggression Following Competition and Exposure to an Aggressive Model." Child Development, 1969, 40, 1085-1097.
- Nelson, L. and Madsen, M. C., "Cooperation and Competition in 4-year-olds as a Function of Reward Contingency and Subculture." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1969, 1, 340-344.
- O'Connell, E. J., Jr., "The Effect of Cooperation and Competitive Set on the Learning of Imitiation and Nonimitation." <u>Journal of Experimental and Social Psychology</u>, 1965, <u>1</u>, 172-183.
- Owens, Kenneth L., "Competition in Children as a Function of Age, Race, Sex, and Socio-economic Status." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-B, 3873-B.
- Presbie, Robert J. and Kanareff, Vera T., "Sharing in Children as a Function of the Number of Sharees and Reciprocity." The Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1970, 116, 31-44.
- Rosenhan, David, "Some Origins of Concern for Others." In P. A. Mussen, J. Langor and M. Covington (Eds.), <u>Trends and Issues in Developmental Psychology</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
- e Rosenhan, David, "The Kindnesses of Children." Young Children, 1969, 25, 30-44.
- Rosenhan, David, "The Naturalistic Socialization of Altruistic Autonomy."
 In J. Macaulay and L. Berkowitz (Eds.), Altruism and Helping. New
 York: Academic Press, in press.



- Rosenhan, David, Frederick, F. and Burrowes, A., "Preaching and Practicing: Effects of Channel Discrepancy on Norm Internalization." Child Development, 1968, 39, 291-302.
- Rosenhan, David and White, G. M., "Observation and Rehearsal as Determinants of Prosocial Behavior." Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1967, 5, 424-431.
 - Rutherford, Eldred and Mussen, Paul, "Generosity in Nursery School Boys." Child Development, 1968, 39, 755-765.
 - Rychlak, J. F., "A Sociopsychological Theory of Performance in Competitive Situations." Human Relations, 1960, 13, 157-166.
 - Sawyer, J., "The Altruism Scale: A Measure of Cooperative, Individualistic, and Competitive Interpersonal Orientation." American Journal of Sociology, 1966, 71, 407-416.
 - Schaffer, Susan A., "Altruistic Behavior in Children as a Function of Differential Characteristics of the Object of Help." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 30-A, 2153A-2154A.
 - Shapira, A. and Madsen, M. C., "Cooperative and Competitive Behavior of Kibbutz and Urban Children in Israel." Child Development, 1969, 40, 609-618.
 - Simon, Norma P., "The Effects of Cooperation and Competition on Intentional and Incidental Learning." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 3474A-3475A.
 - Staub, Ervin, "The Effects of Success and Failure on Children's Sharing Behavior." Paper presented at the 39th annual meeting of the Eastern Psychological Association, Washington, D. C., April, 1968.
 - Staub, Ervin, "A Child in Distress: The Effect of Focusing Responsibility on Children on Their Attempts to Help." Developmental Psychology, 1970, 2, 152-153.
 - Staub, Ervin and Sherk, Linda, "Need for Approval, Children's Sharing Behavior and Reciprocity in Sharing." Child Development, 1970, 41, 243-252.
 - Stendler, C. B., Damrin, D. and Haines, A. C., "Studies in Cooperation and Competition: I. The Effects of Working for Group and Individual Rewards on the Social Climate of Children's Groups." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1951, 79, 173-198.
 - Stith, M. and Connor, R., "Dependency and Helpfulness in Young Children." Child Development, 1962, 33, 15-20.
 - Sutton-Smith, B. and Roberts, J. M., "Rubrics of Competitive Behavior." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1964, 105, 13-37.
- e Tallmon, Violet, "Gift-making for and by Children." Childhood Education, 1968, 45, 136.



- Turner, W. D., "Altruism and It's Measurement in Children." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1948, 43, 502-516.
- Walbek, W., "Charitable Cognitions and Actions: A Study of the Concurrent Elicitation of Children's Altruistic Thoughts and Deeds." Unpublished Master's Thesis, Northwestern University, 1969.
- Ware, Catherine K., "Cooperation and Competition in Children: A Developmental Study of Behavior in Prisoner's Dilemma and Maximizing Differences Games." Dissertation Abstracts, 1970, 30-B, 3857B-3858B.
- e Wehr, B., "The Lemonade Stand: What's Fair?" Chicago: Encyclopedia Britannica Education Corporation, 1970, (film).
 - Weingold, H. P. and Webster, R. L., "Effects of Punishment on a Cooperative Behavior in Children." Child Development, 1964, 35, 1211-1216.
 - Wolfe, D. L. and Wolfe, H. M., "The Development of Cooperative Behavior in Monkeys and Young Children." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1939, 55, 137-175.
 - Wright, B. A., 'Altruism in Children and Perceived Conduct of Others."

 Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1942, 37, 218-233.
 - Wright, L. A., "The Development of the Ideology of Altruism and Fairness in Children." Psychological Bulletin, 1942, 39, 485-486.
 - Zak, Jerzy, "Zadan nad rozwojem wspol dzialania dzieci wieku przedszkolym." (Studies of the Development of Interaction Among Preschool Children.) Psychologia Wychowawcza, 1968, 11, 75-85.



Section 6:

BIBLIOGRAPHIC COMPILATIONS RELEVANT TO THE AFFECTIVE DOMAIN

This section of the bibliography contains general, i.e., non-specific or wide ranging, references on recording, observing and assessing behaviors relevant to the affective Comain. It also contains references to other bibliographic compilations in this topic.

- Allen, C. N., "Bibliographies in Child Study and Developmental Psychology." Psychological Bulletin, 1931, 28, 277-296.
- e Beatty, Walcott H., (Ed.) Improving Educational Assessment and an Inventory of Measures of Affective Behavior. Washington, D. C.: Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development, 1969.
- e <u>Bibliography of Studies in Urban Education</u>. New York: Teachers College Press, Columbia University, 1968.
 - Boger, Robert P. and Knight, Sarah S., "Social-emotional Task Force. Final Report." Report from the Michigan State University Head Start Evaluation and Research Center for the Office of Economic Opportunity, 1969, (ED 033-744).
 - Brackbill, Y., Research in Infant Behavior: A Cross-indexed Bibliography.

 Baltimore: Williams and Wilkins, 1964.
 - Cervenka, Edward J., "Administration Manual for the Inventory of Socialization of Bilinqual Children Ages Three to Ten." (University of Texas, Austin), Child Development and Research Center Report Number 0E0-4115, 1968 (ED 027-062).
- e Conrad, H. S., <u>The California Behavior Inventory for Nursery School Children</u>. Berkeley, California: University of California Press, 1933.
- e Deal, Therry N. and Wood, Paul L. "Testing the Early Educational and Psychological Development of Children-Ages 3-6." Review of Educational Research, 1968, 38, 12-18.
 - Goodenough, Florence L., "Bibliographies in Child Development: 1931-1943." Psychological Bulletin, 1944, 41, 615-633.
- e Gordon, Ira J., Studying the Child in School. New York: John Wiley, 1966.
 - Hess, Robert D. and others, "Techniques for Assessing Cognitive and Social Abilities of Children and Parents in Project Head Start, 1966." (ED 015-772).
 - Hutt, S. J. and Hutt, C., <u>Direct Observation and the Measurement of Behavior</u>. Springfield, Illinois: Charles Thomas, 1970.

29



- e Jacobs, James N. and Felix, Joseph L., "Testing the Educational and Psychological Development of Preadolescent Children--Ages 6-12."

 Review of Educational Research, 1968, 38, 19-28.
 - Katz, Lilian G., Peters, Donald L. and Stein, Nancy S., "Observing Behavior in Kindergarten and Preschool Classes." Childhood Education, 1968, 44, 400.
 - Merchant, Marion J., "A Statistical Analysis of a Behavior Check List."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29-B, 1846-B.
 - Mischel, Walter, Personality and Assessment. New York: Wiley, 1968.
 - Moreno, Steve G., "The Dimensions of Overt Behavior in Kindergarten Boys." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 28-A, 2562A-2563A.
 - Palmer, James O., <u>The Psychological Assessment of Children</u>. New York: Wiley, 1970.
 - Preschool Education, a Selected Bibliography. New York: Yeshiva University, 1967, (ED 012-293).
 - Pronko, N. H., "Biotelemetry in Child Study." <u>Journal of Experimental Child Psychology</u>, 1969, 1, 136-142.
 - Rabin, Albert I. and Haworth, Mary R., Projective Techniques With Children. New York: Grune and Stratton, 1960.
 - Ross, Alan O., Lacey, Harvey M. and Parton, David A., "The Development of a Behavior Check List for Boys." Child Development, 1965, 36, 1013-1027.
 - Shure, Myrna B., "Psychological Ecology of a Nursery School." Child Development, 1963, 34, 979-992.
 - Willems, E. P., "Toward an Explicit Rationale for Naturalistic Research Methods." Human Development, 1967, 10, 133-154.
- e Wilson, J. A. R. and Robeck, M. C., An Introduction to KELP. New York: McGraw-Hill, Webster Division, 1967.
- e Wright, H. F., <u>Recording and Analyzing Child Behavior</u>. New York: Harper and Row, 1966.



Section 7:

BOOKS, STORY TELLING, FILMS AND TELEVISION IN AFFECTIVE DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATION

Young children can be influenced in their affective development by several kinds of specialized materials and procedures, four of which are considered in this section. This section contains several general references regarding children's books and more specific references dealing with the use and effects of books, story telling, films and television in early childhood affective education. Persons interested in the design of innovative affective curriculum programs may be particularly interested in this section. (Closely related topics are covered in section 15: Games, Game Behavior and Materials; and section 22: Role Play, Drama, Puppet Show and Group Discussions.)

- 8, Abel, Louise W., "Social and Moral Values Presented in Children's Textbooks."

 3 Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 27-A, 695A-696A.
 - American Friends Service Committee and Anti-defamation League of B'nai B'rith. Books for Friendship, 1962, (American Friends Service Committee, 160 N. 15th Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, 19102).
 - Appleberry, Mary H., "A Study of the Effect of Bibliotherapy on Third-grade Children Using a Master List of Titles from Children's Literature."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 2718-A.
- Bacmeister, Rhoda, "Helps in Selecting Books for Young Children." Young Children, 1964, 20, 64.
- 23. Banks, Thomas M., "The Effects of Special Instruction Television Programming on the Attitudinal Changes and the Self-concept of Culturally Disadvantaged Students." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 30-A, 1853A-1854A.
 - e Bone, Robert, "Using Literature to Extend Children's Experiences." Elementary English, 1959, 36, 314-318.
 - e Borton, T. and Mark and Lynn, <u>My Books</u>. (20 Volumes). New York: Scholastic Books Service, 1970.
 - e Brown, D. W., "A Selected Bibliography of Professional Materials Dealing With Children's Literature." <u>Elementary English</u>, 1969, 46, 334-341.
 - Bryan, James H. and Schwartz, Tanis, "The Effects of Film Material Upon Behavior." Psychological Bulletin,



- e Burgess, Bonita G., "A Bibliography." Philadelphia: The School District of Philadelphia, 1970. (The Intensive Learning Center, Philadelphia Public Schools, Fifth and Luzerne Streets, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, 19140).
 - Chambers, Dewey W., "An Exploratory Study of Social Values in Children's Literature. <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 26, 4324.
 - Child, I. L., Potter, E. H. and Leve, E. M., "Children's Textbooks and Personality Development: An Exploration in the Social Psychology of Education. Psychological Monographs, 1946, 60, (Whole No. 279).
- e Cianciolo, Patricia J., "Children's Literature Can Affect Coping Behavior."

 The Personnel and Guidance Journal, 1965, 43, 897-903.
- e Comer, Dorothea, "Using Literature to Extend Children's Experiences."
 Elementary English, 1959, 36, 28-34.
 - deCharms, Richard and Moeller, Gerald H., "Values Expressed in American Children's Readers: 1800-1950." Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1962, 64, 136-142.
 - Duncker, K., "Experimental Modification of Children's Food Preferences
 Through Social Suggestion." Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology,
 1938, 33, 489-507.
- e Eakin, Mary K., (Ed.) Good Books for Children. (3rd Ed.). Chicago: University of Chicago, 1966. (Phoenix Edition).
- e Egoff, S., Stubbs, G. T. and Ashley, L., (Eds.) Only Current: Readings in Children's Literature. New York: Oxford, 1969.
 - Elkins, Hilda A., "An Analysis of the Social and Ethnic Attributes of the Characters in Children's Books Which Have Won Awards." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-A, 3359-A.
 - Fassler, Joan, <u>Illustrated Books for Children 4 to 8 on Psychologically</u>
 <u>Relevant Themes</u>. Morningside Heights, New York: Behavioral Publications
 (Subsidiary of Human Sciences), 1969-70, in press.
- 4 Feshbach, Seymour, "Effects of Exposure to Aggressive Content in Television Upon Aggression in Boys." Report submitted to the Joint Committee for Research on Television and Children, 1967.
 - Fischer, Laurel J., "Emotional Needs of Children as a Basis for Reading Guidance." Unpublished Master's Thesis, Graduate Library School, Kent State University, 1956.
- e Foster, Florence P., "Literature and the Young Child." New Jersey State Department of Education, Trenton, 1967, (ED 028-828).
- e Gibson, John S., A Program for Elementary School Education: The Intergroup Relations Curriculum; Volumes I and II, 1969. (ED 030-605). (Also available for \$5.00 from Lincoln Filene Center for Citizenship and Public Affairs; Tufts University; Medford, Massachusetts, 02155).



- e Guilfoile, Elizabeth, Adventuring With Books: A Book List for Elementary Schools. New York: New American Library, 1966.
- e Grambs, Jean D., <u>Intergroup Education</u>: <u>Methods and Materials</u>. <u>Englewood</u>
 22 Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall Inc., 1968.
- e Haviland, Virginia, Children's Literature, a Guide to Reference Sources.
 Washington, D. C.: Library of Congress, 1966.
 - Heil, Lillian H., "Wonder Tales in Social Studies Programs in the Primary Grades." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-A, 2376A-2377A.
 - Holiday, P. W. and Stoddard, G. P., Getting Ideas From Movies. New York: Macmillan, 1933.
 - John, Vera P. and Berney, Toni D., "Analysis of Story Retelling as a Measure of the Effects of Ethnic Content in Stories." In J. Hellmuth (Ed.),

 <u>Disadvantaged Child. Volume 2</u>. Seattle: Special Child Publications,
 1968.
- e Joint Council on Economic Education. Learning Economics Through Children's Stories, Bibliography for Grades K-3. New York: Joint Council on Economic Education, 1969. (Available at \$1.00 from: Joint Council on Economic Education, 1212 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York, 10036.)
- e Kircher, Clara J., <u>Behavior Patterns in Children's Books: A Bibliography</u>. Washington, D. C.: Catholic University of America, 1966.
 - Litcher, J. H. and Johnson, D. W., "Changes in Attitudes Toward Negroes of White Elementary School Students After Use of Multiethnic Readers."

 Journal of Educational Psychology, 1969, 60, 148-152.
- e "Magic Moments." Chicago: Encyclopedia Britannica Educational Corporation, (Film Series).
- e <u>Making It Strange</u>. New York: Harper and Row, 1968. (A four-book series written for children.)
- e "Mixie the Pixie." Indianapolis: George F. Cram. (Series of chart stories with accompanying acetate pads and grease pencils.)
- e National Education Association. <u>Unfinished stories for use in the classroom from the NEA Journal</u>. Washington, D. C.: NEA Publication-Sales Section, 1966 and 1968.
- e New York State Education Department, <u>Intergroup Relations</u>. Albany: The University of the State of New York, 1964, (ED 030-605).
 - O'Conner, Robert D., 'Modification of Social Withdrawal Through Symbolic Modeling." <u>Journal of Applied Behavior</u>, 1969, <u>2</u>, 15-22.
- e Pitcher, Evelyn G., "Values and Issues in Young Children's Literature." Elementary English, 1969, 46, 287-294.



- Ponder, Virginia B., "An Investigation of the Effects of Bibliotherapy and Teachers' Sefl-other Acceptance on Pupils' Self-Acceptance and Reading Achievement Scores." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 2900A-2901A.
- e Pophom, W. J. and Baker, Eva L., Rules for the Development of Instructional Products. Inglewood, California: Southwest Regional Laboratory for Educational Research and Development, 1967.
- e Rasmussen, Margaret, (Ed.) <u>Literature With Children</u>. Washington, D. C.: Association for Childhood Education International, 1961.
- e Robinson, Evelyn R., Reading About Children's Literature. New York: David McKay, 1966.
- e Rosenfeld, Harriet, Books to enhance the Self-Image of the Negro Children, 1966, (ED 011-904).
- e Science Research Associates, <u>Our Working World Grades 1-3</u>, <u>Underlying Concept Unlimited Wants Versus Limited Resources</u>. Palo Alto, California: Palo Alto.
- e Spoerl, Dorothy T., (Ed.) <u>Tensions Our Children Live With: Stories For Discussion</u>. Boston: Beacon Press, 1962.
- e Straus, David A., Thorsen, R. C. and Thorsen, Ruth E., <u>Tools for Change: A Basic Course in Problem Solving</u>. Interaction, Inc., Berkeley, California, 1969.
- e Sunderlin, Sylvia and Wills, Brooke, <u>Bibliography of Books for Children</u>.

 Washington, D. C.: Association for Childhood Education International, 1968.
 - Talbert, Elmer G., "Story Preferences: A Technique for Assessing Children's Motives." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29 (3-A), 821.
- e Wehr, Barbara, "The Lemonade Stand: What's Fair?" Chicago: Encyclopedia Britannica Educational Corporation, 1970. (Film).
- e Whitehead, R., Children's Literature: Strategies of Teaching. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1968.
- e Witty, Paul, "Children of the Television Era." Elementary English, 1967, 44, 528-535.
 - Yasmin, Feroza, "Creating Stories for Children in Pakistan." <u>Dissertation</u>
 Abstracts, 1966, 26, 5926-5927.
 - Zimet, C. F., "A Sociological Review of the Context of American Elementary Reading Textbooks: 1600-1967." <u>Teacher's College Record</u>, in press. (Columbia Univ., New York).



Section 8:

CHARACTER AND MORAL DEVELOPMENT

This section contains references dealing with such topics as: stages in the growth and elaboration of ethical beliefs, judgments and decision making processes; conscience superego, shame and guilt; patterns of self-criticism and self-reward; cheating and resistance to temptation; and religious education, character education and beliefs in early childhood education. (Closely related topics may be found in section 5: Altruism, competition, cooperation and sharing; section 9: Classroom Management, Teacher Given Guidance and Discipline; section 12: Differentiation and Identification of Healthful and Normal Patterns of Early Child Behavior, section 19: Parental and Home Influences on Affective Development; and section 27: Social Science Education - Developments Relevant to the Affective Domain.

- Aiken, H. D., "Moral Philosophy and Education." <u>Harvard Educational Review</u>, 1955, <u>25</u>, 50-59.
- Allen, Mary K. and Liebert, Robert M., "Children's Adoption of Self-Reward Patterns: Model's Prior Experience and Incentive for Nonimitation."

 <u>Child Development</u>, 1969, 40, 921-926.
- Allinsmith, W., 'Moral Standards: II. The Learning of Moral Standards."

 In D. R. Miller and G. E. Swanson (Eds.), <u>Inner Conflict and Defense</u>.

 New York: Holt, 1960.
- Armsby, Richard E., "A Re-examination of the Moral Judgments of Children."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29, 3929-3930.
- Aronfreed, J., "The Origin of Self-Criticism." <u>Psychological Review</u>, 1964, 71, 193-218.
- Aronfreed, J., <u>Conduct and Conscience</u>: <u>The Socialization of Internalized</u>
 <u>Control over Behavior</u>. New York: Academic Press, 1968.
- Aronfreed, J., "The Concept of Internalization." In D. A. Goslin (Ed.),

 <u>Handbook of Socialization Theory and Research</u>. Chicago: Rand McNally,
 1969.
- Ausubel, David P., "Relationships Between Shame and Guilt in the Socializing Process." <u>Psychological Review</u>, 1955, 62, 378-390.

35



- Bandura, A., "Social Learning of Moral Judgments." <u>Journal of Personality</u> and <u>Social Psychology</u>, 1969, 11, 275-279.
- Bandura, A., Grusec, J. E. and Menlove, F. L., "Some Social Determinants of Self-Monitoring Reinforcement Systems." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1967, 5, 449-455.
- Bandura, A. and Kupers, Carol J., "Transmission of Patterns of Self-Reinforcement Through Modeling." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1964, 69, 1-9.
- Bandura, A. and McDonald, F. J., "The Influence of Social Reinforcement and the Behavior of Models in Shaping Children's Moral Judgments." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1963, 67, 274-281.
- Bandura, A. and Perloff, B., "Relative Efficacy of Self-Monitored and Externally Imposed Reinforcement Systems."

 <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1967, 7, 111-116.
- Bandura, A. and Whalen, C. K., "The Influence of Antecedent Reinforcement and Divergence of Modeling Cues on Patterns of Self-Reward." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1966, 3, 373-382.
- Barbu, Z., "Studies in Children's Honesty." Quarterly Bulletin of British Psychology and Sociology, 1951, 2, 53-57.
- Blatt, M., "The Effects of Classroom Discussion Programs Upon Children's Level of Moral Judgment." Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, University of Chicago, 1969.
- 20 Bobroff, Allen, "The Stages of Maturation in Socialized Thinking and in the Ego Development of Two Groups of Children. Child Development, 1960, 31, 321-338.
 - Boehm, Leonore, "The Development of Conscience: A Comparison of Students in Catholic Parochial Schools and in Public Schools." Child Development, 1962, 33, 591-602.
 - Boehm, Leonore, "Moral Judgment: A Cultural and Subcultural Comparison With Some of Piaget's Research Conclusions." <u>International Journal of Psychology</u>, 1966, 1, 143-150.
 - Boehm, Leonore and Nass, Martin L., "Social Class Differences in Conscience Development." Child Development, 1962, 33, 565-574.
 - Borishevsky, M. I., "Characteristics of Children's Attitude Toward Rules of Conduct in Game Situations." <u>Voprosy Psikhologii</u>, 1965, 4, 44-54.
 - Boydston, E. H., "Concepts of Good and Bad Behavior of Negro and White Kindergarten Children and Their Parents." Unpublished M.S. Thesis, University of California, Berkeley, 1955.
 - Bozhovich, L. I., "The Personality of Schoolchildren and Problems of Ecuation." In Michael Cole and Irving Maltzman (Eds.), <u>A Handbook of Contemporary Soviet Psychology</u>. New York: Basic Books, 1969.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

- Breznitz, S. and Kugelmass, S., "Intentionality in Moral Judgment: Developmental Stages." Child Development, 1967, 38, 469-479.
- Britton, J. H., Eritton, Jean O. and Fisher, Carol F., "Perceptions of Children's Moral and Emotional Behavior: A Comparison of Finnish and American Children." Human Development, 1969, 12, 55-63.
- Bronfenbrenner, Urie, "The Role of Age, Sex, Class, and Culture in Studies of Moral Development." Religious Education Research Supplement, 1962, 57, S3-S17.
 - Bronfenbrenner, Urie, "Soviet Methods of Character Education: Some Implications for Research." American Fsychologist, 1962, 17, 550-564.
 - Brown, Roger, "The Acquisition of Morality." In the Author's <u>Social</u> Psychology. New York: The Free Press, 1965.
 - Burch, Barbara A., "Dishonesty as Expressed in the Attitudes and Behavioral Responses of Elementary and Secondary School Children in the Classroom Testings Situation." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 29-A, 1671-A.
 - Burton, R. V., "The Generality of Honesty Reconsidered." <u>Psychological</u> Review, 1963, 70, 481-499.
 - Burton, Roger V., Allinsmith, Wesley and Maccoby, Eleanor E., "Resistance to Temptation in Relation to Sex of Child, Sex of Experimenter, and Withdrawal of Attention." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1966, 3, 244-258.
 - Burton, R. V., Maccoby, Eleanor and Allinsmith, W., "Antecedents of Resistance to Temptation in Four-year-old Children." Child Development, 1961, 22, 689-710.
- 9 Carpenter, K. Patricia, "Some Effects of the Guilt Motive on Learning and Behavior in Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-B, 4754-B.
 - Cheyne, J. Allen, Goyeche, John R. and Walters, Richard H., "Attention, Anxiety, and Rules in Resistance-to-deviation in Children." Journal of Experimental Child Psychology, 1969, 8, 127-139.
- 7 Cowan, P. A., Langer, J., Heavenrich, J. and Nathanson, M., "Social Learning and Piaget's Cognitive Theory of Moral Development." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1969, 11, 261-274.
 - Crowley, Paul M., "Effect of Training Upon Objectivity of Moral Judgment in Grade-school Children." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1968, 8, 228-232.
 - Cutler, Beverly L., "Consequences of Brief Periods of Nurturance on Children's Resistance to Temptation." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, <u>27-A</u>, 3219A-3220A.
 - Danziger, K., "The Development of Children's Economic Concepts." <u>Journal</u> of Genetic Psychology, 1958, 47, 231-240.



- Dilling, Carole A., "A Study of Moral Orientation in Relation to the Piagetian Concept of Egocentrism." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 28-B, 1693B-1694B.
- e Dreeben, R., "The Contribution of Schooling to the Learning of Norms."

 Harvard Educational Review, 1967, 37, 211-237.
 - Durkin, Dolores, "Sex Differences in Children's Concepts of Justice." Child Development, 1960, 31, 361-368.
 - Durkin, Dolores, "The Specificity of Children's Moral Judgments." <u>Journal</u> of Genetic Psychology, 1961, 98, 3-13.
 - Dworkin, Earl S., "The Effects of Imitation, Reinforcement, and Cognitive Information on the Moral Judgments of Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29, 365-366.
 - Eberhart, John C., "Attitudes foward Property: A Genetic Study by the Paired-Comparisons Rating of Offenses." The Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1942, 60, 3-35.
 - Einhorn, Jane W., "The Relationship Between Small Group Ties and the Development of Cheating." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, <u>28-A</u>, 4705A-4706A.
 - El'konin, D. B., "Some Results of the Study of the Psychological Development of Preschool-age Children." In Michael Cole and Irving Matlzman (Eds.), A Handbook of Contemporary Soviet Psychology. New York: Basic Books, 1969.
 - Faigin, Helen, "The Frequency and Types of Rules Used by Preschool Children in their Social Interactions." Unpublished M.A. Thesis, State University, Iowa, 1948.
 - Fenyes, Cecile, "Moral Judgment and Situations' Appropriateness for Self-Blame and Resistance to Temptation." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 28-B, 1682B-1683B.
- e Foster, C. J., <u>Developing Responsibility in Children</u>. Chicago: Science Research Associates, 1953.
 - Freud, Sigmund, The Ego and the Id. New York: W. W. Norton, 1960.
 - Freud, Sigmund, Three Essays on the Theory of Secuality. Translated and newly edited by James Strachey. New York: Basic Books, 1962.
 - Freud, Sigmund, The Sexual Enlightenment of Children. New York: Collier, 1963.
 - Ganley, Barbara D., "Sex Roles and Differences in Moral Behavior." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29, 755.
 - Gersten, Leon, "Cultural Presses and the Development of Moral Judgments."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 26, 4444.
 - Gilliland, Steve F., "The Learning of Moral Values." Provo Papers, 1967, (Summer) 132-160.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERI

- Goldiamond, I., "Moral Behavior: A Functional Analysis." Psychology Today, 1968, 2, 31-34.
- Goldman, R., Religious Thinking From Childhood to Adolescence. Routledge and Kegan Paul, Ltd., 1964.
- Gouldner, A. W., "The Norm of Reciprocity. A Preliminary Statement."

 American Sociological Review, 1960, 25, 161-178.
- Grim, P., Kohlberg, L. and White, S., "Some Relationships Between Conscience and Attentional Processes." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1968, 8, 239-252.
- Grinder, R. W., "Relations Between Behavioral and Cognitive Dimensions of Conscience in Middle Childhood." Child Development, 1964, 35, 881-891.
- Grusec, Joan, "Some Antecedents of Self-Criticism." <u>Journal of Personality</u> and Social Psychology, 1966, 4, 244-252.
- Gump, Paul V. and Kounin, Jacob S., 'Milieu Influences in Children's Concepts of Misconduct." Child Development, 1961, 32, 711-720.
- Hardeman, Annie M., "Children's Moral Reasoning." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, <u>28-B</u>, 2126-B.
- Harris, D. B., Clark, K. E., Rose, A. M. and Valasek, F., "The Relationship of Children's Home Duties to an Attitude of Responsibility." Child Development, 1954, 24, 29-33.
- Harris, Helena, "Development of Moral Attitudes in White and Negro Loys."

 <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1970, 2, 376-383.
- Hartshorne, H. and May, M. A., Studies in the Nature of Character. New York: Macmillan, 1928.
- Hartshorne, H. and May, M. A., "A Summary of the Work of the Character Education Inquiry." Religious Education, 1930, 25, 607-619.
- Hartshorne, H., May, M. A. and Maller, J. B., Studies in the Nature of Character: Vol. 2. Studies in Service and Self-Control. New York: Macmillan, 1929.
- Hartshorne, H., May, M. A. and Shuttleworth, F. K., Studies in the Nature of Character: Vol. 3. Studies in the Organization of Character. New York: Macmillan, 1930.
- Herbert, Emily W., Gelfand, Donna M. and Hartmann, Donald P., "Imitation and Self-Esteem as Determinants of Self-Critical Behavior." Child Development, 1969, 40, 421-430.
- Hill, J. P. and Kochendorfer, R. A., "Knowledge of Peer Success and Risk of Detection as Determinants of Cheating." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1969, 1, 231-238.
- Hill, W. F., "Learning Theory and the Acquisition of Values." Psychological Review, 1960, 67, 317-331.



- Hoffman, M., (Ed.) Moral Character and Moral Processes: A Symposium. Chicago: Aldine, 1968.
- Hoffman, M., "Moral Development." In P. Mussen (Ed.), Manual of Child Psychology. New York: Wiley, 1970.
- Jensen, Larry C. and Larm, Charlene, "Effects of Two Training Programs on Intentionality in Moral Judgments Among Children." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1970, 2, 310.
- Johnson, Ronald C., "A Study of Children's Moral Judgments." Child Development, 1962, 33, 327-354.
- Johnson, Ronald C., "Early Studies of Children's Moral Judgments." Child Development, 1962, 33, 603-605.
- Johnson, Ronald C. and Kalafat, J. D., "Projective and Sociometric Measures of Conscience Development." Child Development, 1969, 40, 651-656.
- Jones, Laurel A., "A Comparison of the Effects of Reward and Punishment Upon the Development of Self-Control." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 26, 6849.
- e Kandel, I. L., "Character Formation: A Historical Perspective." The Educational Forum, 1960-61, 25, 307-316.
 - Kanfer, F. H. and Duerfeldt, P. H., "Age, Class Standing, and Commitment as Determinants of Cheating in Children." Child Development, 1968, 39, 545-558.
 - Kaplan, Louise J., "The Relationship Between the Child's Responses to Frustration and His Moral Judgment." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 27-B, 2859B-2860B.
- e Kohlberg, L., "Moral Education in the Schools: A Developmental View." The School Review, 1966, 74, 1-30.
- 7 Kohlberg, L., "The Child as a Moral Philosopher." <u>Psychology Today</u>, 1968, 2, 24-30.
- 7 Kohlberg, L., "Stage and Sequence: The Cognitive Developmental Approach to Socialization." In David Goslin (Ed.), <u>Handbook of Socialization</u>

 Theory and Research. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1969.
 - Kohlberg, L., <u>Stages in the Development of Moral Thought and Action</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, in press.
 - Kohlberg, L. and Kramer, R., "Continuities and Discontinuities in Childhood and Adult Moral Development." Human Development, 1969, 12, 93-120.
 - Kul'chitskaya, E. I., "The Feeling of Conscience and Its Development in Preschool Age Children." Voprosy Psikhologii, 1966, 1, 116-125.
 - Lee, Lee C., "The Concomitant Development of Cognit ve and Moral Modes of Thought: A Test of Selected Deductions From Piaget's Theory."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29-B, 1836-B.



- Lickona, Thomas, "Piaget Misunderstood: A Critique of the Criticisms of His Theory of Moral Development." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1969, 15, 337-350.
- Liebert, Robert M. and Ora, John P., Jr., "Children's Adoption of Self-Reward Patt.: Incentive Level and Method of Transmission." Child Development, 1968, 39, 537-544.
- Liebert, Robert M., Hanratty, Margaret and Hill, Jae H., "Effects of Rule Structure and Training Method on the Adoption of a Self-Imposed Standard." Child Development, 1969, 40, 93-101.
- Long, Diane G., "The Child's Concept of Prayer: A Developmental Study." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 27-B, 4562B-4563B.
- 7 Luria, Zelda, "Response to Transgression in Stories by Israeli Children." Child Development, 1963, 34, 271-280.
 - Maccoby, Eleanor E., "The Development of Moral Values and Behavior in Childhood." In John A. Clausen (Ed.), Socialization and Society. Boston: Little, Brown, 1968.
 - MacRae, Duncan, "A Test of Piaget's Theories of Moral Development." <u>Journal</u> of <u>Abnormal</u> and <u>Social Psychology</u>, 1954, 49, 14-18.
 - Malmquist, Carl P., "Conscience Development." The Psychose lytic Study of the Child, 1968, 23, 301-331.
 - McDonald, Frederick, J., "Children's Judgments of Theft I on Individual and Corporate Owners." Child Development, 1963, 34, 141-130.
 - McMichael, Robert E. and Grincer, Robert E., "Children's Guilt After Transgression: Combined Effect of Exposure to American Culture and Ethnic Background." Child Development, 1966, 37, 425-431.
 - Medinnus, Gene R., "Age and Sex Differences in Conscience Development."

 Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1966, 109, 117-118.
 - Merchant, Rebecca L., "Effects of Participation in Rule-Formation on the Moral Judgment of Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 30-B, 2406B-2407B.
 - Minturn, Leigh and Lewis, Merrilee, "Age Differences in Peer Ratings of Socially Desirable and Socially Undesirable Behavior." Psychological Reports, 1968, 23, 783-791.
 - Mischel, W. and Liebert, R. M., "Effects of Discrepancies Between Observed and Reward Criteria on nheir Acquisition and Transmission." Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1966, 3, 45-53.
 - Mischel, W. and Liebert, R. M., "The Role of Power in the Adoption of Self-Reward Patterns." Child Development, 1967, 38, 673-683.
 - Montefiore, Alan, "Moral Philosophy and the Teaching of Morality." <u>Harvard</u>
 <u>Educational Review</u>, 1965, 35, 435-449.



- Nachamie, Susan S., "Machiavellianism in Children: The Children's Mach Scale and the Bluffing Game." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 4550A-4551A.
- Nass, Martin L., "Development of Conscience: A Comparison of the Moral Judgments of Deaf and Hearing Children." Child Development, 1964, 35, 1073-1080.
- Nechaev, V. G., Markova, T. A., Zhukovskaya, R. I. and Pen'evskaya, L. A., "Formirovanie Kollektivnykh Vzaimootnoshenii Detei Starshego Doshkol' nogo Vozrasta." (Formation of Collective Interrelationships of Older Preschool Children.) Moscow, USSR: Prosveshchenie, 1968.
- Nelsen, E. A., Grinder, R. E. and Mutterer, Marcia L., "Sources of Variance in Behavioral Measures of Honesty in Temptation Situations: Methodological Analyses." Developmental Psychology, 1969, 1, 265-279.
- O'Leary, K. Daniel, "The Effects of Self-Instruction on Immoral Behavior."

 Journal of Experimental Child Psychology, 1968, 6, 297-301.
- e O'Neill, W. F., "Existentialism and Education for Moral Choice." Phi Delta Kappan, 1964, 46, 48-53.
 - Parke, R. D., "Nurturance, Nurturance Withdrawal, and Resistance to Deviation." Child Development, 1967, 38, 1101-1110.
- e Peck, R. F. and Havighurst, R. J., The Psychology of Character Development.

 New York: Wiley, 1960.
- e Phenix, P. H., "The Religious Element in Education." Educational Forum, 1961, 26, 15-22.
 - Piaget, Jean, The Moral Judgment of the Child. New York: The Free Press, 1965.
 - Pittel, S. M. and Mendelsohn, G. A., "Measurement of Moral Values: A Raview and Critique." Psychological Bulletin, 1966, 66, 22-35.
 - Rest, J., Turiel, E. and Kohlberg, L., "Level of Moral Development as a Determinant of Preference and Comprehension of Moral Judgments Made by Others." Journal of Personality, 1969, 37, 225-252.
 - Rhine, R. J., Hill, S. J. and Wandruff, S. E., "Evaluative Responses of Preschool Children." Child Development, 1967, 38, 1035-1042.
 - Rosenhan, D., Frederick, F. and Burrowes, A., "Pre ching and Practicing: Effects of Channel Discrepancy on Norm Internalization." Child Development, 1968, 39, 291-302.
 - Ross, Dorothea and Ross, Sheila, "Leniency Toward Cheating in Preschool Children." Journal of Educational Psychology, 1969, 60, 483-487.
- 9 Saadatmand, Bijan, Jensen, Larry and Price, Alvin, "Nurturance, Nurturance Withdrawal, and Resistance to Temptation Among Three Age Groups."

 Developmental Psychology, 1970, 2, 450.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

- Selman, Robert L., "Role-Taking Ability and the Development of Moral Judgment." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 20-A, 2154-A.
- Shelton, J. and Hill, J. P., "Effects on Cheating of Achievement Anxiety and Knowledge of Peer Performance." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1969, 1, 449-455.
- Sherman, Alida W., "Some Correlates of Punitiveness Toward Peers in Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 28-B, 4764B-4765B.
- Shure, Myrna B., "Fairness, Generosity, and Selfishness: The Naive Psychology of Children and Young Adults." Child Development, 1968, 39, 875-886.
- e Sizer, T., (Ed.) Religion and Public Education. Boston: Houghton-Mifflin, 1967.
- e Smith, Henrietta T., 'Development of Conscience in the Preschool Child."

 Young Children, 1965, 20, 368-372.
 - Stein, A. H., "Imitation of Resistance to Temptation." Child Development, 1967, 38, 157-170.
 - Stephenson, G. M. and White, J. H., "An Experimental Study of Some Effects of Injustice on Children's Moral Behavior." <u>Journal of Experimental Social Psychology</u>, 1968, 4, 460-469.
 - Stoff, Sheldon, "How Can Public Schools Manage Religious Issues?" The Clearing House, 1964, 38, 271-274.
 - Strauss, Anselm L., "The Development of Conceptions of Rules in Children." Child Development, 1954, 25, 193-208.
 - Strandberg, Warren D., "On the Teachability of Virtue." <u>Dissertation</u>
 <u>Abstracts</u>, 1968, <u>28-A</u>, 3574-A.
 - Test, Mary A., "Children's Responses to Harm Doing: A Behavioral Study." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-B, 4800-B.
 - Turiel, E., "Developmental Processes in the Child's Moral Thinking." In P. Mussen, J. Langer and M. Covington (Eds.), New Directions in Developmental Psychology. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
 - Ugurel-Semin, Refia, "Moral Behavior and Moral Judgment of Children."

 Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1952, 47, 463-474.
 - Unger, S. M., "A Behavior Theory Approach to the Emergence of Guilt Reactivity in the Child." Journal of Child Psychology and Psychiatry, 1964, 5, 85-101.
 - Van den Daele, Leland, "A Developmental Study of the Ego-Ideal." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1968, 78, 191-256.
 - Ward William D. and Furchak, Andrew F., "Resistance to Temptation Among Boys and Girls." Psychological Reports, 1968, 23, 511-514.



- Whiteman, Paul H. and Kosier, Kenneth P., "Development of Children's Moralistic Judgments: Age, Sex, I.Q., and Certain Personal-Experiential Variables." Child Development, 1964, 35, 843-850.
- Wolf, Lois C., "An Investigation of the Levels of Abstraction Inferred From Children's Explanations of Social Problems." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 2866-A.
- Wright, B. A., "The Development of the Ideology of Altruism and Fairness in Children." <u>Psychological Bulletin</u>, 1942, <u>39</u>, 485-486.



Section 9:

CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT AND THE PRACTICE OF TEACHER GIVEN GUIDANCF AND DISCIPLINE

In the traditional classroom, where cognitive concerns receive far greater attention than do affective objectives, classroom management and discipline comprise a large portion of the teacher's efforts. In classrooms where affective concerns are given greater emphasis management, guidance and discipline are different in style than in traditional settings and more integrated into the teaching program. Topics covered in this section includes: negativism and resistant behavior; effects of punishment, praise and reward; general approach to relating to children; and the design of open classrooms. (For references on related topics refer to section 4: Aggression, Anger and Frustration in the Young Child; and section 19: Parental and Home Influences in Affective Development and Education.)

- e Alschuler, A. S., Tabor, D. and McIntyre, J., "Developing Motivation to 3, Achieve." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education: Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.: Office of Child Development (DHEW).
 - Anderson, Harold H., 'Motivation of Young Children: Further Studies in Success and Failure, Praise and Blame." Child Development, 1936, 7, 125-143.
 - Anthony, E. James, "It Hurts Me MOre Than It Hurts You An Approach to Discipline as a Two-Way Process." The Reiss-Davis Clinic Bulletin, 1965, 2, 7-22.
- e Appel, Madeleine H., "Aggressive Behavior of Nursery School Children and Adult Procedures in Dealing With Such Behavior." <u>Journal of Experimental Education</u>, 1942, <u>11</u>, 185-199.
- 4 Ausubel, D. P., "Negativism as a Phase of Ego Development." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1950, 20, 796-805.
- e Ausubel, D. P., "A New Look at Classroom Discipline." Phi Delta Kappan, 1961, 43, 25-30.



- Baer, Donald M. and Wolf, Montrose II., The Entry Into Natural Communities of Reinforcement. Paper presented at annual meeting of the American Psychological Association, Washington, D. C., 1967.
- Bandura, Albert, "Punishment." In the Arthor's <u>Principles of Behavior</u>
 Modification. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
- Barnes, Donald L., "An Analysis of Remedial Activities Used by Elementary Teachers in Coping With Classroom Lehavior Problems." Journal of Educational Research, 1963, 56, 544-457.
- e Baruch, Dorothy W., <u>New Ways in Discipline</u>. New York, London, Toronto: McGraw-Hill Book Co., 1949.
- 19, Baumrind, Diana and Black, Allen E., "Socialization Practices Associated With
 21 Dimensions of Competence in Preschool Boys and Girls." Child Development,
 1967, 38, 291-327.
- e Bawkin, Harry and Bawkin, Ruth M., <u>Clinical Management of Behavior Disorders</u> in <u>Children</u>. Philadelphia: W. B. Saunders, 1960.
- e Bernhardt, Karl S., <u>Discipline and Child Guidance</u>. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1964.
 - Bowman, Herman J., "A Review of Discipline." <u>National Association of Secondary School Principals Bulletin</u>, 1959, 54, 147-156.
- 4 Caille, Ruth Kennedy, <u>Resistant Behavior of Preschool Children</u>. New York: Teachers College, 1933.
 - Casavortes, E. J. and Neary, D., "A Teacher-Centered Affective Domain."
 Report for Contract No. OEC-4-7-062827-3078, U. S. Office of Education.
 Albuquerque, New Mexico: Southwestern Cooperative Educational
 Laboratory, 1969. (Located at 117 Richmond Drive, Albuquerque.)
 - Casey, Ingeborg Gubler, "A Comparison of the Effectiveness of Approval and Disapproval in Modifying Children's Behavior." <u>Dissertation</u>
 <u>Abstracts</u>, 1967, 28-B, 1186-B.
 - Cellar, S., "Practices Associated With Effective Discipline." <u>Journal of Experimental Education</u>, 1951, 19, 333-358.
- e Coopersmith, Stanley, "Developing Self-Esteem in the Classroom." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education:

 Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development (DHEW).
- e Dandes, H., "Psychological Health and Teaching Effectiveness." <u>Journal of</u>
 <u>Teacher Education</u>, 1966, 17, 301-306.
 - Dolger, Laura and Ginandes, Janet, "Children's Attitudes Toward Discipline as Related to Socioeconomic Status." <u>Journal of Experimental Education</u>, 1946, 15, 161-165.
 - Dubin, Elisabeth R. and Dubin, Robert, "The Authority Inception Period in Socialization." Child Development, 1963, 34, 885-898.



- e Dunworth, Lavona W., Discipling. New Jersey: Economics Press, 1962.
 - Eckstein, M. A., "Ultimate Departments: Punishment and Control in English and American Schools." Comparative Education Review, 1966, 10, 433-441.
 - Eron, Leonard, D., Walder, Leopold O., Toigo, Romolo and Lefkowitz, Monroe M., "Social Class, Parental Punishment for Aggression, and Child Aggression." Child Development, 1963, 34, 849-467.
- e Feldman, R. E., "Teaching Self-Control and Self-Expression Via Play." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education:

 Developing Metivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development (DHEW).
- 3, Frederiksen, Norman, "The Effects of Frustration on Negativistic Behavior of Young Children." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1942, 61, 203-226.
- e Fuchs, E., Fickets at the Gates. New York: Free Press, 1966.
 - Gardner, Dorothy E. and Cass, Joan E., The Role of the Teacher in the Infant and Nursery School. Oxford, England: Pergamon, 1965.
- e Gnagey, Williams J., The Psychology of Discipline in the Classroom. New York: Macmillan, 1968.
- e Gordon, J. J., Poze, T. and Reid, M., <u>The Creative Disciplinarian</u>. Cambridge, Massachusetts: Synetics Education System, 1969.
 - Green, Thomas F., "Teaching, Acting, and Behaving." <u>Harvard Educational</u> Review, 1964, 34, 507-524.
- e Greenberg, Herbert M., Teaching With Feeling. New York: Macmillan, 1969.
 - Gump, P. V. and Kounin, J. S., "Effects of Teachers' Methods of Controlling Misconduct Upon Kindergarten Children." American Psychologist, 1957, 12, 396.
 - Hammer, Max, "The Relationship Between Recalled Type of Discipline in Child-nood and Adult Interpersonal Behavior." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1964, 10, 143-146.
 - Hampe, Edward and Kennedy, Wallace, "Modification of Dominant Behavior in School Children: An Attempted Replication." <u>Psychological Reports</u>, 1968, 23, 743-750.
- e Harris, F. R., Wolf, M. M. and Baer, D. M., "Effects of Adult Social Reinforcement on Child Behavior." In W. W. Hartup and N. L. Smothergill (Eds.), The Young Child. Washington: National Association for the Education of Young Children, 1967.
- e Hartup, W. H., "Early Pressures in Child Development." Young Children, 1965, 20, 270-283.
- e Havighurst, R. J., "The Functions of Successful Discipline." <u>Understanding</u>
 Children, 1952, 21, 35-38.

- e Heettner, Barry, "Hey Teach! Communication in a Disciplinary Situation."

 <u>Journal of Emotional Education</u>, 1967, 7, 81-83.
- e Herman, Wayne L., et al., "Techniques for Dealing With Children's Behavior."

 <u>Elementary School Journa</u>, 1969, 69, 198-203.
- 4 Hicks, David J., "Effects of Co-Observer's Sanctions and Adult Presence on Imitative Aggression." Child Development, 1968, 39, 303-309.
 - Higgins, Jerry, "Inconsistent Socialization." <u>Psychological Reports</u>, 1968, 23, 303-336. Monograph Supplement 2-V23.
 - Homme, Lloyd, Now to Use Contingency Contracting in the Classroom. Urbana, Illinois: Research Press, 1969.
 - Horwitz, Murray, "Hostility and Its Management in Classroom Groups." In W. W. Charters, Jr. and N. L. Gage (Eds.), Readings in the Social Psychology of Education. Allyn and Bacon, 1963.
 - Hylton, John A., "Delayed Punishment Preceded by a Verbal Explanation: The Effects on the Punished Response and on the Response Occurring Coincidently With the Delayed Punishment." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 3788-A.
- e Johnson, E., Peters, M. and Evraiff, W., <u>The Role of the Teacher in Guidance</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1959.
 - Johnson, M. W., <u>Verbal Influences on Children's Behavior</u>. Ann Arbor: University of Michigan Press, 1939.
 - Jones, Laurel A., "A Comparison of the Effects of Reward and Punishment Upon the Development of Self-Control." <u>Disertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 26, 6849.
- e Kagan, Jerome, "An Essay for Teachers." Young Children, 1969, 24, 132-142.
- e Kohl, Herbert, <u>The Open Classroom</u>. New York: The New York Review, 1969. (Distributed by Vintage Books, a division of Random House.)
 - Kooi, Beverly Y. and Schutz, Richard E., "A Factor Analysis of Classroom-disturbance Intercorrelations." American Educational Research Journal, 1965, 2, 37-40.
- e Kounin, Jacob, <u>Discipline and Group Management in Classrooms</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, in press.
- e Kounin, Jacob, and Gump, Paul V., "The Ripple Effect in Discipline." Elementary School Journal, 1958, 62, 158-162.
- e Koullin, Jacob and Gump, Paul V., "The Comparative Influence of PUnitive and Non-Punitive Teachers on Children's Concepts of School Misconduct."

 Journal of Educational Psychology, 1961, 52, 44-49.
- e Kounin, Jacob and Obradovic, Sylvia, "Managing Emotionally Disturbed Children in Regular Classrooms: A Replication and Extension." The Journal of Special Education, 1968, 2, 129-135.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

- 4 Lefkowitz, Monroe M., Walder, Leopold O. and Eron, Leonard D., "Punishment, Identification, and Aggression." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1963, 9, 159-174.
 - Leitenberg, H., "Is Time-Out Prom Positive Reinforcement an Aversive Event?:

 A Review of the Experimental Evidence." <u>Psychological Bulletin</u>, 1965, 64, 428-441.
- 4 Levy, David M., "Resistant Behavior of Children." American Journal of Psychiatry, 1925, 4, 503-507.
- 4 Levy, David M. and Tulchin, Simon H., "The Resistant Behavior of Infants and Children. II." <u>Journal of Experimental Psychology</u>, 1925, 8, 209-224.
 - Madsen, C., Becker, W. and Thomas, D., "Rules, Praise, and Ignoring: Elements of Elementary Classroom Control." <u>Journal of Applied Behavior Analysis</u>, 1968, 1, 139-150.
 - Madsen, C. H. and Madsen, C. K., <u>Teaching/Discipline</u>. Boston: Allyn and Bacon, 1970.
- e McDonald, Blanche and Nelson, Leslie, <u>Successful Classroom Control</u>. Dubuque, Iowa: W. C. Brown, 1959.
 - Moore Shirley G. and Olsen, Frances, "The Effects of Explicitness of Instructions on the Generalization of a Prohibition in Young Children." Child Development, 1969, 40, 945-949.
- e Morse, William C., "The Mental Hygiene Viewpoint or School Discipline." The High School Journal, 1965, 48, 396-401.
- e Moustakas, Clark, <u>The Authentic Teacher, Sensitivity</u>, and <u>Awareness in the</u> Classroom. Cambridge, Massachusetts: H. A. Doyle, 1966.
 - National Education Association, Research Division. "Corporal Punishment." Research Bulletin, 1958, 36, 88-89.
 - National Foundation of Educational Research in England and Wales. A Survey of Rewards and Punishments in Schools Dased on Researches Carried out by M. E. Highfield and A. Pinset. NFERE and W: Newnes, 1952.
 - Nunn, Clyde Z., "Child-Control Through A 'Coalition With God." Child Development, 1964, 35, 417-432.
 - Oftfeld, Barbara and Katz, Phyllis A., "The Effect of Threat Severity in Children o Varying Socioeconomic Levels." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1969, <u>1</u>, 205-210.
 - Parke, Ross D., "Effectiveness of PUnishment as an Interaction of Intensity, Timing, Agent Nurturance, and Cognitive Structure." Child Development, 1969, 40, 213-235.
 - Piaget, Jean, The Moral Judgment of the Child. New York: Free Press, 1965.
- e Rasmussen, Margaret, (Ed.) <u>Discipline</u>. Washington, D. C.: Association for Childhood Education International, 1957.



- e Raths, Louis E. and Jurrell, Anna P., Meeting the Reeds for Lelonging and
- 2, Achieving." In Jerone M. Seidman (Ed.), Readings in Educational
- 25 Psychology. Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1955. (Reprinted from Do's and Dont's of Need Theory. Exemptille, New York: Modern Education Service.)
- e Raths, L., Harmin, M. and Simon S., <u>Values and Teaching</u>. Columbus, Ohio: Charles Merrill, 1966.
- e Redl, F., When We Deal With Children. New York: Free Press, 1966.
- e Red1, F. and Wineman, D., Controls From Within. Glencoe, Illinois: Free Press. 1954.
 - Rosenhan, D., "Effects of Social Class and Race on Responsiveness to Approval and Disapproval." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1966, 4, 253-259.
- e Samples, Robert, "Serving Intrinsic Motivation in Early Education." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education:

 Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development (DHEW).
- e Sears, Pauline S. and Dowley, Edith M., "Research on Teaching in the Nursery School." In N. L. Gage (Ed.), <u>Handbook of Research on Teaching</u>. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1963.
- e Settlage, C. F., "The Values of Limits in Child Rearing." Children, 1958, 5, 175-178.
 - Sherman, Alida W., "Some Correlates of Punitiveness Toward Peers in Children."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-B, 4764B-4765B.
 - Smith, B. Othanel, "Discipline." In Robert L. Ebel (Ed.), Encyclopedia of Educational Research. (Fourth Edition). Toronto: The Macmillan Company (Collier-Macmillan, Ltd.), 1969.
- e Smith, J. A., Setting Conditions for Creative Teaching in the Elementary School. Boston: Allyn and Bacon, 1966.
- e Smith, Judith M. and Smith, D. E. P., Child Management. Ann Arbor, Michigan: Ann Arbor, 1966.
 - Solomon, D., Bezdet, W. E. and Rosenberg, L., "Dimensions of Teacher Behavior."

 Journal of Experimental Education, 1964, 33, 23-40.
 - Spear, Paul S., "Motivational Effects of Praise and Criticism on Children's Learning." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1970, <u>3</u>, 124-132.
 - Stanford University, Center for Research and Development in Teaching. "The Teacher and the Anxious Child." R. and D. Memorandum No. 60, 1970. (Palo Alto, Cal.).
 - Thompson, George G., "The Social and Emotional Evelopment of Preschool Children Under Two Types of Education Program." <u>Psychological Monographs</u>, 1944, 56, (Whole No. 258).



- e Vance, Barbara J., "Social Learning Theory and Guidance in Early Childhood." Young Children, 1965, 21, 30-42.
 - Walters, R. H. and Parke, R. D., "The Influence of Punishment and Related Disciplinary Techniques on the Social Behavior of Children: Theory and Empirical Findings." In B. Maher (Ed.), Progress in Experimental Personality Research, Vol. 4. New York: Academic Press, 1967.
- e Webster, Staten W., <u>Discipline in the Classroom: Basic Principles and Problems</u>. San Francisco: Chandler, 1963.
- e Weinstein, Gerald, Ungerleider, Charles, Preston, Frederick, Osborn, Chad and Bannister, Langston, "Youth Tutoring Youth: A Manual for Trainers." New York: National Commission on Resources for Youth, 1970.
 - Weiss, LaBerta A., "An Experimental Investigation of Certain Factors Involved in the Preschool Child's Compliance With Commands." University of Iowa Studies on Child Welfare, 1934, 9, 127-157.
 - Zigler, E. and Kanzer, P., "The Effectiveness of Two Classes of Verbal Reinforcers on the Performance of Middle-and-Lower-Class Children."

 Journal of Personality, 1962, 30, 157-163.



Section 10:

CREATIVITY

This section contains references on the general topic of creativity in young children. Among the references are papers on: definitions of creativity nurturing creativity; the creative proces; creative problem solving; creativity and intelligence; vehicles for teaching creativity including art, music, dance and rhythmic movement. (References on closely related topics may be found in section 14: Fantasy and REality in Young Children; and section 24: Social and solitary play.)

- e Alamshan, William H., "The Conditions for Creativity." <u>Journal of Creative</u>
 <u>Behavior</u>, 1967, <u>1</u>, 305-313.
- e Andrew, G., <u>Creative Rhythmic Movement for Children</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1954.
 - Arastch, Josephine D., "Creativity and Related Processes in the Young Child: A Review of the Literature." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1968, 112, 77-108.
- e Aschner, Mary Jane and Bish, C. F., (Eds.) <u>Productive Thinking in Education</u>.

 Washington, D. C.: National Education Association, 1965.
- e Barron, Frank X., <u>Creativity and Psychological Health: Origins of Personal Vitality and Creative Freedom</u>. New York: Van Nostrand, 1963.
 - Bennett, George K., Doppelt, J. E. and Madans, A. B., "Creativity Ratings."

 Journal of Creative Behavior, 1969, 3, 41-49.
 - Berglund, Elizabeth E., "A Study of the Ontogenesis of Productive Thinking in Five-, Six-, and Seven-Year-Old Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-A, 4316.
- e Brown, G., "An Experiment in the Teaching of Creativity." School Review, 1964, 72, 437-450.
- e Brown, George I. and Gaynor, Donald, "Athletic Action as Creativity."

 Journal of Creative Behavior, 1967, 1, 155-162.
 - Burns, Marilyn J., "Selected Characteristics of a Children's Individual Test of Creativity." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 30-A, 1859-A.
 - Cattell, Raymond B. and Butcher, H. J., The Prediction of Achievement and Creativity. Indianapolis: Bobbs-Merrill, 1968.



- e Christie, T., "Environmental Factors in Creativity." <u>Journal of Creative</u>
 <u>Behavior</u>, 1970, 4, 13-31.
- e Cole, Henry P., "Process Curvicula and Creativity Development." Journal of Creative Dehavior, 1969, 4, 243-259.
- e Cole, Natalie R., Children's Arts From Deep Down Inside. New York: John Day, 1966.
 - Covington, M. V., "A Childhood Attitude Inventory for Problem Solving."

 Journal of Educational Measurement, 1966, 3, 234.
- e Covington, M. V., Crutchfield, R. S. and Davies, Lillian B., <u>The Productive Thinking Program</u>. Ferkeley, California: Educational Innovation, 1966.
 - Crawford, R. P., <u>Direct Creativity</u>, <u>With Attribute Listing</u>. Wells, Vermont: Fraser Publishing, 1968.
- e Creative Dramatics. Bulletin of Association for Childhood Education International, Washington, D. C.: 1961.
- e Cropley, A. J., Creativity. New York: Humanities Press, 1969.
 - Crutchfield, Richard S. and Covington, Martin V., "Programed Instruction and Creativity." Theory Into Practice, 1966, 5, 179-188.
- e Cunningham, B. F. and Torrance, E. R., <u>Imagi/Craft Series in Creative Development</u>. Boston: Ginn and Company, 1965-1966.
 - Danilov, M. A., "Cultivating Independence and Creative Activity in School Children." Soviet Education, 1962, 4, 38-45.
 - Dellas, Marie and Gaier, Eugene L., "Identification of Creativity: The Individual." <u>Psychological Bulletin</u>, 1970, 73, 55-73.
- e Freeman, J., Butcher, H. J. and Christie, T., "Creativity: A Selective Review of Research." <u>International Review of Education</u>, 1969, <u>15</u>, 363-364.
 - Freyermuth, Robert A., "A Comparison of the Effects of Various Preschool Experiences Upon the Imaginative Visula Expression of Five-Year-Olds." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 2603A-2604A.
 - Getzels, J. and Jackson, P., <u>Creativity and Intelligence</u>. New York: Wiley and Sons, 1962.
 - Getzels, J. W. and Madaus, George F., "Creativity." In Robert L. Ebel (Ed.), Encyclopedia of Educational Research (Fourth Edition). Toronto: (The Macmillan Company) Collier-Macmillan Canada, Ltd., 1969.
- e Ghiselin, Brewster, (Ed.) <u>The Creative Process</u>. Berkeley, California: University of California, 1952. (Republished, 1955, in New York by New American Library.)



- e Goodale, Robert A., "Methods for Encouraging Creativity in the Classroom."

 <u>Journal of Creative Behavior</u>, 1970, 4, 91-102.
- e Gordon, W. J., Synetics The Development of Creative Capacity. New York: Harper and Row, 1961.
- e Gowan, John C., Demosk, G. D. and Torrance, E. P., (Eds.) <u>Creativity</u>:

 <u>Its Educational Implications</u>. New York: John Wiley and Sons, 1967.
 - Guilford, J. P., "Creativity: Yesterday, Today, and Tomorrow." Journal of Creative Behavior, 1967, 1, 3-14.
- e Guilford, J. P., Hendricks, Meana and Hoepfner, Ralph, "Solving Social Problems Creatively." Journal of Creative Behavior, 1968, 2, 155-164.
 - Hallman, Ralph J., "The Necessary and Sufficient Conditions of Creativity."

 Journal of Humanistic Psychology, 1963, 3, 14-27.
 - Hetzer, Hildegard, "Schopferische Fahigkeiten der Kinder: Experimente über Konstruktive Beschaftigungen von Vorschukindern." (Creative Ability in Children: Experiments on Constructive Occupations of Preschool Children.)

 Quellen und Studien Zur Jugendkunde, 1931, 7, 1-79.
 - Holland, Jack M., "Creativity in Relation to Socioeconomic Status, Academic Achievement, and School, Personal, and Social Adjustment in Elementary School Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29-A, 147-A.
 - Jackson, F. W. and Messick, S., "The Person, the Product, and the Response: Conceptual Problems in the Assessment of Creativity." Journal of Personality, 1965, 33, 309-329.
 - Johnson, Carolyne M., "The Creative Thinking, Verbal Intelligence and Creative Writing Ability of Young Gifted Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 4187-A.
- 22 Karioth, Emil J., "Creative Dramatics as an Aid in Developing Creative Thinking Ability." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-A, 5180A-5181A...
- e, Klingsick, Judith, "Ideas in Motion Youth Theater: A Growing Expression of Creativity." Young Children, 1968, 23, 324-330.
 - Kogan, N. and Morgan, F. T., "Task and Motivational Influences on the Assessment of Creative and Intellective Ability in Children." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1969, 80, 91-127.
 - Lembright, Marlene L. and Yamamoto, Kaoru, "Subcultures and Crative Thinking:
 An Exploratory Comparison Detween Amish and Urban American School
 Children." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1965, 11, 49-64.
- 24 Lieberman, J. N., "Playfulness and Divergent Thinking: An Investigation of Their Relationship at the Kindergarten Level." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1965, 107, 219-224.
- 24 Lieberman, J. N., "A Developmental Analysis of Playfulness as a Clue to Cognitive Style." <u>Journal of Creative Behavior</u>, 1967, 1, 391-397.



- Long, Barbara A. and Henderson, Edmund H., "Opinion Formation and Creativity in Elementary School Children." Psychological Reports, 1965, 17, 219-223.
- Luca, Mark and Kent, Robert, Art Education: Strategies of Teaching. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1968.
- Lunaas, Mildred J., "Nature and Nurture of Creativity: Implications for Education." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 29-A, 761A-762A.
- MacKinnon, Donald W., "Creativity and Images of the Self." In R. W. White (Ed.), The Study of Lives. New York: Atherton Press, 1963.
- 7 "Magic Moments." Chicago: Encyclopedía Britannica Educational Corporation, (Film Series).
 - Maltzman, I., et al., "Experimental Studies in the Training of Originality." Psychological Monographs, 1960, 74, 1-23.
- e Massiales, Byron G. and Zevin, Jack, <u>Creative Encounters in the Classroom:</u>
 <u>Teaching and Learning Through Discovery.</u> New York: Wiley, 1967.
- e McIntyre, M., Source Book of Selected Materials for Early Childhood Education in the Arts. Central Atlantic Regional Educational Laboratory, Washington, D. C., 1969, (ED 033 746).
 - McPherson, J. H., The People, the Problems and the Problem Solving Methods. Midland, Michigan: The Pendell Company, 1967.
- e Mearns, Hughes, <u>Creative Power</u>. (Rev. ed.) New York: Dover Publications, Inc., 1958.
- e Merritt, Helen, <u>Guiding Free Expression in Children's Art</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1964.
- e Michael, W. B., (Ed.) <u>Teaching for Creative Endeavor</u>. Bloomington, Indiana: Indiana University Press, 1968.
 - Mooney, R. and Razik, T., (Eds.) Explorations in Creativity. New York: Harper and Row, 1967.
- e Myers, R. E. and Torrance, E. P., <u>Idea Books</u>. Boston: Ginn and Company, 1965-66.
- e, Myers, R. E. and Torrance, E. P., A Complete Program in Creative Development.

 New York: Ginn and Company, 1966.
 - Nehawell, M. S. and Moore, S. R., "Creative Use of Play Materials by Preschool Children." Childhood Education, 1941, 19, 321-325.
 - Nurse, Catherine A., "An Investigation of the Emphasis on 'Creativity' in a Sample of Elementary Curriculum Testbooks, 1964~67." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 30-A, 1921A-1922A.
 - Olton, Robert M. and Crutchfield, Richard S., "Developing Skills of Freductive Thinking." In P. Mussen, J. Langer and M. V. Covington (Eds.),

 Trends and Issues in Developmental Psychology. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.



- Farnes, Sidney J., Creative Behavior Guidebook. New York: Scribners, 1967.
- Parnes, Sidney J., "The Literature of Creativity (Part 2)." <u>Journal of Creative Behavior</u>, 1967, 1, 191-240.
- Parnes, Sidney J., "Methods and Educational Programs for Simulating Creativity: A Representative List." Journal of Creative Behavior, 1967, 2, 71-75.
- Parnes, Sidney J. and Brunelle, Eugene A., "The Literature of Creativity (Part 1)." Journal of Creative Dehavior, 1967, 1, 52-109.
- Parnes, Sidney J. and Harding, H. F., (Eds.) A Sourcebook for Creative Thinking. New York: Scribner, 1962.
- e Plattsburgh Elementary Schools, Program of Movement Education for Plattsburgh
 Elementary Schools: Application for Federal Grant to Establish,
 Operate and Maintain a Supplementary Educational Center Service; Title
 III SEA, Plattsburg, New York, 1966.
 - Reid, J. B., King, F. J. and Wickwere, P., "Cognitive and Other Personality Characteristics of Creative Children." <u>Psychological Reports</u>, 1959, 5, 729-737.
- e Russell, Jean, <u>Creative Dance in the Primary School</u>. London: MacDonald and Evans, 1965.
- e Sheets, Maxine, The Phenomenology of Dance. Madison and Milwaukee: University of Wisconsin Press, 1966.
 - Standage, F., (Ed.) Creativity and the Disadvantaged Student. Morehead, Kentucky: Operation Talent Search, Morehead State University, 1969.
- e Synetics, Inc., Making It Strange. New York: Harper and Row, 1968.
- e Torrance, E. Paul, "Their Stories Tell Their Feeling: Problems of Highly Creative Child." The Gifted Child Quarterly, Summer, 1961, 31-34.
 - Torrance, E. Paul, Rewarding Creative Behavior: Experiments in Classroom Creativity. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1965.
- e Torrance, E. Paul, "Conditions for Creative Growth." In L. D. Haskew and J. C. McLendon (Eds.), <u>This is Teaching</u>. (3rd Ed.) Glenview, Illinois: Scott, Forseman Company, 1968.
 - Torrance, E. Paul, "Creativity and Its Relationship to Achievement and Motivation." TAG Gifted Children Newsletter, November, 1968, 11, 21-23.
- e Torrance, E. Paul, "Examples and Rationales of Test Tasks for Assessing Creative Abilities." <u>Journal of Creative Behavior</u>, 1963, 2, 165-178.
- e Torrance, E. Paul, "Improving Behavior With Creative Use of Music." The Children's Music Leader, 1968, 3, 28.
- Torrance, E. Paul, "Saying It With Movement." <u>Music for Primaries</u>, 1968, 3, 14-15.



- Torrance, E. Paul, "Comparative Studies of Creativity in Children." Educational Leadership, 1969, 27, 146-148.
- Torrance, E. Paul, <u>Dimensions of Early Learning: Creativity</u>. San Rafael, California: <u>Dimensions Publishishing Company</u>, 1969.
- e Torrance, E. Paul, "Games With Sound." Music for Primaries, 1969, 4, 14-16, 32.
- e Torrance, E. Paul, 'Sounds of Discovery." Music for Primaries, 1969, 4, 10-12, 30.
- e Terrance, E. Faul, Encouraging Creativity in the Classroom. Dubuque, Iowa: Wm. C. Brown, 1970.
- e Torrance, E. Paul, "Sound and Movement, Foems and Songs." Music for Primaries, 1970, 5, 14-14, 33.
- e Torrance, E. Paul and Khatena, Joe, "Originality of Imagery in Identifying Creative Talent in Music." <u>Gifted Child Quarterly</u>, 1969, <u>13</u>, 3-8.
- e Torrance, E. Paul and Myers, R. E., <u>Creative Learning and Teaching</u>. New York: Dodd, Mead and Company, 1970.
- e Treffinger, Donald and Ripple, Richard, "Developing Creative Problem Solving Abilities and Related Attitudes Through Programmed Instruction."

 Journal of Creative Dehavior, 1969, 3, 105-114.
 - Trowbridge, N. and Charles, D. C., "Creativity in Art Students." <u>Journal</u> of Genetic Psychology, 1966, 109, 281-289.
 - Turner, Richard L. and Denny, David A., "Teacher Characteristics, Teacher Behavior, and Changes in Pupil Creativity." <u>Elementary School Journal</u>, 1969, 69, 265-270.
 - Vorob'ev, G., "Developing Independence and Creativity in Students." <u>Soviet</u> <u>Education</u>, 1963, <u>5</u>, 41-48.
 - Wallach, M. and Kogan, N., Modes of Thinking in Young Children: A Study of the Creativity-Intelligence Distinction. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1965.
- e Wallach, M. and Kogan, N., "Greativity and Intelligence in Children's Thinking." <u>Transaction</u>, 1967, 4, 38-43.
 - Ward, William C., "Creativity in Young Children." Child Development, 1968, 39, 737-754.
 - Ward, William C., "Creativity and Environmental Cues in Nursery School Children." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1969, 1, 543-547.
 - Ward, William C., "Rate and Uniqueness in Children's Creative Responding." Child Development, 1969, 40, 869-878.
 - Williams, Frank E., "Training Children to be Creative May Have Little Effect on Original Classroom Performance." <u>California Journal of Educational</u> Research, 1966, 17, 73-79.



- Williams, Frank E., (Ed.) Creativity at Home and in School. St. Paul, Minnesota. Macalester Creativity Project, Macalester College, 1968.
- Williams, Frank E., "Workshops on the Use and Adaptation of New Media for Developing Creativity; National Schools Project. Final Report." Contract OEC-3-7-061619-0392, 1968, (ED 025 146).
- 1, Winn, M. and Porcher, A., The Playaroup Book. Baltimore Penguin, 1967.



Section 11:

CURIOSITY, DISCOVERY LEARNING, EXPLORATORY BEHAVIOR, INQUIRY SKILLS AND RELEVANT DEVELOPMENTS IN EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION

The topics covered in this section are described by the section title. In general the section focuses on learning how to evoke, reward and focus student efforts to seek answers to self-originating questions. (References on closely related topics may be found in section 10: Creativity; and section 14: Fantasy and Reality in the Thinking of Young Children.)

- e Allender, Jerome S., <u>The Teaching of Inquiry Skills to Elementary School</u>
 <u>Children</u>. Washington, D. C.: Bureau of Research, Office of Education,
 U. S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.
- e Ausubel, D. P., "Learning by Discovery: Rationale and Mystique." <u>Bulletin</u> of the National Association of Secondary School Principles, 1961, 45, 18-52.
- e Ausubel, D. P., "Some Psychological and Educational Limitations of Learning by Discovery." The Arithmetic Teacher, 1964, 11, 290-302.
 - Berlyne, D. E., Conflict, Arousal, and Curiosity. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1960.
- e Perlyne, D. E., "Curiosity and Education." In J. Krumboltz (Ed.), Learning and the Educational Process. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1965.
 - Berlyne, D. E., "Curiosity and Exploration." Science, 1966, 153, 25-33.
 - Berlyne, D. E. and Frommer, F. D., "Some Determinants of the Incidence and Contents of Children's Questions." Child Development, 1966, 37, 177-189.
 - Bruner, Jerome S., "The Act of Discovery." <u>Harvard Educational Review</u>, 1961, 31, 21-32.
 - Butts, D. P. and Jones, H. L., "Inquiry Training and Problem Solving in Elementary School Children." <u>Journal of Research in Science Teaching</u>, 1966, 4, 21.
- e Carin, Arthur and Sund, Robert B., <u>Teaching Science Through Discovery</u>. Columbus: Charles E. Merrill, 1969.
 - Charlesworth, W. R., "The Instigation and Maintenance of Curiosity Behavior as a Function of Surprise Versus Novel and Familiar Stimuli." Child Development, 1964, 35, 1169-1186.
 - Fowler, H., Curiosity and Exploratory Behavior. New York: Macmillan, 1965.



- e Friedlander, B. Z., "A Psychologist's Second Thoughts on Concepts, Curiosity, and Discovery in Teaching and Learning." Harvard Educational Review, 1965, 35, 18**-3**8.
 - Greenberger, Ellen, "Assessment of Curiosity in Children: A New Procedure and Some Preliminary Findings." Proceedings of the 77th Annual Convention of the American Psychological Association, 1969, 4, 389-390.
 - Hawkins, D., "Messing About in Science." Science and Children, 1965, 2, 1-3.
- 24 Hutt, C., "Exploration and Play in Children." In P. A. Jewell and C. Laizos (Eds.), Play, Exploration and Territory in Mammals. New York: Academic Press, 1966.
- e Karplus, R. and Thier, H. D., A New Look at Elementary School Science. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1967.
 - King, Johanna B., "Curiosity in Young Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-B, 3468-B.
 - Lucco, A., "The Curiosity Behavior of Four-Year-Old Children: An Exploratory Study. Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, University of Chicago, 1965.
- e Marshall, J. S., Sense and Tell: Teacher's Guidebook. Glenview, Illinois: Scott, Foresman, 1968.
 - Massialas, E. and Zevin, J., Creative Encounters in the Classroom: Teaching and Learning Through Discovery. New York: Wiley and Sons, 1967.
 - Maw, W. and Maw, Ethel W., "Establishing Criterion Groups for Evaluating Measures of Curiosity." Journal of Experimental Education, 1961, 29, 299-306.
 - McReynolds, P., Acker, M. and Pietila, C., "Relation of Object Curiosity to Psychological Adjustment in Children." Child Development, 1961, 32, 392-400.
 - Mendel, G., "Children's Preferences for Differing Degrees of Novelty." Child Development, 1965, 36, 597-702, 453-465.
 - Messick, Barbara G., "Exploratory Behavior Examined From Frameworks of Curiosity and of Problem Solving." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-D, 2622-B.
 - Minuchin, Patricia, "Processes of Curiosity and Exploration in Freschool Disadvantaged Children." Final Report Contract No. 0E0-2403, Office of Economic Opportunity. New York: Bank Street College of Education, 1968.
 - Mittman, Leon R. and Terrell, Glenn, "An Experimental Study of Curiosity in Children." Child Development, 1964, 35, 851-855.
- Peterson, Rita W. and Lawery, Lawrence F., "Study of Curiosity Factors in First Grade Children." Science Education, 1968, 52, 347-352.
- Pielstick, N. L. and Woodruff, A. Bond, "Exploratory Behavior in Children." Psychological Reports, 1968, 22, 515-531.



- Romey, William D., (Ed.) <u>Inquiry Techniques for Teaching Science</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1968.
- e Samples, Robert, "Serving Intrinsic Motivation in Early Education." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education:

 Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development.
- e Schmuck, R., Chesler, M. and Lippitt, R., <u>Problem Solving to Improve Classroom Learning</u>. Chicago: Science Research Associates, 1966.
 - Shulman, Lee S. and Keislar, Evan F., (Eds.) Learning by Discovery: A Critical Appraisal. Chicago: Rend McNally, 1966.
 - Skolnick, A., "Some Environmental and Personality Correlates of Early Curiosity: A Longitudinal Exploration." Paper presented at Society for Research in Child Development meeting, New York, March, 1967.
 - Smock, C. D. and Holt, B. G., "Children's Reactions to Novelty: An Experimental Study of "Curiosity Motivation." Child Development, 1962, 33, 631-642.
- e Sprigle, H. A., Inquisitive Games. Palo Alto: Science Research Associates.
 - Starr, Raymond H., "The Social Facilitation of Exploratory Behavior: In Exploratory Study." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-E, 3951B-3952E.
 - Suchman, J. Richard, "Inquiry Training: Building Skills for Autonomous Discovery." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1961, 7, 147-170.
 - Suchman, J. Richard, "The Pursuit of Meaning: Models for the Study of Inquiry." In Eli M. Bower and W. G. Hollister (Eds.), Behavioral Science Frontiers in Education. New York: Wiley, 1967.
 - Susskind, Edwin C., "Questioning and Curiosity in the Elementary School Classroom." Dissertation Abstracts, 1970, 30-E, 3879-E.
 - Weintraub, Herbert, "Case Studies of Boys Identified as High or Low in Curiosity." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 29-A, 2046A-2047A.



Section 12:

DIFFERENTIATION AND IDENTIFICATION OF HEALTHFUL AND NORMAL PATTERNS OF EARLY CHILD BEHAVIOR

The references in this section can be used by educators and psychologists as guides for identifying healthful and normal childhood behaviors. They might be useful to curriculum specialists for formulating program goals. While the terms healthful and normal are not exact there is an increasing literature on conceptions of psychological health and the environments that foster such health. The references chosen for inclusion here are concerned with the healthful side of personality development and with the means of differntiating healthful from abnormal development. (The negative side of personality development is represented by the references in section 13: Early Prevention and Treatment of Neurotic and Anti-Social Behavior. Other relevant sections are section 8: Character and Moral Development; section 13: Early Prevention and Treatment of Neurotic and Anti-Social Behavior; and section 25: Social Behavior.)

- Achenbac, T. M., "The Classification of Children's Psychiatric Symptoms: A Factor Analytic Study." <u>Psychological Monographs</u>, 1966, 80.
- 17 Baker, John W. and Holzworth, Annette, "Social Histories of Successful and Unsuccessful Children." Child Development, 1961, 32, 135-149.
 - Bayley, N., "Behavioral Correlates of Mental Growth: Birth to Thirty-Six Years." American Psychologist, 1968, 23, 1-17.
 - Beilin, "Tarry, "Teachers' and Clinicians' Attitudes Toward the Dehavior Problems of Children: A Reappraisal." Child Development, 1959, 30, 9-25.
 - Bergman, Rita E., (Ed.) Children's Behavior. New York: Exposition Press, 1969.
- e Bettelheim, Bruno, "Reading the Signs of Mental Health." <u>National Parent</u>-Teacher, March 1959, 16-19.
- e Bettelheim, Bruno, The Empty Fortress. New York: Free Press, 1967.
- e, Bloeschl, Lilian, "Qur Verlaufsanalyse der Sozialanpassumg Verhaltenschwieriger Kinder." (A Longitudinal Study of the Social Adjustment of Children With Behavior Problems.) Psychologische Rundschau, 1966, 17, 249-258.



- e Bower, Eli M., Early Identification of Emotionally Handicapped Children School. (2nd Ed.) Springfield, Illinois: Charles C. Thomas, 1969.
 - Boynton, F. L. and Ford, F. A., "The Relationship Between Play and Intelligence."

 Journal of Applied Psychology, 1933, 17, 294-301.
 - Boynton, P. L. and Wong, J. D., "Relationship Between Children's Play Interests and Their Emotional Stability." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1944, 64, 119-127.
- 17 Erown, Janet L., "Prognosis From Presenting Symptoms of Preschool Children With a Typical Development." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1960, 30, 382-390.
 - Caplan, G., (Ed.) Emotional Problems of Early Childhood. New York: Basic Books, 1955.
- 17 Clarizio, Harvey, "Stability of Deviant Behavior Through Time." Mental Hygiene, 1968, 52, 288-293.
 - e Conrad, W. G. and Tobiessen, Jon, "The Development of Kindergarten Rating Scales for the Prediction of Learning and Behavior Disorders." Psychology in the School, 1967, 4, 359.
 - Davids, Anthony, "Ego Functions in Disturbed and Normal Children: Aspiration Inhibition, Time Estimation, and Delayed Gratification." Journal of Consulting and Clinical Fsychology, 1969, 33, 61-70.
- 25 Davids, A. and Parenti, A. N., "Time Orientation and Interpersonal Relations of Emotionally Disturbed and Normal Children." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1958, <u>57</u>, 299-305.
- 21 Davids, Anthony and White, A. A., "Effects of Success, Failure, and Social Facilitation on the Level of Aspiration in Emotionally Disturbed and Normal Children." Journal of Personality, 1958, 26, 77-93.
 - Despert, J. L. and Pierce, H. O., "The Relation of Emotional Adjustment to Intellectual Function." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1946, 34, 3-56.
- 4 Dittmann, Allen T. and Goodrich, D. Wells, "A Comparison of Social Behavior in Normal and Hyperaggressive Preadolescent Boys." Child Development, 1961, 32, 315-327.
- e Dupont, Henry, (Ed.) Educating Emotionally Disturbed Children: Reading.
 New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
 - Epstein, L. J., "An Analysis of Teachers' Judgments of Problem Children."

 Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1941, 59, 101-107.
- e Erikson, Erik H., "Growth and Crises of the Healthy Personality." In Erik H. Erikson <u>Identity</u> and the <u>Life Cycle</u>. New York; <u>International</u> University Fress, 1959.
- e Faas, Larry A., (Ed.) The Emotionally Disturbed Child: A Book of Readings. Springfield, Illinois: Thomas, in press.



- Fisher, Rhoda L., 'Social Schema of Normal and Disturbed School Children."

 Journal of Educational Psychology, 1967, 58, 88-92.
- e Freud, Anna, "The Emotional and Social Development of Young Children."

 The Journal of Nursery Education, 1964, 19, 154-160.
 - Freud, Anna, Normality and Pathology in Childhood. New York: International Universities Press. 1965.
- e Furman, Robert A. and Kata, Anny, <u>The Therapeutic Nursery School</u>. New York: International Universities Press, 1969.
- 17 Gardner, G. G., "The Relationship Between Childhood Neurotic Symptomatology and Later Schizophrenia in Males and Females." <u>Journal of Nervous and Mental Disease</u>, 1967, 144, 97-100.
 - e Gibbons, D. C., <u>Delinquent Echavior</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1970.
 - Glueck, Eleanor T., "A More Discriminative Instrument for the Identification of Potential Delinquents at School Entrance." <u>Journal of Criminal Law, Criminology</u>, and Police Science, 1966, 57, 27-30.
- 17 Glueck, S. and Glueck, Eleanor T., Predicting Delinquency and Crime. Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1959.
 - Griffiths, W., <u>Behavior Difficulties of Children as Perceived and Judged by Parents, Teachers and Children Themselves</u>. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press, 1952.
- 25 Gronlund, N. E. and Holmlund, W. S., "The Value of Elementary School Sociometric Status Scores for Predicting Pupil's Adjustment in High School." Educational Administration and Supervision, 1958, 44, 225-260.
- 17 Hampton, Anna C., "Longitudinal Study of Personality of Children Who Become Delinquents Using the Personality Inventory for Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1970, 30-E, 4792-B.
- e Hunter, E. C., "Changes in Teachers: Attitudes Toward Children's Behavior Over the Last Thirty Years." Mental Hygiene, 1957, 41, 3-11.
 - Illingworth, Ronald S., The Normal Child. (4th Ed.) Little, Brown, 1968.
- e Jahoda, M., <u>Current Concepts of Fositive Mental Health</u>. New York: Basic Books, 1959.
- 17 Kasanin, J., and Veo, L., "A Study of the School Adjustment of Children
 Who Later in Life Became Psychotic." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry,
 1932, 2, 212-230.
 - Kellam, S. G. and Schiff, S. K., "Adaptation and Mental Illness in the First-Grade Classrooms of an Urban Community." <u>Psychiatric Research Report</u>, 1967, 21, 79-91.
 - Kessler, Jane W., <u>Psychopathology of Childhood</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1966.



- Kitano, H. H. L., "Adjustment of Problem and Nonproblem Children to Specific Situations: A Study in Role Theory." Child Development, 1962, 33, 229-233.
- Klein, Donald C., "Early School Adjustment." In H. Steward (Ed.), <u>Handbook</u> of Child Development. Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1962.
- e, Kliman, Gilbert and Kliman, Ann, "Prediction of Emotional Problems in Preschool Children." Manuscript, 1968. (Available at cost from The Foundation for Research in Preventative Psychiatry, 340 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Flains, New York, 10605.)
- 17 LaCrosse, J. and Kohlberg, L., "The Predictability of Adult Mental Health From Childhood Behavior and Status." In B. Wolman (Ed.), <u>Handbook of Psychopathology</u>. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1969.
 - e Lapouse, Rema, "The Epidemiology of Behavior Disorders in Children." American

 Journal of Diseases of Children, 1966, 3, 594-599.
 - Liem, G. Ramsey, Yellott, Ann W., Cowen, Emory L., Trost, Mary A. and Izzo, Louis D., "Some Correlates of Early-Detected Emotional Dysfunction in the Schools." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1969, 39, 619-626.
 - Lindy, Janet M., "Hyperkinetic Behavior Among Kindergarten Children."

 <u>Disseration Abstracts</u>, 1967, 28-B, 341-B.
 - Lorr, M. and Jenkins, R. L., "Patterns of Maladjustment in Children." <u>Journal</u> of <u>Clinical</u> Psychology, 1953, 9, 16-19.
- 17 MacFarlane, Jean W., Allen, Lucille and Honzik, Marjorie F., A Developmental Study of the Behavior Problems of Normal Children. Berkeley: University of California Press, 1954.
 - e Marshall, Hermine H., "Behavior Problems of Normal Children: A Comparison Between the Lay Literature and Developmental Research." Child Development, 1964, 35, 469-478.
 - Maxwell, A. E., "Discrepancies Between the Pattern of Abilities for Normal and Neurotic Children." Journal of Mental Science, 1961, 107, 300-307.
- 17 McCaffrey, Isabel and Cumming, John, "Dehavior Patterns Associated With Persistent Emotional Disturbances of School Children in Regular Classes of Elementary Grades, a Report of a Longitudinal Study of Children in the Second Grade in 1961." Interim Report, Onondaga County School Boards Association, Syracuse, New York, 1967, (ED 019 793).
- 17 McCord, W., McCord, Joan and Zola, I. K., Origins of Crime: A New Evaluation of the Cambridge-Somerville Youth Study. New York: Columbia University Press, 1959.
 - McGinnis, Manon, "The Wellesley Project Program of Preschool Emotional Assessment." Journal of Psychiatric and Social Work, 1954, 23, 135-141.
 - 4 Menlove, Frances L., "Aggressive Symptoms in Emotionally Disturbed Adopted Children." Child Development, 1965, 36, 419-432.



- e Moustakas, Clark E., Children in Play Therapy: A Key to Understanding Normal and Disturbed Emotions. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1953.
 - Moustakas, Clark E., "The Frequency and Intensity of Negative Attitudes Expressed in Play Therapy: A Comparison of Well-Adjusted and Disturbed Young Children." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1955, 86, 309-325.
- 17 Murphy, L. B., "The Child's Way of Coping: A Longitudinal Study of Normal Children." <u>Bulletin Menninger Clinic</u>, 1960, 24, 97-103.
- e Norne, B. M. and Philleo, C. C., "A Comparative Study of the Spontaneous Play Activities of Normal and Mentally Defective Children." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1942, 61, 33-46.
- 16 Northway, M. L., "Outsiders: A Study of the Personality Patterns of Children Least Acceptable to Their Age-mates." Sociometry, 1944, 7, 10-25.
- 25 Ogilvie, Daniel M., "Distinguishing Social Behaviors of Competent and Incompetent Three to Six Year Old Children." Faper presented at the biennial meeting of the Society for Research in Child Development in Santa Monica, California, 1969.
 - e Ojemann, Ralph H., "Behavior Problems." In Robert L. Ebel (Ed.), <u>Encyclopedia</u>
 of Educational Research (Fourth Edition). Toronto: (The Macmillan
 Company) Collier-Macmillan Canada, Ltd., 1969.
- e Oppenheimer, E. and Mandel, M., "Behavioral Disturbances of School Children in Relation to the Preschool Period." American Journal of Fublic Health, 1959, 49, 1537-1542.
 - Patterson, G. R. and Fagot, B. I., "Selective Responsiveness to Social Reinforcers and Deviant Behavior in Children." The Psychological Record, 1967, 17, 369-378.
 - Peebles, Inger, "Comparison of Social Behavior and Functional Language During Play in Young Mildly Retarded and Average Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-E, 4852-E.
- 2 Phillips, Beeman N., "Problem Behavior in the Elementary School." Child Development, 1968, 39, 895-903.
- Pinneau, Samuel R., et al., "Behavior Patterns of Normal Children." (San Fernando Valley State College, Northridge, California) Reports Nos. CRP-5-023 and ER-5-8170, 1967, (ED 015 016).
 - Plank, Gene E., "The Early Identification and Treatment of Emotionally Disturbed Children: A Comparison Study of the Relative Status of Four Matched Groups." Disseration Abstracts, 1969, 30-A, 2383A-2384A.
 - Preston, G. H. and Shepler, W., "A Study of the Problems of 'Normal' Children."

 American Journal of Orchopsychiatry, 1931, 1, 245-256.
 - Prugh, Dane G., "The Preschool Child." In Harold C. Stuart and Dane G. Prugh (Eds.), The Healthy Child: His Physical, Psychological and Social Development. Cambridge, Massachusetts: Harvard University, 1960.



- Quay, Herbert C., Children's Behavior Disorders: Selected Readings. New York: Van Nostrand-Reinhold, 1968.
- Redlich, Fritz C., "The Concept of Health in Psychiatry." In A. Leighton and others (Eds.), Explorations in Social Psychiatry. Basic Books, 1957.
- 17 Robins, L. N., <u>Deviant Children Grown Up: A Sociological and Psychiatric Study of Sociopathic Personality</u>. Baltimore: The Williams and Wilkins Co., 1966.
- 17 Roff, M., "Childhood Social Interactions and Young Adult Bad Conduct."

 Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1961, 63, 333-337.
- e, Roff, M., "Childhood Social Interactions and Young Adult Psychosis."

 Journal of Clinical Psychology, 1963, 19, 152-157.
 - Roff, M., Mink, W. and Hinrichs, G., <u>Developmental Abnormal Psychology</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1966.
- e, Roff, M. and Ricks, D. F., (Eds.) <u>Life History Studies in Psychopathology</u>.

 17 Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press, 1969.
- 25 Schmuck, Richard A., Luszk, Margaret B. and Epperson, David C., "Interpersonal Relations and Mental Health in the Classroom." Mental Hygiene, 1963, 47, 289-299.
 - Scott, W., "Research Definitions of Mental Health and Mental Illness." Psychological Bulletin, 1958, 55, 29-45.
- e Senn, Milton and Solnit, Albert, Problems in Child Behavior and Development. Lea and Febiger, 1968.
 - Slavina, L. S., <u>Deti s Affektivnym Povedeniem</u>. (Children With Affective Behavior.) Moscow, USSR: Prosveshchenie, 1966.
 - Stendler, C. B., "Possible Causes of Overdependency in Young Children." Child Development, 1954, 25, 125-146.
- 17 Stennett, R. G., "Emotional Handicap in the Elementary Years: Phase or Disease?" American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1966, 36, 444-449.
 - e Stouffer, George A., Jr. and Owens, Jennie, "Behavior Problems of Children as Identified by Today's Teachers and Compared With Those Reported by E. K. Wickman." Journal of Educational Research, 1955, 48, 321-331.
 - Thoma, Elizabeth, "Problem Children in Indonesia: Maternal Attitudes Towards Such Children in Indonesia Compared With the U.S." <u>Vita Humana</u>, 1961, 4, 77-85.
 - Thomas, A., Chess, S. and Birch, H. <u>Temperament and Behavior Disorders in</u> Children. New York: New York University Press, 1968.
 - Van Lieshout, C. F. M., "'Extreme' Forms of Normal Child Development." Human Development, 1966, 9, 152-173.



- e Verville, Elinor, <u>Behavior Problems of Children</u>. Philadelphia: W. B. Saunders, 1967.
- 4 Waldrop, Mary F., Pedersen, Frank A. and Bell, Richard Q., "Minor Physical Anomalies and Behavior in Preschool Children." Child Development, 1968, 39, 391-400.
 - Walker, H. M., Construction and Validation of a Behavior Checklist for the Identification of Children With Behavior Problems. Los Angeles, California: California Test Bureau, 1969. (5916 Hollywood Boulevard)
- 17 Walters, Richard H. and Willows, Donna C., "Imitative Behavior of Disturbed and Nondisturbed Children Following Exposure to Aggressive and Nonaggressive Models." Child Development, 1968, 39, 79-89.
 - Watt, N. F., Stolorow, R. D., Lubensky, Amy W. and McClelland, D. C., "School Adjustment and Behavior of Children Hospitalized for Schizophrenia as Adults." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1970, 40, 637-657.
- 17 Werner, Emmy and Gallistel, Elizabeth, "Prediction of Outstanding Performance, Delinquency, and Emotional Disturbance From Childhood Evaluations."

 Child Development, 1961, 32, 255-260.
 - Westman, J. C., Rice, D. L. and Bermann, E., "Nursery School Behavior and Later School Adjustment." American Journal of Psychiatry, 1967, 37, 725-731.
 - Wickman, E. K., Children's behavior and Teachers' Attitudes. New York: Commonwealth Fund, 1928.
 - Williams, H. D., "A Survey of Predelinquent Children in Ten Medwestern Cities."

 Journal of Juvenile Research, 1933, 17, 163-174.
 - Zax, Melvin. Cowen, Emory L., Izzo, Louis D. and Trost, Mary A., "Identifying Emotional Disturbance in the School Setting." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1964, 34, 447-454.



Section 13:

EARLY PREVENTION AND TREATMENT OF NEUROTIC AND ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOR

This section contains references dealing with the prevention and treatment of unhealthful personality development and behavior patterns. Among the topics covered in this section are: child psychiatry, play therapy, existential child psychotherapy, behavioral psychotherapy, and school treatment programs. This section does not contain references on severe disturbances, e.g., psychoses and serious delinquent actions. (For references on closely related topics see section 9: Classroom Management, teacher given guidance and discipline; section 12: Differentiation and Identification of Healthful and Normal Patterns of Early Child Behavior; and section 19: Parental and Home Influences on Affective Development and Education.)

- 24 Anster, F., "Differential Uses of Play in Treatment of Young Children."

 American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1943, 13, 63-68.
 - Ausubel, D. P., "Some Misconceptions Regarding Mental Health Functions and Practices in the School." Psychology in the Schools, 1965, 2, 99-105.
- 24 Axline, V. M., "Play Therapy Procedures and Results." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1955, 25, 618-626.
- e Axline, V. M., Dibs: In Search of Self. Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1964.
- 24 Axline, V. M., Play Therapy. (Rev. Ed.) New York: Ballantine Books, 1969.
 - e Bandura, A., "Behavioral Psychotherapy." <u>Scientific American</u>, 1967, <u>216</u>, 78-86.
 - Bandura, A., Principles of Behavior Modification. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
 - Bandura, A. with Wittenberg, Clarissa, "The Impact of Visual Media on Personality." In <u>Mental Health Program Reports -- 4.</u> Chevy Chase, Maryland: National Institute of Mental Health, Program Analysis and Evaluation Branch, Office of Program Planning and Evaluation, 1970.

69

24 Baruch, D. W., "Play Techniques in Preschool as an Aid in Guidance."

Psychological Bulletin, 1939, 36, 570.



- Bender, L. and Waltman, A. G., "The Use of Puppet Shows as a Psychotherapeutic Method for Behavior Problems in Children." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1936, 6, 341-354.
- Berlin, I. N., "Mental Health Consultation in Schools as a Means of Communicating Mental Health Principles." <u>Journal of the American Academy of Child</u>
 Psychiatry, 1962, 1, 671-679.
- Berlin, I. N., Bibliography of Child Psychiatry With a Selected List of Films. Washington, D. C.: American Psychiatric Association, 1963.
- 24 Bloombug, Claire M., "An Experiment in Play Therapy." Childhood Education, 1948, 25, 117-130.
 - Bolman, William M. and Westman, Jack C., "Prevention of Mental Disorder: An Overview of Current Programs." American Journal of Psychiatry, 1967, 123, 1058-1068.
 - Bolton, Anne, "A Prophylactic Approach to Child Psychiatry." <u>Journal of Mental</u> <u>Science</u>, 1955, <u>101</u>, 696-703.
- e Bower, E. M., "Promoting Educational Competence and Mental Health in the Classroom." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education: Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press.

 Washington, D. C.: Office of Child Development.
 - Bower, E. M., "The Three Pipe-Problem: Promotion of Competent Human Beings Through a Preschool Kindergarten Program and Sundry Other Elementary Matters." Paper presented to the Delinquency Prevention Strategy Conference, Santa Barbara, 1970.
- 24 Burlingham, S., "Therapeutic Effects of a Play Group for Preschool Children."

 American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1933, 8, 627-638.
 - Byerly, Carl L., "A School Curriculum for Prevention and Remediation of Deviancy." In <u>Social Deviancy Among Youth</u>, 65th Yearbook of the NSSE, Part I, 1966, University of Chicago Press.
 - Cain, Albert C., "The Perils of Prevention." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1967, 37, 640-642.
 - Caplan, Gerald, (Ed.) <u>Prevention of Mental Disorders in Children: Initial</u>
 <u>Explorations</u>. New York: Basic Books, 1961.
 - Caplan, Gerald, <u>Principles of Preventive Psychiatry</u>. New York, London: Basic Books, Inc., 1964.
 - Cary, Ara C. and Reval, Mary T., "Prevention and Detection of Emotional Disturbances in Preschool Children." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1967, 37, 719-724.
 - 9 Chapman, A. H., <u>Management of Emotional Problems of Children and Adolescents</u>.
 Philadelphia: Lippincott, 1965.



- 3 Clarizio, Harvey F., <u>Mental Health and the Educative Process: Selected Readings.</u> Chicago: Rand McNally, 1969.
- 24 Clement, P. W. and Milne, D. C., "Group Play Therapy and Tangible Reinforcers Used to Modify the Behavior of Eight-Year-Old Boys." Unpublished Manuscript, Harbor General Hospital, Torrance, California, 1966.
- 24 Conn, J. H., "The Play Interview as an Investigative and Therapeutic Procedure." Nervous Child, 1948, 7, 257-286.
- e Coopersmith, Stanley, "The Affective Component in Education and Early Development." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education: Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press, Washington, D. C.: Office of Child Development.
 - Cowen, Emory L., Garner, Elmer A. and Zax, Melvin, (Eds.) Emergent Approaches to Mental Health Problems. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1967.
 - Cowen, Emory L., Zax, Melvin, Izzo, Louis D. and Trost, Mary A., "Prevention of Emotional Disorders in the School Setting: A Further Investigation." Journal of Consulting Psychology, 1966, 30, 381-387.
 - Desnert, J., "Play Analysis in Research and Therapy." In Nolan Lewis and Bernard Pacella (Eds.), Modern Trends in Child Psychiatry. New York: International University Press, 1945.
 - Dunham, H. Warren, "Community Psychiatry—The Newest Therapeutic Bandwagon."

 Archives of General Psychiatry, 1965, 12, 303-313.
 - Dwyer, Ethel I., "An Exploratory Study to Investigate the Influence of a Program of Primary Prevention Upon Self-Concept and the Effect of Self-Concept on Academic Readiness." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29, 3869-3870.
 - Erikson, Erik H., "Clinical Studies in Childhood Play." In R. G. Barkey, J. B. Kounin and R. F. Wright (Eds.), Child Behavior and Development. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1943.
- e, Feldman, R. E., "Teaching Self-Control and SElf-Expression Via Play." In 3, Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education: 24 Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.: Construction of Child Development.
- 24 Fisher, M. S., Stone, L. J. and Bucher, J., "Frustration Play Techniques: I. Blocking games. II. Frustration and Hostility Game." New York: New York University Film Library, 1942, (Film).
- 24 Frankl, A. W., "Play Interviews With Nursery School Children." American

 Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1941, 11, 33-39.
 - Freud, A., Psychoanalytical Treatment of Children. London: Imago, 1946.
 - Furman, Robert A. and Katan, Anny, (Eds.) The Therapeutic Nursery School. New York: International Universities, 1969.



Gelfand, Donna M. and Hartmann, Donald P., "Behavior Therapy With Children:
A Review and Evaluation of Research Methodology." Psychological Bulletin,
1968, 68, 204-215.

1

- Gibbons, D. C., <u>Delinquent Behavior</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1970.
- Gindor, Lily H., "Use of Fantasy Communications in Child Psychotherapy."

 American Journal of Psychotherapy, 1957, 11, 323-335.
- 24 Ginott, H. G., "A Rationale for Selecting Toys in Play Therapy." <u>Journal</u> of Consulting Psychology, 1960, 24, 243-246.
 - Ginott, H. G., Group Psychotherapy With Children: The Theory and Practice of Play Therapy. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1961.
 - Guerney, B., Psychotherapeutic Agents: New Rules for Non-Professionals, Parents and Teachers. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1969.
 - Hammer, Max and Kaplan, A. M., The Practice of Psychotherapy With Children. Homewood, Illinois: The Dorsey Press, 1967.
 - Heinicke, Christoph M. and Goldman, Arnold, "Research on Psychotherapy With Children: A Review and Suggestions for Future Study." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1960, 30, 483-494.
 - Hobbs, Nicholas, "Helping Disturbed Children: Psychological and Ecological Strategies." American Psychologist, 1966, 21, 1105, 1115.
 - Howells, John G., (Ed.) Modern Perspectives in Child Psychiatry. Springfield, Illinois: Thomas, 1965.
 - Jersild, Arthur T. and Homes, Frances B., "Methods of Overcoming Children's Fears." Journal of Psychology, 1935, 1, 75-104.
 - Jones, M. C., "The Elimination of Children's Fears." <u>Journal of Experimental Psychology</u>, 1924, 8, 382-390.
 - Kanner, Leo, Child Psychiatry. (3rd Ed.) Springfield, Illinois: Thomas, 1966.
 - Keister, Mary E., "The Behavior of Young Children in Fallure: An Experimental Attempt to Discover and to Modify Undesirable Responses of Preschool Children to Failure." <u>University of Iowa Studies in Child Welfare</u>, 1938, 14, 29-32.
 - Kennedy, Wallace A., "School Phobia: Rapid Treatment of Fifty Cases." <u>Journal of Abnormal Psychology</u>, 1965, 70, 285-289.
 - Klein, Donald C. and Ross, Ann, "Indergarten Entry: A Study of Role Transition." In M. Krugman (Ed.), Orthopsychiatry and the School. New York: American Orthopsychiatric Association, 1958.

72

Klein, Melanie, "The Psychoanalytic Play Technique, Its History and Significance." In Melanie Klein (Ed.), New Directions in Psychoanalysis.

New York: Basic Books, 1955.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

- 1 Krasner, L. and Ullmann, L. P., (Eds.) Research in Behavior Modification. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1965.
 - Krugman, Morris, (Ed.) Orthopsychiatry and the Schools. New York: American Orthopsychiatric Association, 1958.
- 24 Kulla, Michael, "A Therapeutic Doll Play Program With an Emotionally Disturbed Child." Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 27-B, 1291-B.
 - Lambert, Nadine M., The Protection and Promotion of Mental Lealth, Monograph 5. Washington: Superintendent of Documents, U. S. Government Printing Office, 1965, (ED 032 353).
- 24 Lebo, Dell, "The Present Status of Research on Nondirective Play Therapy."

 Journal of Consulting Psychology, 1953, 17, 177-183.
 - Lebo, Dell, "The Development of Play as a Form of Therapy! From Rousseau to Rogers." American Journal of Psychiatry, 1955-56, 112, 418-422.
- 24 Lebo, Dell, "The Relationship of Response Categories in Nondirective Play Therapy to Aggression and Age." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1956, <u>16</u>, 794-795.
 - Levitt, E. E., "The Results of Psychotherapy With Children: An Evaluation."

 Journal of Consulting Psychology, 1957, 21, 189-196.
 - Levitt, E. E., "Psychotherapy With Children: A Further Evaluation."

 <u>Behavior Research and Therapy</u>, 1963, <u>1</u>, 45-51.
 - Levy, D. M., "Trends in Therapy. III. Release Therapy." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1939, 9, 713-737.
 - Levy, Edwin, "Children's Behavior Under Stress and Its Relation to Training By Parents to Respond to Stress Situation." Child Development, 1959, 30, 307-324.
 - Linden, James I., "The College Undergraduate as Play Therapist: A Study of Selection and Training Techniques." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-B, 3916-B.
 - Linder, Marie A., "Verbal Conditioning of Aggression in Doll Play: Comparison of the Effect of Two Therapeutic Tools on Aggression of Nursery School Boys in a Therapy-Like Situation." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 28-B, 1201-B.
- 16 Lippitt, R. and Gold, M., "Classroom Social Structure as a Mental Health Problem." Journal of Social Issues, 1959, 15, 40-49.
- 22 Lisle, James Dean, "The Comparative Effectiveness of Various Group Procedures Used With Elementary Pupils With Personal-Social Adjustment Problems." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 28-A, 4485-A.
 - Miller, Emanuel, (Ed.) Foundations of Child Psychiatry. New York: Pergamon, 1968.



- e Moustakas, Clark E., Children in Play Therapy: A Key to Understanding Normal and Disturbed Emotions. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1953.
 - Moustakas, Clark E., "The Frequency and Intensity of Negative Attitudes
 Expressed in Play Therapy: A Comparison of Well-Adjusted and Disturbed
 Young Children." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1955, 86, 309-325.
 - Moustakas, Clark E., Existential Child Therapy: The Child's Discovery of Himself. New York: Basic Books, 1966.
- e Murphy, Lois B., "Preventive Implications of Development in the Preschool Years." In Gerald Caplan (Ed.), <u>Prevention of Mental Disorders in Children</u>. New York: Basic Books, 1961.
- e Newton, M. R. and Brown, Racine D., "A Preventive Approach to Developmental Problems in School Children." In E. M. Bower and V. G. Hollister, Behavioral Science Frontiers in Education. New York: John Wiley, 1967.
- 15 Nickols, J., "Target Game Technique for Examination and Play Therapy
 Activities With Children." Perceptual and Motor Skills, 1961, 13, 83-87.
 - Ojemann, Ralph H., (Ed.) The School and the Community Treatment Facility in Preventive Psychiatry. (Proceedings of the Fifth Institute on Preventive Psychiatry.) Ames, Iowa: University of Iowa Department of Duplications, 1966.
 - e PACE I.D. Center, South San Francisco, California. "Investments in Prevention, an Activity Group Program for Young Children, Summer, 1967." 1967, (ED 025 311).
 - Patterson, G. R., Shaw, D. A. and Ebner, M., "Teachers, Peers, and Parents as Agents of Change in the Classroom." In F. A. M. Benson (Ed.), Modifying Deviant Social Behaviors in Various Classroom Settings. Eugene, Oregon: University of Oregon Press, 1969.
 - Peck, M. L. and Stewart, R. H., "Current Practices in Selection Criteria for Group Play Therapy." Journal of Clinical Psychology, 1964, 20, 146.
 - Perkins, M. J., "Effects of Play Therapy and Behavior Modification Approaches With Conduct Problem Boys." Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, University of Illinois, 1967.
 - Roen, Sheldon R., "Primary Prevention in the Classroom Through a Teaching Program in the Behavioral Sciences." In Emory L. Cowen, Elmer A. Gardner, and Melvin Zax (Eds.), Emergent Approaches to Mental Health Problems. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts (Meredith Division), 1967.
- 24 Rothenberg, Lillian, "The Therapeutic Play Group: A Case Study." Exceptional Children, 1966, 32, 483-486.
 - Schiff, Sheldon K. and Sheppard, Kellam, "A Community-Wide Mental Health Program of Prevention and Early Treatment in First Grade." Psychiatric Research Report 21, American Psychiatric Association, April, 1967.
- 25 Schiffer, Allan L., "The Effectiveness of Group Play Therapy as Assessed by Specific Changes in a Child's Peer Relations." Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 27-3, 972-B.

- e Seidman, J. M., (Ed.) Educating for Mental Health: A Book of Readings. New York: Crowell, 1963.
- e Senn, Milton J. and Solnit, Albert J., <u>Problems in Child Behavior and Development</u>. Lea and Febiger, 1968.
 - Severson, Roger A., "A Comprehensive Early Intervention Program Employing Behavior Modification Techniques." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1970, 40, 318-322.
 - Simmons, James E., <u>Psychiatric Examination of Children</u>. Philadelphia: Lea and Febiger, in press.
- 4 Stover, Donald O. and Fahl, Mary A., "Teaching Adaptive Responses to Frustration to Emotionally Disturbed Boys." <u>Journal of Consulting</u> and Clinical Psychology, 1968, 32, 366-368.
 - Thorp, Roland and Wetzel, Ralph J., <u>Behavior Modification in the Natural Environment</u>. New York: Academic Press, 1969.
 - Ullmann, L. P. and Krasner, L., (Eds.) <u>Case Studies in Behavior Modification</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1965.
 - Van Fleet, Phyllis and Brownbridge, Robert, "Investments in Prevention of Learning and Behavior Problems in Young Children. Intervention Report I." PACE I.D. Center, South San Francisco, California, 1969, (ED 033 415).
 - Van Krevelen, D., (Ed.) Child Psychiatry and Prevention. Berne, Switzerland:
 Hans Huber, 1964
 - Waetjen, W. and Leeper, R., (Eds.) <u>Learning and Mental Health in the School</u>. Washington, D. C.: Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development, National Education Association, 1966.
- 24 Waltmann, Adolf G., "Concept of Play Therapy Techniques. Symposium:
 Therapeutic Play Techniques." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry,
 1955, 25, 771-783.
 - Weikart, David P., "Preschool Programs: Preliminary Findings." The Journal of Special Education, 1967, 1, 163-181.
 - Werry, J. S. and Wollersheim, J. P., "Behavior Therapy With Children: A Broad Overview." American Academy of Child Psychiatry Journal, 1967, 6, 346-370.
 - Westman, J. C., "Nursery School: Outpost for Preventive Psychiatry."

 Archives of General Psychiatry, 1964, 10, 31-35.
 - Westman, J. C., Ferguson, Barbara B. and Wolman, Richard N., "School Career Adjustment Patterns of Children Using Mental Health Services."

 American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1968, 38, 659-665.
 - e White, Mary A., "Little Red Schoolhouse and Little White Clinic." <u>Teachers College Record</u>, 1965, 67, 188-200.



- 24 Woltmann, A. G., 'Play Therapy and Related Techniques.' In D. Brower and L. E. Abt, <u>Progress in Clinical Psychology</u>, II. New York: Grune and Stratton, 1956.
 - Work, Henry H. and Call, J. D., <u>Guide to Preventive Child Psychiatry</u>. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1965.
 - Wyatt, Gertrud L., Loomis, Elaine F. and Scott, Lois L., "Early Identification and Training of So-Called 'High-Risk' Children." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1970, 40, 318-322.
 - Zax, Melvin and Cowen, Emory L., "Early Identification and Prevention of Emotional Disturbance in a Public School." In Emory L. Cowen, Elmer A. Gardner and Melvin Zax (Eds.), Emergent Approaches to Mental Health Problems. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1967.
 - Zax, Melvin, Cowen, Emory L., Izzo, Louis D., Madonia, Angelo J., Merenda, Joseph and Trost, Mary A., "A Teacher-Aide Program for Preventing Emotional Disturbances in Young School Children." Mental Hygiene, 1966, 50, 406-415.



Section 14:

FANTASY AND REALITY IN YOUNG CHILDREN

This section of the bibliography contains references on several topics dealing with the reality level of children's thinking, how such thinking is reflected in their behavior and school products, and how it may be utilized to improve children's performance. Among the topics are: imaginary companions, fantasy play, stories children compose, wishes of children, and animistic thinking. (For references on closely related topics see section 7: Books, Story telling, films and television in Affective Development and Education; section 22: Role Play, Stage Drama, Puppet Shows and Group Discussions in Affective Development and Education; and section 24: Social and Solitary Play.)

- Ames, L. B., "Children's Stories." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1966, 73, 337-396.
- Ames, L. B. and Learned, Janet, "Imaginary Companions and Related Phenomena."

 Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1946, 69, 147-167.
- Atkinson, John W., (Ed.) Motives in Fantasy, Action, and Society. Princeton, New Jersey: Van Nostrand, 1958.
- Bach, George R., "Young Children's Play Fantasies." <u>Psychological Monographs</u>, 1945, <u>59</u>, No. 2.
- Bateson, G., "A Theory of Play and Fantasy." <u>Psychiatric Research Report</u>, 1955, 2, 39-51.
- Bender, L. and Vogel, F., "Imaginary Companions of Children." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1941, 11, 56-65.
- 10 Berkinblit, M. B. and Petrovskii, A. V., Fantaziya i Real'nost'. (Fantasy and Reality.) Moscow, USSR: Politizdat, 1968.
 - e Chukovsky, Kornei, From Two to Five. Berkeley: University of California, 1963. (First published in Russia under the title <u>Little Children</u>; translated and edited by Miriam Morton.)
 - Church, J., Language and the Discovery of Reality. New York: Random House, Inc., 1961.
 - Cobb, H. V., "Role-Wishes and General Wishes of Children and Adolescents." Child Development, 1954, 25, 159-171.



- Davidson, Audrey and Fay, Judith, <u>Phantasy in Childhood</u>. New York: Philosophical Library, 1953.
- e de Mille, R., <u>Put Your Mother on the Ceiling: Children's Imagination Games.</u>
 New York: Walker, 1967.
 - Didlo, James H., "Operant Conditioning Procedures Applied to Eidetic Imagery: A Preliminary Investigation." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 4137A-4138A.
 - El'konin, D., "Simolika i cc Funktsii c Igre Detei." (Symbolism and Its Function in the Play of Children.) Dosh. Vosp., 1966, 39, 56-60.
 - Feinman, Jo Ann, "Observation on the Development of Imaginative Play in Early Childhood." Journal of the American Academy of Child Psychiatry, 1962, 1, 167-181.
 - Gindor, Lily H., "Use of Fantasy Communications in Child Psychotherapy."

 American Journal of Psychotherapy, 1957, 11, 323-335.
 - Goodman, John T., "Primary Process Thinking in Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 26, 4806.
- e Gordon, W. J., <u>Synetics:</u> The <u>Development of Creative Capacity</u>. New York: Harper and Row, 1961.
 - Gottlieb, Sybil, "Modeling Effects on Fantasy." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 29-B, 1840-B.
- e Griffiths, R., Imagination in Early Childhood. London: Kegan Paul, 1935.
- 21 Hall, Thomas W., "Some Effects of Anxiety on the Fantasy Play of Preschool Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, <u>27-B</u>, 302B-303B.
 - Harvey, N. A., <u>Imaginary Playmates and Other Mental Phenomena of Children</u>.

 Ypsilanti, <u>Michigan:</u> <u>Ypsilanti State Normal College</u>, 1918.
- Holt, R. R., "The Development of the Primary Process: A Structural View." In R. R. Holt (Ed.), Motives and Thought: Psychoanalytic Essays in Memory of David Rapaport. New York: International Universities Press, 1967.
 - Howard, B. W., "Fantasy and the Play Interview." Character and Personality, 1944, 13, 153-165.
 - Hurlock, B. and Burstein, M., "The Imaginary Playmate: A Questionnaire Study." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1932, 41, 380-392.
 - Jersild, A. T., Markey, F. V. and Jersild, C. L., "Children's Fears, Dreams, Wishes, Daydreams, Likes, Dislikes, Pleasant and Unpleasant Memories."

 <u>Child Development Monographs</u>, 1933, No. 12.
- e Jones, Richard M., Fantasy and Feeling in Education. New York: New York University, 1968. (Republished in 1970 as a Colophon Book. New York: Harper and Row.)



- Klinger, Eric, "Development of Imaginative Behavior. Implications of Play for a Theory of Fantasy." Psychological Bulletin, 1969, 72, 277-298.
- Kris, E., "On Preconscious Mental Processes." Psychoanalytic Quarterly, 1950, 19, 540-560.
- Lesser, Gerald, "Application of Guttman's Scaling Method to Aggressive Fantasy in Children." Educational and Psychological Measurement, 1958, 18, 543-551.
- Lesser, Gerald, "Religion and the Defensive Responses in Children's Fantasy."

 Journal of Projective Techniques, 1959, 23, 64-68.
- Lowenfeld, Margaret F., The Nonverbal 'Thinking' of Children. London: Institute of Child Psychology, 1964.
- Markey, Frances V., <u>Imaginative Behavior of Preschool Children</u>. New York: Teachers College, 1935.
- Milgram, Norman A. and Riedel, Wolfgang, "Developmental and Experimental Factors in Making Wishes." Child Development, 1969, 40, 763-771.
- Minuchin, Patricia, Biber, Barbara, Shapiro, Edna and Zimiles, Herbert, <u>The Psychological Impact of School Experience</u>. New York: Basic Books, 1969.
- e, Montz, Robin, "Selective Techniques in Affective Education to Promote
 4, 5, Involvement and Motivation." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The
 Affective Component in Early Education: Developing Motivation in
 Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.: Office of Child
 Development.
- 24 Moore, Terence, "Realism and Fantasy in Children's Play." Journal of Child Psychology and Psychiatry, 1964, 5, 15-36.
 - Nagera, Humberto, "The Imaginary Companion: Its Significance for Ego Development and Conflict Solution." The Psychoanalytic Study of the Child, 1969, 24, 165-196.
 - Nice, Margaret M., "A Child's Imagination." <u>Pedagogical Seminary</u>, 1919, <u>26</u>, 173-201.
 - Piaget, Jean, Play, Dreams and Imitation in Childhood. New York: Norton, 1951.
 - e Pitcher, Evelyn G. and Prelinger, Ernst, Children Tell Stories: An Analysis of Fantasy. New York: International Universities Press, 1963.
 - Pulaski, Mary A., "The Effects of Highly Structured and Minimally Structured Play Things on Children's Fantasy Productions." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 29-B, 1848B-1849B.
 - Robinson, Eleanor L., "The Form and Imaginative Content of Children's Block Buildings." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1959, 19, 2651.
 - Robinson, E. S., "The Compensatory Function of Make-Belief Play."

 Psychological Review, 1920, 27, 429-439.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

- Singer, Jerome, <u>Daydreaming</u>: An Introduction to the Experimental Study of <u>Inner Experience</u>. New York: Random House, 1966.
- Singer, Jerome, "The Importance of Daydreaming." Psychology Today, 1968, 1, 18-27.
- Singer, Jerome and Streiner, Bella E., "Imaginative Content in the Dreams and Fantasy Play of Blind and Sighted Children." Perceptual and Motor Skills, 1966, 22, 475-482.
 - Stern, Harris W., "Animistic Thinking in Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 27-B, 4116-B.
 - Sutton-Smith, B., 'Games, Play, Daydreams." Quest, 1968, 10, 47-58.



Section 15:

GAMES, GAME BEHAVIOR AND MATERIALS

Informal and formal games generally play an important role in the affective development of young children. Children can learn by participation and/or observation of games utilizing both direct and vicarious experiences. The games themselves can be traditional informal games that have been learned from older children or they may be simulation games that have been specifically designed to provide specific interpersonal, social, intellectual or political experiences. This section contains general references on games and more specific references on how games may be employed in the educational process. Persons interested in designing innovative curricula in affective education may be particularly interested in the references in this section. (For references on related topics see section 7: Books, Story telling, films and television in Affective Development and Education, section 22: Role Play, Stage Drama, Puppet Shows and Group Discussion in Affective Development and Education; and section 24: Social and Solitary Play.)

- Abrahamson, S., Breck, I., Broadbent, F., Cruickshank, D., Monroe, B. and Twelker, P., "Simulation in Education and Training." <u>Educational</u> <u>Technology</u>, 1969, 9, 43-70.
- e Abt, Clark, Serious Games. New York: The Viking Press, 1969.
- e Avedon, E. and Sutton-Smith, B., The Study of Games. New York: Wiley, in press.
 - Barrish, Harriet H., Saunders, Muriel and Wolf, Montrose M., "Good Behavior Game: Effects of Individual Contingencies for Group Consequences on Disruptive Behavior in a Classroom." Journal of Applied Behavior Analysis, 1969, 2, 119-124.
- e "Blockbuilding, How Blockbuilding Contributes to the Social, Emotional, and Intellectual Development of Children." Washington, D. C.: National Education Association, 1960. (Available for purchase from National Education Association, Department of Kindergarten-Primary Education, 1201 Sixteenth Street, N.W., Washington, D. C.)
- e Boocock, Sarane S., "Games Change What Goes on in Classroom." Nation's Schools, 1967, 80, 94.



- e Boocock, Sarane S., "Instructional Games." In <u>Encyclopedia of Education</u>.

 New York: Macmillan, 1969.
- e Boocock, Sarane S. and Schild, E. O., (Eds.) Simulation Games in Learning.
 Beverly Hills: Sage Pub., 1968.
 - Borishevsky, M. I., "Characteristics of Children's Attitude Toward Rules of Conduct in Game Situations." Voprosy Psikhologii, 1965, 4, 44-54.
- e Burgess, Bonita G., "A Working Bibliography on Games." Philadelphia: School District of Philadelphia, 1970. (Intensive Learning Center, Philadelphia Public Schools, Fifth and Luzerne Streets, Philadelphia, Pa., 19140.)
 - Caillois, R., "The Structure and Classification of Games." Diogenes, 1955, 12, 62-75.
 - Caillois, R., Man, Play, and Games. New York: Free Press, 1961.
- e Carlson, Elliot, <u>Learning Through Games</u>. Washington, D. C.: Public Affairs Press, 1968.
 - Cherryholmes, C. H., "Some Current Research on Effectiveness of Educational Simulations: Implications for Alternative Strategies." American Behavioral Scientist, 1966, 10, 4-7.
 - Christine, Charles and Christine, Dorothy, "Four Simulation Games That Teach." Grade Teacher, October, 1967, 109-120.
 - Cohen, K. C., "The Effects of Two Simulation Games on the Opinions and Attitudes of Selected Sixth, Seventh, and Eighth Graders." Baltimore: The Center for the Study of Social Organization of Schools, The Johns Hopkins University, 1969. Unpublished report.
 - Coleman, James S., "Simulation Games and Social Theory." 1968, (ED 017 237).
 - Conn, J. H., "Children's Awareness of Sex Differences, II. Play Attitudes and Game Preferences." <u>Journal of Child Psychiatry</u>, 1951, 2, 82-99.
- 3 Conte, Anthony E., "Games With Simulated Environments: The Use of Life Career With Sixth Grade Students." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, <u>29-A</u>, 4321-A.
- e, Cratty, Bryant J., <u>Social Dimensions of Physical Activities</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1967.
 - Davitz, Joel R., "The Effects of Previous Training on Post-frustration Behavior." Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1952, 47, 309-315.
 - e de Mille, R., <u>Put Your Mother on the Ceiling: Children's Imagination</u>
 <u>Games.</u> New York: Walker, 1967.
- e Edgren, Harry D. and Gruber, Joseph J., <u>Teacher's Handbook of Indoor and</u>
 Outdoor Games. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1963.
 - Eiferman, R. R., <u>School Children's Games</u>. Washington, D. C.: Office of Education, Department of Health, Education and Welfare, 1968.



- Eiferman, R. R., <u>Play and Games, Educational Encyclopedia</u>, (Volumes 1-28).

 Jerusalem: The Israel Ministry of Education and Culture and the Bialik Institute, 1969. (In Hebrew).
- Eiferman, R. R., "Social Play in Childhood." In R. E. Heron and B. Sutton-Smith (Eds.), Child's Play. New York: Wiley, 1970.
- e Eiferman, R. R., "Free Social Play: A Guide to Directed Playing." In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education:

 Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development.
 - Eiferman, R. R., <u>Determinants of Children's Game Styles</u>. Jerusalem Academy of Sciences and Humanities, in press.
 - Fletcher, J. L., "The Effects of Two Elementary School Social Studies Games: An Experimental Field Study." Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation. Cambridge: Harvard Graduate School of Education, 1969.
 - Fry, C. L., "A Developmental Examination of Performance in a Tacit Coordination Game Situation." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1967, 5, 277-281.
 - Garvey, D., "Simulation, Role-Playing, and Sociodrama in the Social Studies."

 With an Associated Bibliography by Sancha K. Garvey. The Emporia

 State Research Studies, 1967, 16, 5-34.
 - Garvey, D., "A Catalog of Judgments, Findings, and Hunches." In P. J.
 Tansey (Ed.), Some Aspects of Simulation in Education. Maidenhead,
 England: McGraw-Hill, in press.
- e, Guetzkow, Harold, (Ed.) <u>Simulation in Social Science</u>: <u>Readings</u>. <u>Englewood</u> 3 <u>Cliffs</u>, New Jersey: <u>Prentice-Hall</u>, 1962.
 - Gump, P. V. and Sutton-Smith, B., "The 'It' Role in Children's Games."

 The Group, 1955, 17, 3-8.
 - Harris, L., "Looks by Preschoolers at the Experimenter in a Choice-of-Toys Game: Effects of Experimenter and Age of Child." <u>Journal of Experimental Child Psychology</u>, 1968, 6, 493-500.
- 3 Hears, L. M. and Behrens, M. G., "Age and Sex Differences in Payoff Demands During Tetrand Game Negotiations." <u>Child Development</u>, 1969, 40, 559-568.
 - Humphrey, J. H., "Comparison of the Use of Active Games and Language Workshop Exercises as Learning Media in the Development of Language Understandings With Third Grade Children." Perceptual and Motor Skills, 1965, 21, 23-26.
 - Humphrey, J. H., "An Explosion Study of Active Games in Learning of Number Concepts by First Grade Boys and Girls." Perceptual and Motor Skills, 1966, 23, 341-342.
 - Inbar, M., "Toward a Sociology of Autotelic Behavior." <u>La Critica</u> Sociologica, 1970, in press.



- Inbar, M. and Stoll, Clarice S., "Games and Learning." <u>Interchange</u>, 1970, <u>1</u>, in press.
- e, Joint Council on Economic Education. Bibliography of Games-Simulations
 3 for Teaching Economics and Related Subjects, New York, 1968. (Available from: Joint Council on Economic Education, 1212 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York, 10036.)
- e King, Ethel M., "Blockbuilding." Childhood Education, 1969, 3, 49-57.
 - Lott, Albert, Lott, Bernice E. and Matthews, Gail M., "Interpersonal Attraction Among Children as a Function of Vicarious Reward." <u>Journal</u> of Experimental Psychology, 1969, 60, 274-283.
 - McClintock, C. G. and Nuttin, J. M., Jr., "Development of Competitive Game Behavior in Children Across Two Cultures." <u>Journal of Experimental Social Psychology</u>, 1969, 5, 203-218.
- 25 Nelson, Dale O., "Leadership in Sports." Research Quarterly, 1966, 37, 268-275.
 - Nesbitt, William, Simulation Games for the Social Studies Classroom. New York: Foreign Policy Association, 1968. (Available at \$1.00 from: Foreign Policy Association, 345 East 46th Street, New York, New York, 10017.)
- e Newall, William W., <u>Games and Songs of American Children</u>. New York:

 Dover, 1963. (Unabridged Republication of the 2nd -- 1903 -- edition of the work.)
 - Ohm, Robert E., "Gamed Instructional Simulation: An Exploratory Model." Educational Administration Quarterly, 1966, 2, 110-122.
- e Opie, I. and Opie, P., Children's Games in Street and Playground. Oxford:
 Oxford Press, 1969.
 - Phillips. R. H., "The Nature and Function of Children's Formal Games."

 <u>Psychoanalytic Quarterly</u>, 1960, 29, 200-207.
- Pophom, W. J. and Baker, Eva L., Rules for the Development of Instructional Products. Inglewood, California: Southwest Regional Laboratory for Educational Research and Development, 1967.
 - Rapoport, Anatol, <u>Fights, Games and Debates</u>. Ann Arbor: The University of Michigan Press, 1960.
 - Ray, R. S., Shaw, D. A. and Cobb, J. A., "The Work Box: An Innovation in Teaching Attentional Behavior." The School Counselor, 1970, in press.
 - Red1, Fritz, "The Impact of Game Ingredients on Children's Play Behavior."

 In Bertram Schoffman (El.), Conference on Group Processes. Transactions of the Fourth Conference, 1959, New York: Josiah Macy, Jr. Foundation.
 - Roberts, J. M., Arvis, M. A. and fush, R. R., "Games in Culture." American Anthropologist, 2000, 50, 097-605.



- Roberts, J. M. and Sutton-Smith, B., "Child Training and Game Involvement." Ethnology, 1962, I, 166-185.
- Schelling, Thomas, The Strategy of Conflict. New York: Oxford, 1963.
- Schild, G., "Game Experience and School Achievement." Unpublished Master's Thesis, Hebrew University, 1970.
- Shears, L. M. and Behrens, H. G., "Age and Sex Differences in Payoff Demands During Tetrad Game Negotiations." Child Development, 1969, 40, 559-568.
- e Shirts, R. G., (Ed.) <u>Occasional Newsletter About Simulations and Games</u>. La Jolla, California: Western Behavioral Sciences Institute (1150 Silverado), Two to three times annually.
 - Shubik, M., (Ed.) Game Theory and Related Approaches to Social Behavior. New York: John Wiley and Sons, 1964.
 - Simulation and Games: An International Quarterly of Research, Methodology, and Design. Reverly Hills, California: Sage Publications. (Address inquiries to: Sage Publications, 275 South Beverly Drive, Beverly Hills, California, 90212.)
 - Sjoberg, L., Bokander, I., Dencik, L. and Lindbom, K. A., "A Comparison Between Children and Adults in a Prisoner's Dilemma Game."

 Scandinavian Journal of Psychology, 1969, 10, 158-166.
- e Sprigle, H. A., <u>Inquisitive Games</u>. Palo Alto, California: Science Research Associates.
 - Stoll, C. S. and Inbar, M., "Games and Socialization: An Exploratory Study of Race Differences." Sociological Quarterly, Summer, 1970, in press.
- e Straus, David A., Straus, R. C. and Thorsen, Ruth E., Tools for Change:

 <u>A Basic Course in Problem-Solving</u>. Berkeley, California: Interaction, Inc., 1969.
 - Suits, Bernard, 'What is a Game?" Philosophy Science, 1967, 34, 148-156.
- e SURISS Project. Social Science Instructional Simulation Systems: A Selected Bibliography. Sheffield, England: Department of Town and Regional Planning, 1969. (Shearwood Road, Sheffield S 10 2 TN.)
 - Sutton-Smith, B., "Cross-Cultural Study of Children's Games." American Philosphical Society Yearbook, 1961, 426-429.
 - Sutton-Smith, B., 'Games, Play, Daydreams.' Quest, 1968, 10, 47-58.
 - Sutton-Smith, B., "The Folkgames of American Children." In T. Coffin (Ed.),

 Our Living Traditions: An Introduction to American Folklore. New

 York: Basic Books, 1968.
 - Sutton-Smith, B., "Child Training and Game Involvement." (Republished in Loy and Kenyon, Sport, Culture and Society. New York: Macmillan, 1969.)



- Sutton-Smith, B., "The Cross-Cultural and Fsychological Study of Games."
 International Journal of the Sociology of Sport, in press.
- Sutton-Smith, B., "Play and Games as Controls." In J. P. Scott (Ed.), Social Control. Chicago: University of Chicago, in press.
- Sutton-Smith, B. and Gump, P. V., "Games and Status Experience." Recreation, 1955, 48, 142-174. (Republished in A. Dundes (Ed), The Study of Folk-lore. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1965.)
- Sutton-Smith, B., Roberts, J. M., et al., "Studies in an Elementary Game of Strategy." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1967, 75, 3-42.
- Sutton-Smith, B. and Roberts, John M., "The Cross-Cultural and Psychological Study of Games." In Gunther Luschen (Ed.), The Cross-Cultural Analysis of Games. Champaign, Illinois: Stipes, 1970.
- Sutton-Smith, B. and Rosenberg, B. G., "Sixty Years of Historical Change in the Game Preference of American Children." Journal of American Folklore, 1961, 74, 17-46.
- Tedeschi, J. T., Hiaster, D. and Gahagan, J. P., 'Matrix Values and the Behavior of Children in the Prisoner's Dilemma Game. Child Development, 1969, 40, 517-528.
- e Torrance, E. P., "Games With Sound." Music for Primaries, 1969, 4, 14-16.
- e Twelker, Paul A., Instructional Simulation Systems. An Annotated Bibliography. Monmouth, Oregon: Teaching Research Division of OSSHE, 1969.
 - Vinacke, W. Edgar and Gullickson, Gary R., "Age and Sex Differences in the Formation of Coalitions." Child Development, 1964, 35, 1217-1231.
- e Wagner, Guy, Hosier, Max, Elackman, Mildred and Gilloley, Laura, Educational Games and Activities: A Sourcebook for Farents and Teachers. Darien, Connecticut: Teacher's Publishing, 1966.
 - Ware, Catherine Kidder, "Cooperation and Competition in Children: A Development Study of Behavior in Prisoner's Dilemma and Maximizing Differences Games." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-B, 3857B-3858B.
- e Werner, Roland and Roland, Jean, Bibliography of Simulations: Social Systems and Education. La Jolla, California: Western Behavioral Science Institute, 1969. (1150 Silverado)
 - Zieler, R., <u>Cames for School Use:</u> A <u>Bibliography</u>. Westchester County, New York: Board of Cooperative Educational Services, 1968, (845 Fox Meadow Road, Yorktown Heights, New York, 10598).



Section 16:

INTERPERSONAL PERCEPTION

This Section contains references dealing with attitudes and judgments in early childhood social relationships. Among the specific topics are: awareness of emotions in others, liking and sociometric status, and attitudes toward racial differences. (Other relevant sections include section 8: Character and Moral Development; section 22: Role Play, Stage Drama, Puppet Shows and Group Discussions; section 25: Social Behavior; section 26: Social Background and Personality Characteristics of Minority and Culturally Disadvantaged Children; and section 27: Social science education—developments relevant to the Affective Education.)

- Atwood, George, "A Developmental Study of Cognitive Balancing in Hypothetical Three-Person Systems." Child Development, 1969, 40, 73-85.
- Ausubel, D. P., Schiff, R. M. and Gasser, E. E., "A Preliminary Study of Developmental Trends in Socioempathy: Accuracy of Perception of Own and Others' Status." Child Development, 1952, 23, 111-128.
- Baldwin, Alfred L., Baldwin, Clara P., Hilton, Irma P. and Lambert, Nina W., "The Measurement of Social Expectations and Their Development in Children." Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, Serial No. 128, 1969, 34, (128, Whole No. 4).
- Baldwin, Clara P. and Baldwin, Alfred L., "Children's Judgments of Kindness." Child Development, 1970, 41, 29-47.
- 12 Eedonion, V. H., "Mental Eealth Analysis of Socially Over-Accepted, Socially Under-Accepted, Overage and Underage Pupils in the Sixth Grade."

 Journal of Educational Psychology, 1953, 44, 366-371.
 - Blain, Michael J. and Ramirez, Manuel III., "Increasing Sociometric Rank, Meaningfulness, and Discriminability of Children's Names Through Reinforcement and Interaction." Child Development, 1968, 39, 949-955.
- 9, Davidson, Helen H. and Lang, Gerhard, "Children's Perceptions of Their
 23 Teachers' Feelings Toward Them Related to Self-Perception, School
 Achievement, and Behavior." Journal of Experimental Education, 1960,
 29, 107-118.
 - Davis, J. A., "Correlates of Sociometric Status Among Peers." <u>Journal</u> of Educational Research, 1957, 50, 561-569.
 - Dubin, Robert and Dubin, Elisabeth R., "Children's Social Ferceptions: A Review of Research." Child Development, 1965, 36, 809-838.



- Flapan, Dorothy, Children's Understanding of Social Interaction. New York: Columbia University, Teachers College Press, 1968.
- Flavell, John H., et al., The Development of Role-Taking and Communication Skills in Children. New York: Wiley, 1968.
- Gilbert, Doris C., "The Young Child's Awareness of Affect." Child Development, 1969, 40, 629-640.
- 26 Goodman, Mary E., Race Awareness in Young Children: A Cultural Anthropologist's Study of How Racial Attitudes Begin Among Four-Year-Olds. New York: Collier, 1964.
 - Gronlund, N. E. and Holmlund, W. S., "The Value of Elementary School Sociometric Status Scores for Predicting Fupil's Adjustment in High School." Educational Administration and Supervision, 1958, 44, 225-260.
 - Guardo, C. J., "Personal Space in Children." Child Development, 1969, 40, 143-152.
 - Harris, D. E. and Tseng, S. C., "Children's Attitudes Toward Peers and Parents as Pevealed by Sentence Completions." Child Development, 1957, 28, 401-411.
 - Horowitz, F. D., "The Relationship of Anxiety, Self-Concept, and Sociometric Status Among Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Grade Children." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1962, 65, 212-214.
 - Jahoda, G., "Development of the Perception of Social Differences in Children From 6 to 10." British Journal of Psychology, 1959, 50, 159-175.
 - Karraker, Ronnie J., "An Experimental Investigation of Three Theories of Acquisition of Prejudice." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 26, 5236.
 - King, Robert M., "The Development of Some Intention Concepts in Young Children and Their Relation to Interaction Skills." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-B, 3468B-3469B.
 - Klaus, R. A., "Interrelationships of Attributes that Accepted and Rejected Children Ascribe to Their Peers." Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, George Peabody College for Teachers, 1959.
 - Koch, Helen L., 'Popularity in Preschool Children: Some Related Factors and a Technique for Its Measurement.' Child Development, 1933, 4, 164-175.
 - Lamb, Howard E., Ziller, Robert C. and Maloney, Alan W., "The Development of Self-Other Relationships During Project Head Start." Newark, Delaware: University of Delaware, 1965.
 - Laurendeau, Monique and Pinard, Adrien, <u>Causal Thinking in Children</u>. <u>New York:</u> International Universities Press, 1963.
 - Lerner, R. M., "The Development of Stereetyped Expectancies of Body Build-Behavior Relations." Child Development, 1969, 40, 137-141.



- Lesser, G. S., "The Relationships between Various Forms of Aggression and Popularity Among Lower-Class Children." <u>Journal of Educational</u> Psychology, 1959, 50, 20-25.
- Liebert, Robert M., Fernandez, Luis E. and Gill, Linda, "Effects of a 'Friendless' Model on Imitation and Prosocial Behavior." <u>Psychonomic Science</u>, 1969, 16, 81-82.
- Lott, Albert J. and Lott, Bernice E., "Some Indirect Measures of Interpersonal Attraction Among Children." <u>Journal of Experimental Education</u>, 1970, 61, 124-135.
- Lott, Albert J., Lott, Bernice E. and Matthews, Gail M., "Interpersonal Attraction Among Children as a Function of Vicarious Reward." <u>Journal of Experimental Psychology</u>, 1969, 60, 274-283.
- Lozar, Eve, "Children's Perception of Other Children's Fears." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1969, 114, 3-11.
- Marshall, H. R. and McCandless, B. R., "Relationships Between Dependence on Adults and Social Acceptance by Peers." Child Development, 1957, 28, 413-419.
- McCandless, B. R., Bilous, C. B. and Bennett, H. L., "Peer Popularity and Dependence on Adults in Preschool-Age Socialization." Child Development, 1961, 32, 511-518.
- McCendless, B. R. and Marshall, H. R., "A Ficture Sociometric Technique for Freschool Children and Its Relation to Teacher Judgments of Friendship." Child Development, 1957, 28, 139-148.
- McDavid, John W. and Harari, Herbert, "Stereotyping of Names and Popularity in Grade School Children." Child Development, 1966, 37, 453-459.
- Meisels, M. and Guardo, C. J., "Development of Personal Space Schemata." Child Development, 1969, 40, 1167-1178.
- Northway, M. L., "Outsiders: A Study of the Personality Patterns of Children Least Acceptable to Their Age Mates." Sociemetry, 1944, 7, 10-25.
- Richardson, Stephen A. and Royce, Jacqueline, "Race and Physical Handicap in Children's Preference for Other Children." Child Development, 1968, 39, 467-480.
- Roff, M. and Sells, S. B., "Relations Botween Intelligence and Sociometric Status in Groups Differing in Sex and Socioeconomic Eackground."

 Psychological Reports, 1965, 16, 511-516.
- Rothenberg, Barbara B., "Children's Social Sensitivity and the Relationship to Interpersonal Competence, Intrapersonal Comfort, and Intellectual Level." Developmental Psychology, 1970, 2, 335-350.
- Schmuck, R. A., Luszki, M. B. and Epperson, D. C., "Interpersonal Relations and Mental Health in the Classroom." In D. H. Clark and G. S. Lesser (Eds.), Emotional Disturbance and Social Learning. Chicago: Science Research Associates, 1965.



- Sidwell, D. M., "Ratings of the Behavior of Four-Year-Olds by Children of the Same Age, Nursery School Teachers, and Parents." Unpublished M.S. Thesis, University of California at Berkeley, 1953.
- Staffieri, J. R., "A Study of Social Stereotype of Body Image in Children."

 Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1967, 7, 101-107.
- Sutton-Smith, B. and Rosenberg, B. G., "Peer Perceptions of Impulsive Behavior." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1961, 7, 233-238.
- Tagiuri, Renato and Petrullo, Luigi, (Eds.) Person Perception and Interpersonal Behavior. Stanford, California: Stanford University, 1958.
- Thompson, Daniel C., "Development of Attitudes in Respect to Discrimination."

 American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1962, 32, 74-85.
- Trickett, H. V., "Stability and Predictability of Children's Self-Concept and Perceptions by Others: A Developmental Study." <u>Dissertation</u>
 <u>Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 822-A.
- Tuddenham, R. D., "Studies in Reputation: III. Correlates of Popularity Among Elementary School Children." <u>Journal of Educational Psychology</u>, 1951, 42, 257-276.
- Udry, J. Richard, "A Research Note on Children's Conceptions of Beauty." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1966, 12, 165-172.
- Walker, Richard N., "Some Temperament Traits in Children as Viewed by Their Peers, Their Teachers, and Themselves." Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, 1967, (Whole No. 117), 32.
- Whiteman, Martin, "Children's Conceptions of Psychological Causality." Child Development, 1967, 38, 143-155.
- Witryol, S. L. and Thompson, G. G., "A Critical Review of the Stability of Social Acceptibility Scores Obtained With the Partial-Rank-Order and the Paired-Comparison Scales." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1953, 48, 221-260/
- Wright, B. A., 'Altruism in Children and Perceived Conduct of Others."

 Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1942, 37, 218-233.
- Yarrow, Marian R. and Campbell, John D., "Person Perception in Children." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1963, 9, 57-72.
- 20 Yarrow, Marian R., Trager, H. G. and Davis, H., "Social Perceptions and Attitudes of Children." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1949, 40, 327-447.



Section 17:

LONGITUDINAL STUDIES: GENERAL REFERENCES RELEVANT TO THE AFFECTIVE DOMAIN

The references in this section deal with longitidunal studies of broader personality characteristics relevant to the affective domain. The characteristics considered in this section sut across several of the more traditional personality traits, e.g., aggression, achievement motivation, self-esteem. Studies concerned with more specific personality characteristics are indicated by margin notations—the number in parentheses refers to the section number of this bibliography to which the article is relevant. Thus, for example, the number 2 to the left of the entry signifies that the article is relevant to "Achievement Motivation"; the number 23 signifies relavance to "Self concept and Self-esteem." Other numbers refer to 4: Aggression, anger and frustration; 12: Differentiation and Identification of Healthful and Normal Child Behavior; 20: Personality—general references; 21: Personlaity Preferences on miscellaneous specific traits.

- Alystyne, Dorothy V. and Hattwick, Laberta A., "A Follow-Up Study of the Behavior of Nursery School Children." Child Development, 1939, 10, 43-72.
- Anderson, J. E., Harris, D. R., Werner, E. and Gallistel E., A Study of Children's Adjustment Over Time. Minneapolis: INstitute of Child Development and Welfare, 1959.
 - Bayley, Nancy, "Individual Patterns of Development." Child Development, 1956, 27, 45-74.
 - Bayley, Nancy, "Research in Child Development: A Longitudinal Perspective." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1965, 11, 183-208.
 - Bloom, Benjamin S., The Stability and Change in Human Characteristics. New York: John Wiley, 1964.
 - Bronson, G., "Critical Periods in Human Development." <u>British Journal of Medical Psychology</u>, 1962, 35, 127-133.
 - Bronson, Wanda C., "Central Orientations: A Study of Behavior Organized from Childhood to Adolescence." Child Development, 1966, 37, 125-155.
 - Bronson, Wanda C., "Stable Patterns of Behavior: The Significance of Enduring Orientations for Personality Development." In J. P. Hill (Ed.), Minnesota Symposia on Child Psychology. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press, 1969, 3-27.



- e Emmerich, Walter, "Stability and Change in Early Personality Development."
 In Willard W. Hartup and Nancy Smothergill (Eds.), The Young Child.
 Washington, D. C.: National Association for the Education of Young Children, 1967.
- e Gardner, G. E. and Boston Children's Medical Center, <u>Emerging Personality:</u>
 <u>Infancy through Adolescence</u>. New York: Delacorte, 1970.
 - Holtzman, Wayne H., "Precursors of Later Personality Traits in Children."

 Proceedings of the 77th Annual Convention of the American Psychological Association, 1969, 4, 289-290.
 - Holtzman, Wayne H., Diaz-Guerrero, Swartz, J. D. and Tapia, L. L., "Cross-Cultural Longitudinal Research on Child Development: Studies of American and Mexican School-Children." In J. P. Hill (Ed.), Minnesota Symposia on Child Psychology, Vol. 2. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press, 1969.
 - Honzik, Marjorie P., "Prediction of Behavior from Firth to Maturity."

 (Review of Jerome Kagan and Howard Moss, <u>Birth to Maturity: A Study in Psychological Development</u>). <u>Merrill-Palmer Quarterly</u>, 1965, 11, 77-88.
 - Kagan, Jerome, "American Longitudinal Research on Psychological Development." Child Development, 1964, 35, 1-32.
 - Kagan, Jerome, "The Three Faces of Continuity in Human Development." In David Goslin (Ed.), <u>Handbook of Socialization Theory and Research</u>. Chicago: Rand-McNally, 1969.
- e Kagan, Jerome and Moss, Howard, Birth to Maturity. New York: Wiley, 1962.
 - Klein, Melanie, "Our Adult World and Its Roots in Infancy." <u>Human Relations</u>, 1959, 12, 291-303.
- Lindemann, Elizabeth B. and Ross, Ann, "A Follow-Up Study of a Predictive Test of Social Adaptation in Preschool Children." In G. Caplan (Ed.), Emotional Problems of Early Childhood. New York: Basic Books, 1955.
 - Martin, W., "Singularity and Stability of Profiles of Social Behavior."

 In .C. B. Stendler (Ed.), Readings in Child Behavior and Development.

 New York: Harcourt, Brace, 1964.
- e McCaffrey, Isabel and Cumming, John, "Behavior Patterns Associated with Persistent Emotional Disturbances of School Children in Regular Classes of Elementary Grades, a Report of a Longitudinal Study of Children in the Second Grade in 1961." Interim report, Onodago County School Boards Association, Syracuse, New York, 1967 (ED 019 793).
 - McKinnon, Kathern M., Consistency and Change in Behavior Emnifestations as
 Observed in a Group of Sixteen Children During a Five-Year Period.

 New York: Bureau of Publications, Teachers College, 1942.
 - Murphy, Lois B., "Factors in Continuity and Change in the Development of Adaptational Style in Children." <u>Vita Eumana</u>, 1964, <u>7</u>, 96-114.



- Neidt, C. O. and Hedlund, D. E., "Longitudinal Relationships between Cognifive and Affective Learning Outcomes." <u>Journal of Experimental Education</u>, 1969, 37, 56-60.
- Neilon, Patricia, "Shirley's Babies after Fifteen Years: A Personality Study." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1948, 73, 175-186.
- Pringle, M. L., Butler, N. R. and Davie, R., "11,000 Seven-Year Olds. The National Child Development Study." (1958) Cohort.) New York: Humanities Press, 1966.
- Ryder, R. G., "Birth to Maturity Revisited: A Canonical Reanalysis."

 Journal of Personality and Social Tsychology, 1967, 7, 168-172.
- Sontag, L. W., Baker, C. T. and Welson, V. L., "Mental Growth and Personality Development: A Longitudinal Study." Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, 1958, 23, No. 2.
- Stone, A. A. and Onque, G. C., Longitudinal Studies of Child Personality. Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1959.
- Stott, Leland H., Child Development: An Individual Longitudinal Approach. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1967.
- Thomae, H., "Objective Socialization Variables and Personality Development." Human Development, 1965, 3, 87-116.
- Thomas, Alexander, Chess, Stella and Birch, Herbert G., "The Origin of Personality." Scientific American, 1970, 223, 102-109.
- Westman, Jack C., Rice, Dale L. and Bermann, Eric, "Nursery School Behavior and Later School Adjustment." American Journal of Psychiatry, 1967, 37, 725-731.
- Yarrow, L. J., "Personality consistency and Change: An Overview of Some Conceptual and Methodological Issues." Vita Humana, 1964, 7, 67-72.



Section 18:

MISCELLANEOUS EMOTIONAL STATES AND RESPONSES IN THE YOUNG CHILD

General references to emotion and affect are included in this section.

Also included are relevant references on such specific topics as: smiling,
laughter, affection, and love; fear; crying; depression; jealousy; insecurity;
and the child's concept of death. (For references on closely related topics
see section 4: Aggression, Anger, and Frustration in the Young Child; section
12: The Differentiation and Identification of Healthful and Mormal Patterns
of Behavior and Emotional Response; section 16: Interpersonal Perception, and
section 25: Social Behavior.)

- Amen, E. W. and Revison, N., "A Study of the Relationship Between Play Patterns and Insccurity in Young Children." Genetic Psychology Monegraphs, 1954, 50, 3-41.
- Ames, Louise Bates, "Development of Interpersonal Smiling Responses in the Preschool Years." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1949, 74, 273-291.
- Andrus, Ruth and Horowitz, Eugene L., "The Effect of Mursery School Training: Insecurity Feelings." Child Development, 1938, 9, 169-174.
- Arsenian, Jean M., "Young Children in an Insecure Situation." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1943, 38, 225-249.
- e Association for Childhood Education International. <u>Feelings and Learning</u>.

 Washington, D. C.: Association for Childhood Education International, 1960.
 - Ausubel, David, "Emotional Development." In Chester Harris (Ed.), Encyclopedia of Educational Research (Rev. Ed.). New York: Macmillan, 1960.
 - Blatz, W. E., Allin, K. D. and Millichemp, D. A., 'A Study of Laughter in the Mursery School Child." <u>University of Toronto Studies on Child Development</u>, 1936, No. 7.
 - Brackett, Catherine W., "Laughing and Crying of Preschool Children."

 <u>Child Development Monographs</u>, 1934, No. 14.
 - Bridges, Katherine M., The Social and Emotional Development of the Preschool Child. London: Kegan Paul, 1931.
 - Bronson, G. W., "The Development of Fear in Man and Other Animals." Child Development, 1968, 39, 409-431.
 - Brown, F., "Depression and Childhood Bereavement." <u>Journal of Mental Science</u>, 1961, 107, 754-777.



- Burrs, Virginia L., "The Influence of Peer Reactions on Children's Humor Preferences: An Observational Learning Approach." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, <u>28-B</u>, 5200-B.
- Coolidge, John C., Brodie, Richard D. and Feeney, Earbara, "A Ten-Year Follow-Up of Sixty-Six School-Phobic Children." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1964, 34, 675-684.
- 9 Cox, F. N. and Campbell, D., "Young Children in a New Situation With and Without Their Nothers." Child Development, 1968, 39, 123-131.
 - Croake, James W., "Foars of Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, <u>28-B</u>, 337B-338B.
 - Decarie, Gauin, <u>Intelligence and Affectivity in Farly Chilchood</u>. New York: International Universities Press, inc., 1965.
 - deCharms, Richard, The Internal Affective Determinants of Behavior. New York: Academic Press, 1968.
 - Ding, Gladys F. and Jersild, Arthur T., "A Study of the Laughing and Smiling of Preschool Children." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1932, 40, 452-472.
 - Ellinwood, C., "Structural Development in the Expression of Emotion by Children." Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, University of Chicago, 1969.
 - Enders, Abbie C., "A Study of the Laughter of the Preschool Child in the Merrill-Palmer Nursery School." Papers, Michigan Academy of Science Arts and Letters, 1927, 8, 341-356.
 - Farmer, Capen, "Words and Feelings: A Developmental Study of the Language of Emotion in Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, <u>28-B</u>, 2134B-2135B.
- e Fellows, Erwin W., "Happiness: A Survey of Research." <u>Journal of Humanistic</u> Psychology, 1966, 6, 17-30.
 - Feshbach, Norma D. and Roe, Kiki, "Empathy in Six-and-Seven-Year Olds." Child Development, 1968, 39, 133-145.
 - Freedman, Daniel G., Loring, Charlotte B. and Martin, Robert M., "Emotional Behavior and Personality Development." In Yvonne Brackbill (Ed.), Infancy and Early Childhood. New York: Free Press, 1967.
 - Frick, Willard B., "School Thobia: A Critical Review of the Literature."

 Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1964, 10, 361-374.
 - Fryrear, J. L. and Thelen, M. H., "The Effect of Sex of Model and Sex of Observer on the Imitation of Affectionate Behavior." Developmental Psychology, 1969, 1, 298.
- e Gordon, Ira J., "Social and Emotional Development." In Robert L. Ebel (Ed.), Encyclopedia of Educational Research (Fourth Edition). Toronto: (The Macmillan Company) Collier-Macmillan, Ltd., 1969.

ļ

- Hagman, Elmer R., "A Study of Fears of Children of Preschool Age." Journal of Experimental Education, 1932, 1, 110-130.
- Heathers, Glen, "The Adjustment of Two-Year-Olds in a Movel Social Situation." Child Development, 1954, 25, 147-158.
- Henry, Jules, "Death Fear and Climax in Mursery School Play." In Peter B. Neubaucr (Ed.), Concepts of Development in Early Childhood Education. Springfield, Illinois: Charles C. Thomas, 1965.
- Jersild, A. T. and Holmes, Frances, Children's Fears. New York: Bureau of Published Teachers Collection, Columbia University, 1935.
- Jersild, A. T. and Holmes, Frances E., "Methods of Overcoming Children's Fears." Journal of Psychology, 1935, 1, 75-104.
- Jersild, A. T., Markey, F. V. and Jersild, C. L., "Children's Fears, Dreams, Wishes, Daydreams, Likes, Dislikes, Pleasant and Unpleasant Memories."

 <u>Child Development Monographs</u>, 1933, No. 12.
- Jones, Harold E., "The Significance of Patterns of Emotional Expression for Later Adjustment." In Herbert S. Conrad (Ed.), Studies in Human Development. New York: Appleton, 1966.
- Jones, H. E. and Jones, M. C., "A Study of Fear." Childhood Education, 1928, 5, 136-143.
- Jones, M. C., "The Elimination of Children's Fears." <u>Journal of Experimental Psychology</u>, 1924, 8, 322-390.
- Kenderdine, M., "Laughter in the Preschool Child." Child Development, 1931, 2, 228-230.
- Landreth, Catherine, "Consistency of Four Methods of Measuring One Type of Sporadic Emotional Behavior (crying) in Nursery School Children."

 Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1940, 57, 101-118.
- Landreth, Catherine, "Factors Associated With Crying in Young Children in the Nursery School and the Home." Child Development, 1941, 12, 81-97.
- e Long, Nicholas, et al., "Helping Children Cope With Feelings." Childhood Education, 1969, 45, 367-372.
 - Mahoney, Sheila M., "The Laughter of Children in Kindergarten: Associated Conditions and Teachers' Awareness of and Reaction to This Laughter." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 3641-A.
 - Marston, L. R., "The Emotions of Young Children." University of Iowa Studies in Child Welfare, 1925, 3.
 - Maurer, A., "What Children Fear." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1965, 106, 265-277.
- e McDonald, M., "Helping Children to Understand Death." <u>Journal of Nursery</u> <u>Education</u>, 1963, 19, 19-25.



- Peck, Rosalind, "The Development of the Concept of Death in Selected Male Children: An Experimental Investigation of the Development of the Concept of Death in Selected Children From the Point of No Concept to the Point Where a Fully Developed Concept is Attained With an Investigation of Some Factors Which May Affect the Course of Concept Development. Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 27-B, 1294-B.
 - Plutchik, Robert, The Emotions: Facts, Theories, and a New Model. New York: Random, 1962.
- e Prescott, Daniel A., "The Role of Love in Human Development." <u>Journal of Home Economics</u>, 1952, 44, 173-176.
 - Roslyn P., "Separation Foar and the Fear of Death in Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1967, 27-B, 2878B-2879B.
 - Schachter, Stanley and Singer, Jerome E., "Cognitive, Social and Physiological Determinents of Emotional State." <u>Fsychological Review</u>, 1962, 69, 379-399.
 - Schmale, Arthur H., 'A Genetic View of Affects. With Special Reference to the Genesis of Helplessness and Hopelessness." The Psychoanalytic Study of the Child, 1964, 19, 287-318.
 - Schwartz, J. Conrad, "Fear and Attachment in Young Children." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1968, 14, 313-322.
 - Sewall, M., "Some Causes of Jealousy in Young Children." Smith College Studies in Social Work, 1936, I, 6-20. (Smith College, Northampton, Mass.)
 - Shirley, Mary M., "Children's Adjustments to a Strange Situation." <u>Journal</u> of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1942, 37, 201-217.
 - Spitz, R. A., "The Smiling Response: A Contribution to the Ontogenesis of Social Relations." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1946, 34, 57-125.
- e Stolz, L. M., Our Changing Understanding of Young Children's Fears, 1920-1960. New York: National Association for the Education of Young Children, 1964.
- e Theory Into Practice, April, 1969, 8, (The Whole Issue).
 - Von Hug-Hellmuth, H., Translated by Kris, O. A., "The Child's Conception of Death." Psychoanalytic Quarterly, 1965, 34, 499-516.
 - Wilson, J., "An Experimental Investigation of the Development of Smiling." Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, University of Chicago, 1962.
 - Young, P. T., Motivation and Emotion. New York: Wiley, 1961.
 - Zigler, Edward, Levine, Jacob and Gould, Lawrence, "Cognitive Processes in the Development of Children's Appreciation of Humor." Child Development, 1966, 37, 507-518.



Section 19:

PARENT AND HOME INFLUENCES IN AFFECTIVE DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATION

The school, the playgroup, parent and home complement and interact with one another in influencing the affective development of the normal young child. This section of the bibliography contains a sampling of references on each of several parent—and home—related topics. These topics include: parent—child relations; childrearing and education for childrearing; parent participation in schools; parent education by school personnel in the home setting, and the effects of separation from parents on child development. (For references on closely related topics the bibliography see section 4: Aggression, Anger, and Frustration in the Young Child; and section 9: Classroom Management and the Practice of Teacher—Given Guidance and Discipline.)

- Baumrind, Diana, "Child Care Practices Anteceding Three Patterns of Preschool Behavior." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1967, 75, 43-88.
- Baumrind, Diana, "Effects of Authoritative Parental Control on Child Behavior." Child Development, 1966, 37. 887-907.
 - Becker, W. C., "Consequences of Different Kinds of Parental Discipline."
 In M. L. Hoffman and L. W. Hoffman (Eds.), Review of Child Development
 Research, Vol. I. New York: Russell Sage, 1964.
 - Brim, Orville G., Education for Childrearing. New York: Free Press, 1965.
 - Casler, L., "Maternal Deprivation: A Critical Review of the Literature."

 Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, 1961,
 26, 1-64.
- e Coopersmith, Stanley, <u>The Antecedents of Self-Esteem</u>. San Francisco: W. H. Freeman, 1967.
- e Cowen, Emory, "Mothers in the Classroom." Psychology Today, 1969, 3, 36-39.
 - Frank, G. H., "The Role of the Family in the Development of Psychopathology." Psychological Bulletin, 1965, 64, 191-205.
 - Fuchs, Natalia and Fuchs, Rogers., "Play Therapy at Home." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1957, 3, 89-95.
 - Furman, Robert A. and Katan, Anny, The Therapeutic Nursery School. New York: International Universityies, 1969.
 - Ginott, Haim G., Between Parent and Child. New York: Macmillan, 1965.



- Holland, Cornelius J., "Elimination by Parents of Fire-Setting Behavior in a 7-Yr-Old Boy." Behavior Research and Therapy, 1969, 7, 135-137.
- Karnes, Merle B., Studley, William M., Wright, Willis R. and Hodgins, Audrey S., "An Approach for Working with Mothers of Disadvantaged Preschool Children." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1968, 14, 174-183.
- Lindsley, O. R., "An Experiment with Parents Handling Behavior at Home." Johnstone Bulletin, 1966, 9, 27-36.
- Maccoby, E. and Gibbs, P. K., "Methods of Childrearing in Two Social Classes." In W. E. Martin and C. B. Stendler (Eds.), Readings in Child Development. New York: Harcourt, Brace and Co., 1954.
- Martin, B., "Family Interaction Associated with Child Disturbance: Assessment and Modification." Psychotherapy: Theory, Research and Practice, 1967, 4, 30-35.
- National School Public Relations Association (in cooperation with Association of Classroom Teachers). Working with Parents: A Guide for Classroom Teachers and Other Educators.
- Patterson, G. R., Cobb, J. A. and Ray, Roberta S., "A Social Engineering Technology for Retraining Aggressive Boys." In M. Adams and L. Unikel (Eds.), Georgia Symposium in Experimental CLinical Psychology, Vol. II. Elmsford, New York: Pergamon Press, 1970.
- Patterson, G. R. and Gullion, M. E., <u>Living with Children: New Methods for Parents and Teachers</u>. Champaign, Illinois: Research Press, 1968.
- Patterson, G. R., Ray, Roberta S. and Shaw, D. A., "Direct Intervention in Families of Deviant Children." Oregon Research Institute Research Bulletin, 1968, 8, No. 9 (Eugene, Ore.).
- Patterson, G. R., Ray, Roberta S., Shaw, D. A. and Cobb, J. A., "Hanual for Coding of Family Interactions." Unpublished Manuscript, Oregon Research Institute, Eugene, 1969.
- Pavenstedt, E., "A Comparison of the Child-Rearing Environment of Upper-Lower and Very Low-Lower Class FAmilies." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1965
- Shepard, Samuel, Jr., "Working with Parents of Disadvantaged Children."
 In C. W. Hunnicutt (Ed.), <u>Urban Education and Cultural Deprivation</u>.
 Syracuse, New York: Syracuse University School of Education, 1964.
- Siegelman, Marvin, "Loving and Punishment Parental Behavior and Introversion Tendencies in Sons." Child Development, 1966, 37, 985-992.
- Skells, H. M., "Adult Status of Children with Contrasting Early Life Experiences." Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, 1966, 31 (3), 1-65.
- Smith, Mildred B. and Brahce, C. L., "When School and Home Focus on Achievement." Educational Leadership, 1963, 20, 314-318.



- Tallman, Irving, "Adaptability: A Problem Solving Approach to Assessing Childrearing Practices." Child Development, 1961, 32, 651-668.
- Utech, D. A. and Hoving, K. L., "Parents and Peers as Competing Influences in the Decisions of Children of Differing Ages." <u>Journal of Social</u> Psychology, 1969, 78, 267-274.
- Wahler, R. G., Winkel, G. H., Peterson, R. F. and Morrison, D. C. "Mothers as Behavior Therapists for Their Own Children." Behavior Research and Therapy, 1965, 3, 113-124.
- Walder, L., Cohen, S. and Daston, P., "Teaching Parents and Others Principles of Behavior Control for Modifying the Behavior of Children." Progress Report, 1967, U. S. Office of Education, Report No. 32-30-7515-5024.
- Watson, Goodwin, "Some Personality Differences in Children Related to Strict or Permissive Parental Discipline." American Journal of Psychology, 1957, 44, 227-249.
- Winn, Marie and Porcher, Mary A., The Playgroup Book. New York: MacMillan, 1967.
- Yarrow, L. J., "Separation from Parents during Early Childhood." In M. L. Hoffman and L. W. Hoffman (Eds.), Review of Child Development Research, Vol. I. New York: Russell Sage, 1964.
- Yarrow, Marian R., Campbell, John D. and Burton, Roger V., Childrearing:

 An Inquiry into Research and Methods. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass,
 1968.
- Zeilberger, Jane, Sampen, Sue and Sloane, Howard N., "Modification of a Child's Problem Behaviors in the Home with the Mother as Therapist." Journal of Applied Behavior Analysis, 1968, 1, 47-53.



Section 20:

PERSONALITY: GENERAL REFERENCES

The references contained in this section of the bibliography cover non-specific, broadly-conceived issues relevant to the general topic of personality. Among the topics covered are: motivation; values; personality development; and cross-cultural studies. (For references on closely related topics see the sections covering various specific personality topics, e.g., Achievement Motivation, Self-Concept and Self-Esteem.)

- Alsohuler, Pose H., <u>Painting and Personality</u>. Chicago: The University of Chicago Press, 1969.
- Atkinson, J. W., (Ed.) Motives in Fantasy, Action and Society. Princeton, New Jersey: Van Mostrand, 1958.
- Atkinson, J. V., An Introduction to Hotivation. Frinceton, New Jersey: Van Mostrand, 1964.
- Ausubel, D., Ego Development and the Personality Disorders. New York: Grune and Stratton, 1952.
- Bell, Richard Q., Retrospective and Prospective Views of Early Personality Development. Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1960, 6, 131-144
- Berkowitz, Leonard, The Development of Motives and Values in the Child. New York: Easic Books, 1964.
- ERIC Clearing House on Early Childhood Education, Urbana, Illinois. "Early Childhood Selected Bibliographies Series, Mo. 6, Personality, 1968, (ED 024 475).
- Cofer and Appley, Motivation: Theory and Research. New York: Wiley, 1964.
- deCharms, Richard, Personal Causation. The Internal Affective Determinants of Behavior. New York: Academic Press, 1968.
- Dorn, Miriam S., "A Study of the Questions Asked by Kindergarten Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, <u>27-A</u>, 2936A-2937A.
- e Early, C. J., "Attitude Learning in Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 27-A, 569A-670A.
 - Emmerich, Walter, 'Personality Development and Concepts of Structure.' Child Development, 1968, 39, 671-690.
 - Foshay, Arthur W., Burke, A. J., Rychard, R. and Jennkins, F. G., Children's Social Values. Chicago: Rand, McNally, 1963.



- Freedman, Daniel G., Loring, Charlotte B. and Martin, Robert M., 'Emotional Behavior and Personality Development." In Yvonne Erackbill (Ed.), Infancy and Early Childhood. New York: Free Press, 1967.
- 17 Guest, Lester, "A Longitudinal Study of Attitude Development and Some Correlates." Child Development, 1964, 35, 779-784.
 - Hall, C. S. and Lindzey, C., Theorics of Personality. New York: Wiley, 1957.
- e Harris, Dale B., "Changing Values I." Young Children, 1965, 20, 230-248.
 - Hartmann, Ecintz, Ego Psychology and the Problem of Adaptation. New York: International Universities Press, 1964.
 - Hartmann, Heintz, Kris, Ernst, and Loewenstein, Fudolph M., "Comments on the Formation of Psychic Structure." Psychoanalytic Study of the Child. 1946, 2, 11-38.
 - Holtzman, W. H., "Cross-Cultural Research on Personality Development." <u>Human Development</u>, 1965, 8, 65-86.
 - Hunt, J., "Experience and the Development of Motivation: Some Reinter-pretations." Child Development, 1960, 31, 489-504.
 - Hunt, J., "Traditional Personality Theory in Light of Recent Evidence."

 American Scientist, 1965, 53, 80-96.
 - Iscoe, I. and Stevenson, H. W., (Eds.) <u>Personality Development in Children</u>.

 Austin, Texas: University of Texas, 1960.
- 14 Jung, C. G., Two Essays on Analytical Psychology. New York: Bollingen, 1966.
- 17 Kellmer, Pringle M. and Gooch, S., "Chosen Ideal Person Personality Development and Progress in School Subjects, a Longitudinal Study." <u>Human Development</u>, 1965, <u>8</u>, 161-180.
 - Maslow, A. H., "A Theory of Human Motivation." <u>Psychological Review</u>, 1943, 50, 370-396.
 - McClelland, D. C., "Toward a Theory of Motive Acquisition." American Psychologist, 1965, 20, 321-333.
 - Mischel, Walter, Personality and Assessment. New York: Wiley, 1968.
 - Hurphy, Lois B., <u>Personality in Young Children: Volume I, Methods for the Study of Personality in Young Children.</u> New York: Basic Books, 1956.
- 24 Rafferty, J. E., Tyler, B. and Tyler, F. B., "Personality Assessment From Free Play Observation." Child Development, 1960, 31, 691-702.
 - Schachter, Frances F., Cooper, Allan and Gordet, Rona, "A Method for Assessing Personality Development for Follow-Up Evaluations of the Freschool Child." Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, 1968, 33, (Serial No. 119).



- Sells, S. B., "Personality." In Rebert L. Ebel (Ed.), <u>Encyclopedia of Educational Research</u>. (Fourth Edition). Toronto: (The Macmillan Company) Collier-Macmillan Canada, Ltd., 1969.
- Talbert, Elmar G., "Story Fraferences: A Technique for Assessing Children's Motives." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, <u>29-A</u>, 821-A.
- Tsimmer, I., "Motivy Detskego Povedeniya i Volya." (Metives of Child Behavier and Will.) Doshkol'nee Vospitanie, 1968, 41, 95-98.
- Veroff, Joseph, "Theoretical Background for Studying the Origins of Human Motivational Dispositions." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1965, 11, 3-18.
 - Weiner, Bernard, "Motivation." In Robert L. Ebel (Ed.), <u>Fncyclopedia</u> of <u>Educational Research</u>. (Fourth Edition). Toronto: (The Facmillan Company) Collier-Macmillan Canada, Ltd., 1969.
 - White, R., "Ego and Reality in Psychoanalytic Theory." <u>Psychological Issues</u>, 1963, 3, No. 3.



Section 21:

PERSONALITY: REFERENCES ON MISCELLANEOUS SPECIFIC TRAITS

This section of the bibliography contains references on various specific personality characteristics concerning which there exists only a limited body of research literature. Among the personality characteristics covered in this section are: anxiety; delay of gratification; fear of failure; conformity; competence motivation; social conformity; and dependency. (For references on closely related topics see section 20: Personality--General References.)

- 4 Ackerman, N. W., "Constructive and Distructive Tendencies in Children: An Experimental Study." American Journal of Crthopsychiatry, 1938, 8, 265-285
- 24 Amen, E. and Renison, N. "A Study of the Relationship Between Play Patterns and Anxiety in Young Children." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1954, 50, 3-41.
 - Armstrong, Judith G., "Intellectual Competence and Coping Behavior in Preschool Children." <u>Pissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29(12-B), 4837-4838.
 - Atkinson, John W., 'Motivational Determinants of Risk-Taking Behavior." Psychological Feview, 1957, 64, 359-372.
 - Bandura, A. and Mischel, W., "Modification of Self-Imposed Delay of Reward Through Exposure to Live and Symbolic Models." Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1965, 2, 698-705.
 - Beller, E. K., "Dependency and Independence in Young Children." <u>Journal</u> of Genetic Psychology, 1955, 37, 23-25.
 - 4 Birney, Robert C., Burdick, Harvey and Teevan, Richard C., Fear of Failure. New York: Van Nostrand-Reinhold, 1969.
 - Bradfer-Blomart, J., "Le Comportement Imprudent Chez L'enfant." (Imprudent Behavior in Children.) <u>Psychologica Belgica</u>, 1965-1966, 6, 45-53.
- 17 Bronson, Wanda C., "Early Antecedents of Emotional Expressiveness and Reactivity Control." Child Development, 1966, 37, 793-810.
- 17 Bronson, Wanda C., "Adult Derivatives of Emotional Expressiveness and Reactivity-Control: Developmental Continuities From Childhood to Adulthood." Child Development, 1967, 38, 801-817.
 - Rutterfield, E. C., "The Role of Competence Motivation in Interrupted Task Recall and Repetition Choice." <u>Journal of Experimental Child Psychology</u>, 1965, 2, 354-370.



- Canavon, Donna L., "The Development of Individual Differences in the Perception of Value and Risk Taking Style." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 30-E, 2394E-2395B.
- Castanzo, P. R. and Shaw, ii. E., 'Conformity as a Function of Age Level.' Child Development, 1966, 37, 967-975.
- 2 Crandall, Virginia C., "Personality Characteristics and Social and Achievement Behaviors Associated with Children's Social Desirability Response Tendencies." Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1966, 4, 477-486.
 - Crandall, Virginia C., "The Social Desirability Responses of Children of Four Religious-Cultural Groups." Child Development, 1969, 40, 751-762.
 - Crandall, Virginia C., Grandall, V. J. and Katkovsky, W., W. Children's Social Desirability Questionnaire. Journal of Consulting Psychology, 1965, 29, 27-36.
 - Crandall, Virginia C., Katkovsky, W. and Crandall, V. J., "Children's Beliefs in Their Own Control of Reinforcements in Intellectual Achievement Situations." Child Development, 1965, 36, 91-109.
 - Crandall, V. J., "rleans, S., Preston, A. and Rabson, A., "The Development of Social Compliance in Young Children." Child Ecvelopment, 1958, 29, 429-443.
- 17 Coolidge, J. C., Brodie, R. D. and Feeney, E., "A Ten-Year Follow-Up Study of Sixty-Six School-Phobic Children." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1964, 34, 675-684.
 - Crowne, D. P. and Marlowe, D., The Approval Motive. New York: Wiley, 1964.
 - Cruse, Daniel B., "Socially Desirable Responses in Relation to Grade Level."

 <u>Child Development</u>, 1963, 34, 777-789.
 - Cruse, Daniel E., "Socially Desirable Responses at Ages 3 Through 6." Child Development, 1966, 37, 909-916.
 - Debus, Ray L., "Effects of Brief Observation of Model Behavior on Conceptual Temp of Impulsive Children." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1970, 2, 22-32.
 - e De Haan, Robert F., "A Study of Leadershir in School-Age Children." Childhood Education, 1967, 43, 492.
 - Dorman, Lynn, "Assertive Behavior and Cognitive Performance in Preschool Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 30-B, 2397B-2398B.
 - Feldhusen, J. F. and Thurston, J. R., "Personality and Adjustment of High and Low Anxious Children." Journal of Educational Research, 1964, 57, 265-267.
 - 4 Feshbach, Norma D. and Feshbach, S., "The Relationship Between Empathy and Aggression in Two Age Groups." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1969, <u>1</u>, 102-107.



- Figert, Ressell L., Jr., "In Elementary School Form of the Dogmatism Scale."

 Journal of Experimental Education, 1968, 37, 19-23.
- Ford, B. L. and McCaffrey, A., "An Exploratory Investigation of 'Power' Among Mursery School Children by the Method of Resource Process Analysis." Cornell Journal of Social Relations, 1966, Spring.
- 23 Goldschmid, Marcel L., 'The Relation of Conservation to Emotional and Environmental Aspects of Development." Child Development, 1968, 39, 579-589.
 - Golightly, Carole, Melson, Don and Johnson, James, "Children's Dependency Scale." Developmental Psychology, 1970, 3, 114-118.
 - Gratch, G., "An Exploratory Study of the Relation of Dependence Upon Adult Approval and Age to Children's Pisk Taking." Child Development, 1964, 35, 1155-1167.
- 12 Haan, N., "Proposed Model of Ego Functioning: Coping and Defense Mechanisms in Pelationship to IQ Change." <u>Psychological Monographs</u>, 1963, <u>77</u> (8, Whole No. 571).
 - Hancock, John G. and Toevan, Richard C., "Fear of Failure and Risk-Taking Behavior." Journal of Personality, 1964, 32, 200-209.
 - Harper, Frank B., Howing, Kenneth, Holm, Gretchen, Saggo, Joanna, and Dubanoski, Richard, "Young Children's Yielding to False Adult Judgments." Child Development, 1965, 36, 175-183.
 - Hartup, Willard W., 'Dependence and Independence." In Harold W. Stevenson (Ed.), Child Psychology: 62nd Yearbook of the MSSE, Part I. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1963.
 - Heathers, G., "Acquiring Dependence and Independence: A Theoretical Orientation." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1955, 87, 277-291.
 - Heathers, G., "Emotional Dependence and Independence in Nursery School Play."

 Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1955, 87, 37-57.
 - e Hetherington, E. M. and Brackbill, Yvonne, "Eticlogy and Covariation of Obstinacy, Orderliness, and Parsimony in Young Children." Child Development, 1963, 34, 919-943.
 - Iscoe, Ira, Williams, Martha and Harvey, Jerry, 'Medification of Children's Judgments by a Simulated Group Technique: A Normative Developmental Study." Child Development, 1963, 34, 963-978.
 - Kagan, Jerome, "Body-Puild and Conceptual Impulsivity in Children."

 Journal of Personality, 1966, 34, 118-128.
 - Kampwirth, Thomas J., "Experimental Influences on Dependency Behaviors of Kindergarten Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-4, 2120A-2121A.
 - Kess, Norman, 'Risk in Decision Making as a Function of Age, Sex and Probability Preference." Child Development, 1964, 35, 577-582.



- 19 Katkovsky, W., Crandall, V. C. and Good, S., Farental Antecodours of Children's Peliefs in Internal-External Control of Reinforcements in Intellectual Achievement Situations. Child Development, 1967, 38, 765-776.
 - Kreitler, Hans and Kreitler, S., "Children's Concepts of Sexuality and Birth." Child Development, 1966, 37, 363-378.
 - Lefcourt, Herbert N., "Internal Versus External Control of Reinforcement: A Review." Psychological Bulletin, 1966, 65, 206-220.
 - Lesser, Gerald and Abelson, R. P., "The Measurement of Persussibility in Children." In C. I. Hovland (Ed.), <u>Personality and Attitude Change</u>. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1959, 141-166.
 - Lewis, Michael, "Effect of Effert on Value: An Exploratory Study of Children." Child Development, 1964, 35, 1337-1342.
- 24 Lieberman, J. N., "A Developmental Analysis of Playfulness as a Clue to Cognitive Style." Journal of Creative Behavior, 1967, 1, 391-397.
 - Lippitt, R., Fox, E. and Schmuck, R., "Innovating Classroom Practice to Support Achievement Motivation and Ego-Development." In E. Bower and W. Hollister (Eds.), <u>Behavioral Science Frontiers in Education</u>. New York: John Wiley and Sons, 1967.
 - Livson, N. and Mussen, P. H., "The Relation of Ego Control to Overt Aggression and Dependency." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1957, 55, 68-71.
 - Loevinger, J., 'The Meaning and Measurement of Ego Revelopment.' American Psychologist, 1966, 21, 195-217.
- 24 Loomis, E. A., Hilgemon, L. M. and Meyer, L. E., "Play Patterns as Non-verbal Indices of Ego Function: A Preliminary Report." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1957, 27, 691-700.
 - Lovinger, Sophie L., 'The Interplay of Specific Ege Functions in Six Year Old Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1963, 23-E, 4760-B.
- Lunneborg, P. W., "Relations Among Social Desirability, Achievement, and Anxiety Measures in Children." Child Development, 1964, 35, 169-182.
 - Maccoby, Eleanor E. and Masters, John C., "Attachment and Dependency." In Paul Mussen (Ed.), <u>Carmichael's Handbook of Child Psychology</u>, <u>Vol. II</u>. (Third Edition). Yew York: John Wiley and Sons, 1970.
 - Machetka, Pavel, "Aesthetic Criteria in Childhood: Justifications of Preference." Child Development, 1966, 37, 877-885.
 - Mendel, Susan L., "Nurturance, Persistence and Distraction in Preschool Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, <u>29-B</u>, 1845-B.
 - Manheimer, Dean I. and Mellinger, Glen D., "Personality Characteristics of the Child Accident Repeater." Child Development, 1967, 38, 491-513.



- McCancless, B. R., Bilous, C. B. and Bennett, A. L., "Peer Popularity and Dependence on Adults in Freschool-Age Socialization." Child Development, 1961, 32, 511-518.
- McCleeland, David C., (3.) <u>studies in Motivation</u>. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1955.
- McGhee, P. E. and Crandall, V. C., "Eeliefs in Internal-External Control of Reinforcements and Academic Performance." Child Development, 1968, 39, 91-102.
- Mischel, W., "Theory and Research on the Antecedents of Self-Imposed Delay of Reward." In B. A. Maher (Ed.), Progress in Experimental Personality Research, Vol. III. New York: Academic Press, 1966.
- Moore, S. and Updegroff, R., "Sociometric Status of preschool Children; Related to Age, Sex, Hurturance-giving and Dependency." Child Bevelopment, 1964, 35, 513-524.
- 24 Munro, Lois, "Steps in Ego Integration Observed in Play Analysis." In Melanie Elein (Ed.), New Directions in Psychoanalysis. New York: Easic Books, 1955.
 - Page, M. L., "The Modification of Ascendant Behavior in Preschool Children." University of Iowa Studies in Child Welfare, 1936, 12, No. 3.
 - Pasternack, Thomas L., "Qualitative Differences in the Development of Yielding Behavior in Elementary School Children." <u>Pissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 4556/-4557A.
 - Peller, Lilli, "Libidinal Phases, Ego Development and Play." Psychoanalytic Study of the Child, 1954, 9, 178-198.
 - Penerson, David R. and McEwan, Robert C., 'Children's Reactions to Failure as a Function of Instructions and Goal Distance. Journal of Experimental Child Psychology, 1970, 9, 51-56.
 - Phypers, James M., "Delay of Gratification and Adjustment in Elementary School Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, <u>30-B</u>, 4796B-4797B.
- e Rochester City School District, New York. <u>Fgo Development Guide for Primary Grade Teachers</u>, K-3, 1365. (ED 025 813)
 - Rosen, Barbara E., "Gratification Patterns and the Perception of Locus of Control in Young Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, <u>29-B</u>, 4853-B.
 - Rosenfeld, Marcia, Copeland, Reatrice and Suydam, Mary N., "The Effect of Contingent Gains and Losses on Children's Risk-Taking Behavior."

 Child Development, 1969, 40, 245-254.
 - Rotter, T. B., "Generalized Expectancies for Internal Versus External Control of Reinforcement." Psychological Monographs, 1966, 80, 1-28.
 - Ruebush, Britton K., "Children's Behavior as a Function of Anxiety and Defensiveness." Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 27-B, 971-B.



- Santostefano, S. G., "A Developmental Study of the Cognitive Control 'Leveling-Sharpening." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1964, 10, 343-360.
- Sarason, herbert, et al., Applety in Elementary School Children. New York: Wiley, 1960.
- Saunders, Patricia S., "An Experimental Analysis of Ego-centrism in Children's Communication." Dissertation Abstracts, 1970, 30-B, 3394-B.
- Scarr, Sandra, "Genetic Factors in Activity Motivation." Child Development, 1966, 37, 663-673.
- Scarr, Sandra, "Social Introversion-Extraversion as a Heritable Response."

 Child Development, 1969, 40, 823-832.
- Semler, I. J., 'Persistence and Learning in Young Children.' Child Development, 1967, 38, 127-135.
- Slavic, Paul, "Risk-Taking in Children: Age and Sex Differences." Child Development, 1966, 37, 169-176.
- Smith, M. Brewster, "Competence and Socialization." In John A. Clausen (Ed.), Socialization and Society. Boston: Little, Erown, 1968.
- e Spaulding, R. L., <u>A Coping Analysis Schedule for Educational Settings</u>.

 Durham, North Carolina: Educational Improvement Program, Duke
 University, 1966.
 - Speer, David C., Briggs, Peter F. and Gavalas, Rochelle, "Concurrent Schedules of Social Reinforcement and Dependency Behavior Among Four-Year-Old Children." Journal of Experimental Child Psychology, 1969, 8, 356-365.
 - Starkweather, Elizabeth K. and Cowling, Frieda G., "The Measurement of Conforming and Nonconforming Behavior in Preschool Children." In R. L. Mooney and T. A. Razik (Eds.), Explorations in Creativity. New York: Harper and Row, 1967.
 - Stith, M. and Connor, R., "Dependency and Helpfulness in Young Children." Child Development, 1962, 33, 15-20.
 - Stott, Leland R., "Identification of Four Childhood Personality Traits as Expressed in Social Interaction of Preschool Children." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1959, 5, 163-175.
- 4 Thelen, M. H., "The Modeling of Verbal Reactions to Failure." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1969, 1, 297.
- 26 Tolor, Alexander and Orange, Susan, "An Attempt to Measure Psychological Distance in Advantaged and Disadvantaged Children." Child Development, 1969, 40, 407-437.
 - Torrance, E. Paul, 'Peer Influence on Preschool Children's Willingness to Try Difficult Tasks." Journal of Psychology, 1969, 12, 189-194.



- Torranco, E. F. and Ziller, R. G., <u>Pisk and Life bracking Covernment</u>
 of a Scale for Resuring <u>Bisk-Taking Tendencies</u>. (Rep. No. 57-23v)
 United States Air Force Personnel Training Besearch Report. Washington,
 D. G.: United States Devemment Printing Office, 1957.
- Ucko, L. E., 'Early Stress Experiences Mirrored in 'World' Play Test at Five Years.' <u>Human Development</u>, 1967, <u>10</u>, 107-127.
- Wallach, Michael A. and Kogan, Mathan, Modes of Thinking in Young Children. New York: Molt, Rinehart and Winston, 1965.
- Weinstein, Eugene A., 'The Development of Interpersonal Competence.' In David A. Goslin (Ed.), Handbook of Socialization Theory and Pesearch. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1969.
- White, Burton L., "Mon-Social Competence." Paper presented at the meeting of the Society for Research in Child Development in Santa Monica, California, 1969.
- White, Pobert, "Notivation Reconsidered: The Concept of Compatence."

 Psychological Review, 1959, 65, 297-333.
- Winter, Sara K., Griffith, Jeffery C. and Kolb, David A., "The Capacity for Solf-Direction: A Working Paper." 1967. (ED 015 501).
- Witkin, H. A., "Social Influences in the Development of Cognitive Style." In D. A. Goslin (Ed.), Handbook of Socialization Theory and Research. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1969.
- 17 Witkin, H. A., Goodenough, D. R. and Karp, S. A., "Stability of Cognitive Style From Childhood to Young Adulthood." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1967, 7, 291-300.
 - Yando, Regina and Kagan, Jerome, "The Effect of Teacher Tempo on the Child." Child Development, 1968, 39, 27-34.
 - Zodikoff, David H., "A Study of Certain Categories of Social Attitudes of Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Grade Pupils." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-A, 4553-A.



Section 22:

į

ROLE PLAY, STAGE DRAMA, PUPPET SHOWS AND GROUP DISCUSSIONS IN AFFECTIVE DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATION

Young children can be influenced in their affective development by public participation and observation of social experiences. Among such experiences are role play, puppet shows, and group discussions. Role play and stage drama are closely related approaches, with the latter often affording a greater emphasis to acting and staging methodology. This section contains some general references regarding role play and stage drama and several specific references on how these procedures may be utilized in the classroom for educational purposes. Persons interested in the design of innovative curriculum programs may be particularly interested in the ideas and procedures considered in this section. (For references or closely related topics see: section 7: Books, Story Telling, Films, and Telling ion in Affective Development and Education; section 15: Games, Game Bc woor and Materials; section 16: Interpersonal Perception; and section 24: Social and Solitary Play.)

- e, Alexander, Jean, Let's Get Down to Cases. (Rev. Ed.). New York: Anti-Defamation League of B'nai B; rith, 1957. (Anti-Defamation League, 315 Lexington Ave., New York, 10016)
 - Bender, L. and Waltman, A. G., "The Use of Puppet Shows as a Psycho-Therapeutic Method for Behavior Problems in Children." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1936, 6, 341-354.
- e Benne, Kenneth and Bozidar, Muntyan, 'What is Role Playing?" and 'The Uses of Role Playing." In the Author's Human Relations In Curriculum Change.

 New York: Dryden Press, 1951.
 - Boet, Johanna, "A Further Study in the Modification of Assertive Behavior in Young Children." Unpublished Master's Thesis, University of Iowa, 1943.
 - Botkin, Patricia T., "Improving Communication Skills in Sixth-Grade Students Through Training in Role Taking." Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 27-A, 1258-A.



- Bowers, Patricia and London, Perry, 'Developmental Correlates of Role-Playing Ability." Child Development, 1965, 36, 499-508.
- Brim, O. G., Jr., "Personality Development as Role Learning." In I. Iscoe and H. Stevenson (Eds.), <u>Personality Development in Children</u>. Austin: University of Texas Press, 1960.
- e Brown, Ida S., "How We Act in Groups." Childhood Education, 1950, 27, 156-160.
- e Burger, Isabel B., <u>Creative Play Acting</u>. New York: The Ronald Press, (2nd Ed.), 1966.
 - Cameron, Norman A. and Cameron, Margaret A., Behavior Pathology. Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1951.
- e Chesler, Mark and Fox, Robert, Role-Playing Methods in the Classroom.
 Chicago: Science Research Associates, Inc., 1966.
 - Chittendon, Gertrude E., "An Experimental Study in Measuring and Modifying Assertive Behavior in Young Children." Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, 1942, 7, (Serial No. 31, No. 1).
 - Crosscup, Richard, Children and Dramatics. New York: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1966.
 - Culbertson, F. M., 'Modification of an Emotionally Held Attitude Through Role-Playing." Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1957, 54, 230-233.
- e Fitzgerald, Burdette S., <u>Let's Act the Story</u>. Palo Alto, California: Fearon Publishers, Inc., 1967.
 - Flavell, John H., et al., The Development of Role-Taking and Communication Skills in Children. New York: John Wiley, 1968.
- e Galston, Olive, <u>Play With Puppets</u>. New York: Play-Schools Association, 1965.
 - Garvey, Dale M., "Simulation, Role-Playing, and Sociodiama in the Social Studies." With an annotated bibliography by Sancha K. Garvey. The Emporia State Research Studies, 1967, 16, 5-34.
 - Gittelman, Martin, "Behavior Rehearsal as a Technique in Child Treatment."

 Journal of Child Psychology and Psychiatry, 1965, 6, 251-255.
- e Grambs, Jean D., <u>Intergroup Education: Methods and Materials</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1968.
 - Grant, Frances F., "The 'Kasperal Theatre' as Play Therapy." American Journal of Psychotherapy, 1950, 4, 279-285.
- e Greenleaf, Walter J., "Sociodrama as a Guidance Technique." <u>California</u>
 <u>Journal of Secondary Education</u>, 1951, 26, 51-55.



- Gross, Neal, Alexander, W. and Ward, S., "Role Conflict and Its Resolutions." In Eleanor E. Maccoby, Theodore M. Newcomb and Eugene L. Hartley (Eds.), Readings in Social Psychology. (3rd Ed.). New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 1965.
- e Haas, Robert B., (Ed.) <u>Psychodrama and Sociodrama in American Education</u>.

 New York: Beacon House, 1949.
- e Haggerty, Joan, Please Can I Play God. New York: Bobbs-Merrill, 1966-67.
 - Hall, Jeanne L., "An Analysis of the Content of Selected Children's Plays With Special Reference to the Developmental Values Inherent in Them." Dissertation Abstracts, 1967, 27A, 2214-A.
 - Halpern, Betty W., "Role Playing: Its Therapeutic and Educative Application to the Black Ghetto Child." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 4374A-4375A.
 - Harris, Albert J., III., "Criteria for the Evaluation of Playscripts for Children's Theatre, The Magic Glen: An Original Children's Play." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 27-A, 602-A.
 - Harth, Robert, "Changing Attitudes Toward School, Classroom Behavior, and Reaction to Frustration of Emotionally Disturbed Children Through Role Playing." Exceptional Children, 1966, 33, 119-120.
 - Henkel, Donald D., "Assessment of Effects of an Acting Experience Upon Participants in a Public Recreation Department Children's Dramatics Program." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 28-A. 5179A-5180A.
- 5, Hoffman, L. R. and Maier, N. R., "Quality and Acceptance of Problem Solutions by Members of Homogeneous and Heterogeneous Groups." <u>Journal of Ab-normal and Social Psychology</u>, 1961, 62, 401-407.
 - Janis, I. L. and King, B. T., "The Influence of Role-Playing on Opinion Change." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1954, 49, 211-218.
 - Karioth, Emil J., "Creative Dramatics as an Aid in Developing Creative Thinking Abilities." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 28-A, 5180A-5181A.
 - Katona, Arthur, "Sociodrama." Social Education, 1955, 19, 23-26.
- e Kerckhoff, Alan C., "Early Antecedents of Role-Taking and Role-Playing Behavior." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1969, 15, 229-248.
 - Kerman, Gertrude L., <u>Flays and Creative Ways With Children</u>. Irvington-on-Hudson, New York: Harvey House, 1961.
 - King, Bert T. and Janis, Irving L., "Comparison of the Effectiveness of Improvised Versus Non-Improvised Role-Playing in Producing Opinion Changes." <u>Human Relations</u>, 1956, 9, 177-186.
 - Kitano, H., "Adjustment of Problem and Nonproblem Children to Specific Situations: A Study in Role Theory." Child Development, 1962, 33, 229-233.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

- Klein, Melanie, 'Personification in the Play of Children." <u>International</u> Journal of Psychoanalysis, 1929, 10, 193-204.
- e Klingsick, Judith, "Ideas in Motion Youth Theater: A Growing Expression of of Creativity." Young Children, 1968, 23, 324-330.
 - Kors, P. C., "Unstructured Puppet Shows as Group Procedure in Therapy With Children." Psychiatric Quarterly Supplement, 1964, 38, 56-75.
 - Kottke, Theodore G., "The Writing and Analysis of Writing a Formal Children's Play by Using a Children's Improvisational Theatre Group Working With an Original Scenario." Dissertation Abstracts, 1970, 30-A, 4055-A.
- e Lane, H. A. and Beauchamp, M., <u>Human Relations in Teaching</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1965.
 - Lazier, Gilbert N. and Sutton-Smith, B., "Assessment of Role Induction and Role Involvement in Creative Drama." First Progress Report (OE Bureau of Research No. 90032), U. S. Office of Education Bureau of Research (HEW Title IV), 1969.
 - Lazier, G. and Sutton-Smith, B., "The Psychology of Drama." Educational Theatre Journal, in press.
 - Lippitt, Rosemary and Clancy, C., "Psychodrama in the Kindergarten and Nursery Schoo." Group Psychotherapy, 1954, 7, 262-273.
 - MacCaslin, Nellie, <u>Creative Dramatics in the Classroom</u>. New York: David McKay, 1968.
 - Maccoby, E. E., "Role Taking in Children and Its Consequences for Social Learning." Child Development, 1959, 30, 239-252.
 - Machler, Theodore J., "Pinnocchio in the Treatment of School Phobia."

 <u>Bulletin of the Menninger Clinic</u>, 1965, 29, 212-219.
 - Mann, John H., "Experimental Evaluations of Role Playing." <u>Psychological</u> <u>Bulletin</u>, 1956, 53, 227-234.
 - Marshall, Helen R. and Hahn, Shwu C., "Experimental Modification of Dramatic Play." Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 1967, 5, 119-122.
 - Moore, Terence and Ucke, L. E., "Four to Six: Constructiveness and Conflict in Meeting Doll Play Problems." <u>Journal of Child Psychology and</u> Psychiatry, 1961, 2, 21-47.
 - Moreno, F. B. and Moreno, J. L., "Role Tests and Role Diagrams of Children." In the author's Group Psychotherapy. New York: Beacon House, 1945.
 - Moreno, Jacob L., <u>The Theater of Spontaneity</u>. Translated from the German Das Stegreiftheater. New York: Beacon House, 1947.



- Moreno, Jacob L., "Role." In Jacob L. Moreno (Ed.), The Sociometry Reader.

 New York: Free Press of Glencoe, 1960.
- Moreno, Jacob L. and Moreno, Z. T., <u>Psychodrama</u>. <u>Volumes I and II</u>. New York: Beacon Press, 1953.
- e, National Council for the Social Studies, How to Use Sociodrama. Washington,
 3 D. C.: NCSS, 1960.
- e Nichols, Hildred and Williams, Lois, Learning About Role-Playing for Children and Teachers. Washington, D. C.: Association for Childhood Education International, 1960.
 - Parton, David A., "Imitation of an Animated Puppet as a Function of Modeling, Praise and Directions." Journal of Experimental Child Psychology, 1970, 9, 320-329.
- e Ptaschnik, Jeffrey, "Social Development Program. 1967 Report." Pittsburgh Public Schools, 1967. (ED 025 792).
- 4 Rotter, J. B. and Wickens, D. D., 'The Consistency and Generality of Ratings of 'Social Aggressiveness' Made from Observations of Role Playing Situations." <u>Journal of Consulting Psychology</u>, 1948, 12, 234-239.
 - Sargent, S. Stanfield, "Conceptions of Role and Ego in Contemporary Psychology." In J. H. Rohrer and M. Sherif (Eds.), Social Psychology at the Crossroads. New York: Harper and Row, 1951.
- 4 Sears, Pauline S., "Doll Play Aggression in Normal Young Children: Influence of Sex, Age, Sibling Status, Father's Absence." Psychological Monographs, 1951, 65, 42.
- e Shaftel, Fannie R. and Shaftel, George, Role-Playing for Social Values

 Decision-Making in the Social Studies. New York: Prentice-Hall, 1967.
- e Shaw, Ann, <u>Selected References in Creative Dramatics</u>. New York: Institute for Developmental Studies, School of Education, New York University.
- e Shaw, Ann, (and the Institute for Developmental Studies), "Dramatic Improvisation Games for Children, 1968." (Available at \$0.25 from: Institute for Developmental "tudies: School of Education; New York University; Washington Square, New York, New York 10003.)
 - Shaw, Ann, "The Development of a Taxonomy of Educational Objectives in Creative Dramatics in the United States Based on Selected Writings in the Field." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-A, 4130A-4131A.
- e Siks, Geraldine B., Creative Dramatics: An Art for Children. New York: Harper, 1958.
- e, Siks, Geraldine B., Children's Literature for Dramatization: An Anthology.

 New York: Harper and Row, 1964.
 - Smilansky, Sara, The Effects of Sociodramatic Play on Disadvantaged Preschool Children. New York: Wiley, 1968.

ERIC
Full Text Provided by ERIC

- e Spolin, Viola, <u>Improvisation for the Theater</u>. Evanston, Illinois: Northwestern University Press, 1963.
 - Sutton-Smith, B., "Role Replication and Reversal in Play." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1966, 12, 285-298.
 - Thompson, Linda A., "Role Playing Ability and Social Adjustment in Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-B, 3499-B.
 - Thurman, A. and Bowers, N. D., "The Development of Instruments Designed to Assess Pupil Ability in Creative Dramatics." Paper presented at Children's Theatre Conference, Los Angeles, California, 1968.
- e Turner, M. E., The Child Within the Group: An Experiment in Self-Government. Stanford, California: Stanford University Press, 1957.
 - Ucko, L. E. and Moore, Terence, "Parental Roles as Seen by Young Children in Doll Play." Vita Humana, 1963, 6, 213-242.
- e Ward, Winifred, <u>Playmaking With Children</u>. (2nd Ed.) New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1957.
 - Wenstrom, David D., "An Experiment in Children's Drama." (Vols. I-III).

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 26, 7503.



Section 23:

SELF-CONCEPT AND SELF-ESTEEM

This section contains references dealing with the child's attitude toward and judgment of himself. Specific topics include: the development of self-recognition; attitudes toward first names; the relationship between self-concept and various skills, including academic performance; and assessment procedures. (For references on closely related topics see section 2: Achievement Motivation; section 8: Character and Moral Development; section 16: Interpersonal Perception; section 18: Miscellaneous Emotional States and Responses in the Young Child; and section 26: Social Background and Personality Characteristics of Minority and Disadvantaged Children.)

- Adelson, D., "Attitudes Toward First Names: An Investigation of the Relation Between Self-Acceptance, Self-Identity and Group and Individual Attitudes Toward First Names." Dissertation Abstracts, 1957, 17, 1831.
- Ames, Louise B., "The Sense of Self of Nursery School Children as Manifested by Their Verbal Behavior." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1952, 81, 193-232.
- Bain, Read, "The Self-and-Other Words of a Child." American Journal of Sociology, 1936, 41, 767-775.
- Bledsoe, Joseph C., "Self-Concepts of Children and Their Intelligence." Childhood Education, 1967, 43, 436-438.
- Boshier, Roger, "Self-ESteem and First Wames in Children." <u>Psychological</u> Reports, 1968, 22, 762.
- Caliguri, J., "The Self-Concept of the Poverty Child." <u>Journal of Negro</u> <u>Education</u>, 1966, <u>35</u>, 280-282.
- Caplin, Morris D., "The Relationship Between Self-Concept and Academic Achievement." <u>Journal of Experimental Education</u>, 1969, <u>37</u>, 13-16.
- 26 Carpenter, Thomas R. and Busse, Thomas V., "Development of Self-Concept in Negro and White Welfare Children." Child Development, 1969, 40, 935-939.
 - Chein, I., "The Awareness of the Self and the Structure of the Ego."

 <u>Psychological Review</u>, 1944, 51, 304-314.
- e Childhood Education, 1966, 42, entire issue.
- e Clark, K. B. and Clark, Y. K., "The Development of Consciousness of Self and the Emergence of Racial Identification in Negro Preschool Children."

 Journal of Social Psychology, 1939, 10, 591-599.

ERIC

Full Text Provided by ERIC

- Cooley, Charles H., "A Study of the Early Use of Self-Words by a Child." Psychological Review, 1908, 15, 339-357.
- Coopersmith, Stanley, "Self-Esteem and Need Achievement as Determinants of Selective Recall and Repetition." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social</u> Psychology, 1960, 60, 310-317.
- Coopersmith, Stanley, The Antecedents of Self-Esteem. San Francisco: W. H. Freeman, 1967.
- Coopersmith, Stanley, "Studies in Self-Esteem." Scientific American, 1968, 218, 96-106.
- Coopersmith, Stanley, "Developing Self-Esteem in the Classroom." In Stanley
 Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective Component in Early Education: Developing Motivation in Young Children, in press. Washington, D. C.: Office
 of Child Development, (DHEW).
- 25 Cottrell, Leonard S., Jr., "Interpersonal Interaction and the Development of the Self." In David A. Goslin (Ed.), <u>Handbook of Socialization Theory</u> and Research. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1969.
 - Crowne, Douglas P. and Stephens, Mark W., "Self-Acceptance and Self-Evaluative Behavior: A Critique of Methodology." <u>Psychological Bulletin</u>, 1961, 58, 104-121.
- deCharms, R., et al., "Can Motives of Low Income Black Children be Changed?
 An Interim Report." Symposium prepared for the American Educational
 Research Association Meetings, Los Angeles, 1969 (ED 033 978).
 - Dixon, J. C., "Development of Self-Recognition." <u>Journal of Genetic</u> Psychology, 1957, 91, 251-256.
 - Dreyer, Albert S. and Weipt, Dorothy, "Self-Evaluation in Young Children."

 Journal of Genes & Psychology, 1966, 108, 185-197.
 - Dubin, R. and Dubin, E. R., "Children's Social Perceptions: A Review of Research." Child Development, 1965, 36, 809-838.
 - Dwyer, Ethel I., "An Exploratory Study to Investigate the Influence of a Program of Primary Prevention Upon Self-Concept and the Effect of Self-Concept on Academic Readiness." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29, 3869-3870.
 - Emmons, Ardith L., "A Study of the Relation Between Self-Assurance and Skill in Young Children." Child Development, 1933, 4, 323-328.
 - Engel, Mary and Raine, W. H., "A Method for the Measurement of the Self-Concept of Children in the Third Grade." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1963, 102, 125-137.
 - Fiore, Edith A., "A Study of the Self-Concept of the Young Child: Comparison of Three Age Levels." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 30-B, 2398-B.
 - Firme, Thereza P., "Effects of Social Reinforcement on Self-Esteem of Mexican-American Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 3332-A.



- Fisher, S. and Fisher, R. L., "A Developmental Analysis of Some Body Image and Body Reactivity Dimensions." Child Development, 1959, 30, 389-402.
- e Gilpatrick, Naomi, "Power of Picture Book to Change Child's Self-Image." Elementary English, 1969, 46, 570-574.
- e Gordon, Ira J., Children's Views of Themselves. Washington, D. C.:
 Association for Childhood Education International, 1959.
 - Guardo, C. J., "Personal Space in Children." Child Development, 1969, 40, 143-152.
 - Guggenheim, Fred, "Self-Esteem and Achievement Expectations for White and Negro Children." <u>Journal of Projective Techniques and Personality Assessment</u>, 1969, 33, 63-71.
 - Hamacheck, D. E., (Ed.) The Self in Growth, Teaching, and Learning. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1965.
 - Heath, Helen A., "Three Eight-Year Olds." Child Development, 1967, 38, 753-764.
 - Hilgard, E., "Human Motives and the Concept of the Self." American Psychologist, 1949, 4, 374-382.
 - Hillery, Milton C., et al., "A Descriptive Study of Cognitive and Affective Trends Differentiating Selected Groups of Preschool Children." (University of Wisconsin) Report No. 0E0-1401, 1969. (ED 031 314).
 - Horowitz, F. D., "The Relationship of Anxiety, Self-Concept, and Sociometric Status among Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Grade Children."

 Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1962, 65, 212-214.
 - Horowitz, R. E., "Racial Aspects of Self-Identification in Nursery School Children." Journal of Psychology, 1939, 7, 91-99.
 - Jersild, A. T., "In Search of Self." Teachers College, Columbia University, 1952.
 - Jorgensen, E. C. and Howell, R. J., "Changes in Self, Ideal-Self Correlations From Ages 8 through 18." <u>Journal of Social Psychology</u>, 1969, 79, 63-67.
 - Jung, C. G., AION: Researches Into the Phenomonology of the Self. New York: Pantheon Books, 1959.
 - Katcher, A. and Levin, M. M., "Children's Conceptions of Body Size." Child Development, 1955, 26, 103-110.
 - Kenny, Daniel T., "The Influence of Social Desirability or Discrepancy Measures Between Real Self and Ideal Self." Journal of Consulting Psychology, 1956, 20, 315-318.
 - Kinch, J. W., "Research Note: A Formalized Theory of The Self-Concept." American Journal of Sociology, 1963, 68, 481-486.



e

- e Kohl, Herbert, "Writing Their Way to Self-Acceptance." Grade Teacher, December, 1969, 8-10.
- Example Kvaraceus, William C., Gibson, John S., Patterson, Franklin, Scholes, Bradbury S. and Grambsy, Jean D., Negro Self-Concept: Implications for School and Citizenship. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1965.
 - LaBenne, Wallace, "A Theoretical Framework for Behavior Analysis and Intervention." Psychology, 1968, 5, 14-19.
- e LaBenne, Wallace, Educational Implications of Self-Concept Theory.
 Pacific Palisades, California: Goodycar, 1969.
- e Leonard, George E., "A Workshop for the Improvement of the Self-Concepts of Inner-City Youngsters." The School Counselor, May, 1969, 375-379.
- Lipsitt, L. P., "A Self-Concept Scale for Children and Its Relationship to the Children's Form of the Manifest Anxiety Scale." Child Development, 1958, 29, 463-473.
 - Long, Barbara H., and Henderson, E. H., "Self-Social Concepts of Disadvantaged School Beginners." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1968, <u>113</u>, 41-51.
 - Lowe, C. Marshall, "The Self-Concept: Fact or Artifact." <u>Psychological</u> <u>Bulletin</u>, 1961, <u>58</u>, 325-336.
 - Ludwig, David J. "Self-Perception and the Draw-a-Person Test." Journal of Projective Techniques and Personality Assessment, 1969, 33, 257-261.
- e MacKinnon, Donald W., "Creativity and Images of the Self." In R. W. White (Ed.), The Study of Lives, New York: Atherton Press, 1963.
- e Marston, Albert R., "DEaling with Low Self-Confidence." Educational Research, 1968, 10, 134-138.
 - McNamara, J. Regis, et al., "Evaluation of the Effects of Head Start Experience in the Area of Self-Concept, Social Skills, and Language Skills. Pre-Publication Draft." Dade County Board of Public Instruction, 1968 (ED 028 832).
 - Mead, G. H., Mind, Self and Society. Chicago: University of Chilcago, 1934.
 - Minuchin, Patricia, Biber, Barbara, Shapiro, Edna and Zimiles, Herbert,

 The Psychological Impact of School Experience. New York: Basic Books,

 1969.
- Moreno, J. L., "Role Theory and the Emergence of the Self." Group Psychotherapy, 1962, 15, 114-117.
- e Nichols, William J., "A Study of the Effects of Tutoring on the Self-Concept, Reading Achievement, and Selected Attitudes f Culturally Disadvantaged Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 2898 A 2899 A.



- Orange County Public Schools, Orlando, Florida. "Development of Self-Concept of Public School Children." Report of Planning Grant 1966-67, 1968 (ED 027 574).
 - Perkins, Hugh V., "Factors Influencing Change in Children's Self-Concepts." Child Development, 1958, 29, 221-230.
 - Phillips, Beeman N., "Age Changes in Accuracy of Self-Perceptions." Child Development, 1963, 34, 1041-1046.
 - Piers, Ellen V. and Harris, Dale B., "Age and Other Correlates of Self-Concept in Children." Journal of Educational Psychology, 1964, 55, 91-75.
 - Ponder, Virginia B., "An Investigation of the Effects of Bibliotherapy and Teachers' Salf-Others Acceptance on Pupils' Self-Acceptance and Reading Achievement Scores." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 2900 A 2901 A.
 - Posner, Carmen A., "Some Effects of Genetic and Cultural Variables on Self-Evaluations of Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-B, 4833 B - 4834 B.
 - Ptaschnik, Jeffrey, "Social Development Program. 1967 Report." Pittsburgh Public Schools, 1967 (LD 025 792).
- e Randolph, Norma and William H., <u>Self-Enhancing Education</u>. Palo Alto, California: Stanford Press, 1966.
 - Redmond, Frances H., "Growth and Development of the Self-Concept."
 Dissertation Abstracts, 1967, 28, 506.
- Reese, H. W., "Relationship Between Self-Acceptance and Siciometric Choice." Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1961, 62, 472-474.
 - Richardson, Stephen A., "Effects of Physical Disability on a Child's Description of Himself." Child Development, 1964, 35, 893-907.
 - Rochester City School District Project. "Ego Development Guide for Frimary Grade Teachers, K-3." Project Beacon, 1965 (ED 025 813).
- e Rogers, C. R., On Becomming a Person. Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1961.
- Rosenberg, Monris, "Parental Interest and Children's Self-Conceptions."

 <u>Sociometry</u>, 1963, 26, 35-49.
 - Rosenfeld, Harriet, "Books to Enhance the Self-Image of the Negro Children." 1966 (ED 011 904).
- Sears, P. S. and Sherman, V. S., <u>In Pursuit of Self-Esteem: Case Studies of Eight Elementary School Children</u>. Belmont, California: Wadsworth, 1964.
 - Smith, Phyllis W., "Self-Concept Gain Scores and Reading Efficiency Terminal Ratios as a Function of Specialized Reading Instruction or Personal Interaction." Paper presented at International Reading Association Conference, Boston, 1968 (ED 025 375).

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

- Soares, Anthony T. and Soares, Louise M, "Self-Perceptions of Culturally Disadvantaged Children." American Journal of Educational Research, 1969, 6, 31-45.
- Sparling, Joseph J., "The Etiology of Self-Esteem in Childhood and Adolescence." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29-A, 820-A.
- Staines, J. W., "The Self-Picture as a Factor in the Classroom." <u>British</u>
 Journal of Educational Psychology, 1958, 28, 97-111.
- Thomas, Walter L., "The Thomas Self-Concept Values Test 1967." (ED 027 068). (Not available from ERIC. Available from: Educational Services Company, P. O. Box 1882, Grand Rapids, Michigan, 49501.).
- 16, Trickett, Helen, "Stability and Predictability of Children's Self-Concept and Perceptions by Others: A Developmental Study." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29, 2577.
 - Voss, Stephen H., "The Use of PHotography to Study Children's Perceptions of Themselves and Others." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29-A, 822 A.
 - Williams, Daniel E., "Self-Concept and Verbal Mental Ability in Negro Preschool Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-B, 3475 B.
 - Wylie, Ruth C., The Self-Concept: A Critical Survey of Pertinent
 Research Literature. Lincoln, Nebraska: University of Nebraska
 Press, 1961.
 - Yeatts, Perline P., "An Analysis of Developmental Changes in the Self-Report of Negro and White Children, Grades 3-12." <u>Dissertation</u> Abstracts, 1968, 29-4, 823 A.
 - Zion, Laela C., "Body Concept as It Relates to Self-Concept." Research Quarterly, 1965, 36, 490-495.



Section 24:

SOCIAL AND SOLITARY PLAY

This section deals with references on childhood play as a general phenomenon. Specific topics include: Theories on the functions of play, observing and recording play behavior; learning via play; toys, block play and play equipment; handbooks of play activities and patterns of spontaneous play. (For references on structured or quasi-structured win-lose play activities see section 15: Games, Game Behavior, and Affective Development and Education. For references on other closely related topics see section 5: Altruism, Competition, Cooperation, and Sharing; section 13: Early prevention and treatment of Neurotic and Anti-social Behavior [especially items concerning "play therapy"], section 22: Role Play, Stage Drama, Puppet Shows, and Group Discussion in Affective Development and Education; and section 25: Social Behavior.)

- Aderhold, E. C., "Doll Play Behavior as a Function of Age." <u>Dissertation</u>
 Abstracts, 1967, 28-B, 2605-B.
- e Almy, M., "Spontaneous Play: An Avenue for Intellectual Development."

 <u>Bulletin of the Institute for Child Study</u>, 1966, 28, 2-15.
 - Almy, M., (Ed.) Early Childhood Play: <u>Selected Readings Related to</u>
 <u>Cognition and Motivation</u>. New York: <u>Selected Academic Readings</u>, 1968.
 - Anderson, Eileen G., "Theories of Children's Flay." Australian Occupational
 Therapy Hournal, 1968, 15, 22-34.
 - Axline, Virginia M., "Observing Children at Play." <u>Teachers College Record</u>, 1951, <u>52</u>, 358-363.
 - Bateson, G., "A Theory of Play and Fantasy." Psychiatric Research Reports, 1955, 2, 39-51.
- e Bettelheim, Bruno, "What Children Learn From Play." Parents Magazine, July, 1964, 39, 48-49,
 - Blumenfield, W., "Observations Concerning the Phenomenon and Origin of Play."

 Philosophy and Phenomenalogical Research, 1941, 1, 470-478.
- Blurton Jones, W. G., "An Ethological Study of Some Aspects of Social Behavior of Children in Nursery School." In Desmond Morris (Ed.),

 Primate Ethology. Chicago: Aldine, 1967. (Also available in Anchor Edition Garden City, New York: Doubleday).
- 25 Boll, Eleanor S., "The Role of Preschool Play Mates: A Situational Approach." Child Development, 1957, 28, 327-342.



- Boynton, P. L. and Wong, J. D., "Relationship Between Children's Play Interests and Their Emotional Stability." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1944, 64, 119-127.
- Buell, J., Stoddard, P., Harris, F. R. and Baer, D. M., "Collateral Social Development Accompanying Reinforcement of Outdoor Play in a Preschool Child." Journal of Applied Behavior Analysis, 1968, 1, 167-173.
- e, Burger, I. B., <u>Creative Play Activities</u>. New York: The Ronald Press, 1966.
 - Caillois, R., Man Play, and Games. New York: Free Press, 1961.
 - Chateau, J., Le Jeu de L'enfant. Paris: Librairie Philosophique, 1955.
 - Cockrell, D. L., "A Study of the Play of Children of Preschool Age by an Unobserved Observer." Genetic Psychology Monograph, 1935, 17, 377-469.
 - Despert, J. Louise, "Play Analysis in Research and Therapy." In Nolan D. Lewis and Bernard L. Pacella (Eds.), Modern Trends in Child Psychiatry. New York: International Universities Press, 1945, 219-255.
 - Eble, Kenneth, A Perfect Education. New York: Macmillan, 1966.
 - Eifermann, R. R., <u>Play and Games</u>, <u>Educational Encyclopedia</u> (Volumes 1-28).

 Jerusalem: The Israel Ministry of Education and Culture, and the Bialik Institute, 1969 (In Hebrew).
 - Eifermann, R. R., "Social Play in Childhood." In R. E. Heron and B. Sutton-Smith (Eds.), Child's Play. New York: Wiley, 1970.
- e Eifermann, Rivka R., "Free Social Play: A Guide to Directed Playing. In Stanley Coopersmith (Ed.), The Affective component in Early Education:

 Developing Motivation in Young Children. In press, Washington, D. C.:

 Office of Child Development, (DHEW).
 - El'konin, D. B., "Simolika i ee funkisii v igre detei." (Sumbolism and Its Function in the Play of Children.) <u>Dosh Kol'noe Vospitanie</u>, 1966, 39, 56-60.
- e El'konin, D. B., "Some Results of the Study of the Psychological Development of Preschool-Age hildren." In Michael Cole and Irving Maltzman (Eds.)

 A Handbook of Contemporary Soviet Psychology. New York: Basic Books.

 1969.
- e Erikson, E. H., "Studies in the Interpretation of Play." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1940, 22, 557-671.
- Erikson, E. H., "Clinical Studies in Childhood Play." In R. G. Barkey, J. S. Kounin and H. F. Wright (Eds.), Child Behavior and Development. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1943.
- Fales, E., "A Comparison of the Vigorousness of Play Activities of Preschool Boys and Girls." Child Development, 1937, 8, 144-158.
- 21 Fales, E., "A Rating Scale of the Vigorousness of Play Activities of Preschool Children." Child Development, 1937, 8, 15-46.



- Farrell, Muriel, "Sex Differences in Block Play in Early Childhood Education." Journal of Educational 1 Carch, 1957, 51, 279-234.
- Feinman, Jo Ann, "Observation on the Development of Imaginative Play in Early Childhood." Journal of American Academy of Child Psychiatry, 1962, 1, 167-181.
- 20 Frank, Lawrence K., "Play in Personality Development." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1955, 25, 576-590.
 - Gilmore, J. Barnard, "Play: A Special Behavior." In R. N. haber (Ed.),

 <u>Current Research in Motivation</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehard and
 Winston, 1966.
- 21 Gilmore, J. Barnard, "The Role of Anxiety and Cognitive Factors in Children's Play Behavior." Child Development, 1966, 37, 397-416.
 - Gratton, Carolyn, 'Bibliography on Play.' Humanitas, 1969, 5, 112-118.
 - Guerney, Bernard, Jr., Eurton, Jean and Silverberg, Dona, "Use of Adult Responses to Codify Children's Behavior in a Play Situation."

 Perceptual and Motor Skills, 1965, 20, 614-616.
- e Hartley, R. E., Growing Through Play: Experiences of Teddy and Bud. New York: Columbia University, 1958.
 - Hartley, R. E., Frank, Lawrence k and Goldenson, Robert N., New Play

 Experiences for Children: Planned Play Groups, Miniature Life Toys
 and Puppets. New York: Columbia University, 1952.
- e Hartley, R. E. and Goldenson, Robert H., The Complete Book of Children's Play. (Rev. Ed.) New York: Crowell, 1963.
 - Hayes, J. R., "The Maintenance of Play in Young Children." Journal of Comparative Physiological Psychology, 1958, 51, 788-794.
- e Hegler, S., Choosing Toys for Children. London: Tavistock, 1963.
 - Henry, Jules and Henry, Zunia, "Boll Play of the Pilaga Indian Children:

 An Experimental and Field Analysis of the Behavior of the Pilaga
 Indian Children." New York: American Orthopsychiatry Association
 Research Monograph, 1944, 4.
 - Herron, R. and Sutton-Smith, B., (Eds.) Child's Play. New York: Wiley, in press.
 - Horne, B. M. and Phillee, C. C., "A Comparative Study of the Spontaneous Play Activities of Normal and Mentally Defective Children." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1942, 61, 33-46.
 - Huizinga, J., Homo Ludens. Boston: Beacon, 1955.
 - Hurlock, E. B., "Experimental Investigations of Childhood Play." Psychological Bulletin, 1934, 31, 47-66.



- Hutt, C., "Exploration and Play in Children." In F. A. Jewell and C. Laizos (Eds.), Play, Exploration and Territory in Mammals. New York: Academic Press, 1966.
- Huxley, Sir Julian S., A Discussion on Ritualization of Behavior in Animals and Man. London: Royal Society, 1966.
- Johnson, Leis V., "A Study of Socialization in Block Play." <u>Journal of</u> Educational Research, 1957, 50, 623-626.
- Johnson, M. W., "The Effect on Benavior of Variations in the amount of Play Equipment." Child Development, 1935, 6, 56-68.
- e Kepler, Hazel, The Child and His Play: A Planning Guide for Parents and Teachers. New York: Funk and Wagnalls, 1952.
 - Laurence, Ronald and Sutton-Smith, B., "Novel Responses to Toys: A Replication." Marrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1968, 14, 159-160.
 - Leontiev, L. N., "Fsikhologicheskie Osnovy Doshkol'noi Igry." (Psychological Bases of Preschool Play). In <u>Problemy Razvitiya Psikhiki</u> (Problems of Mental Development). Moscow: Izd-vo APN FSFSR, 1959.
 - Levin, H. and Wardwell, E., "The Research Uses of Doll Play." <u>Psychological</u>
 Bulletin, 1962, 59, 27-56.
- e Lieberman, J. Nina, "Playfulness and Divergent Thinking: An Investigation of Their Relationship at the Kindergarten Level." <u>Journal of Genetic</u>

 Psychology, 1965, 107, 219-224.
- e Lieberman, J. Nina, "A Developmental Analysis of Playfulness as a Clue to Cognitive Style." <u>Journal of Creative Behavior</u>, 1967, 1, 391-397.
 - Lovass, O. I., Freitag, Gilbert, Gold, Vivian J. and Kassorla, Irene C., "Recording Apparatus and Procedure for Observation of Behaviors of Children in Free Play Settings." <u>Journal of Experimental Child Psychology</u>, 1965, 2, 108-120.
- e Lowenfeld, Margaret, <u>Play in Childhood</u>. London: Victor Gollancz, Ltd., 1936.
 - Manwell, Elizabeth M. and Mengert, Ida G., "A Study of the Development of Two- and Three-Year-Old Children with Respect to Play Activities."

 <u>University of Iowa Studies of Child Welfare</u>, 1934, 9, 69-111.
 - McCandless, B. R. and Hoyt, J. M., "Sex Ethnicity, and Play Preferences of Preschool Children." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>. 1961, 62, 683-685.
 - McDowell, M. S. and Howe, S. R., "Creative Use of Play Materials by Preschool CHildren." Childhood Education, 1941, 17, 321-325.
 - Meier, Mila H., "Play as a Way to Know." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 3918 A.
 - Millar, Suzanna, The Psychology of Play. London: Pelican, 1968.



e

- Moyer, Kenneth and Gilmer, B., "Experimental Study of Children's Preferences and Use of Blocks in Play." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1956, 89, 3-10.
- Munro, Lois, "Steps in Ego Integration Observed in Play Analysis." In Melani Klein (Ed.), New Directions in Psychoanalysis. New York: Basic Books, 1955.
- Murphy, Lois B. and Krall, Vita, "Free Play as a Projective Tool." In H. I. Rabin and M. R. Haworth (Eds.), <u>Projective Techniques with Children</u>. New York: Grune and Stratton, 1960.
- National Education Association. "Blockbuilding, How Blockbuilding Contributes to the Social, Emotional and Intellectual Development of Children." Washington, D. C.: National Education Association, 1960. (Available for purchase from National Education Association, Department of Elementary-Kindergarten Education, 1201 Sixteenth Street, N.W., Washington, D. C., 20036).
 - Omwake, M. A., "The CHild's Estate." In Albert J. Solnit and Sally A. Provence (Eds.), Modern Perspectives in Child Development. New York: International Universities Press, 1963.
 - Peller, Lilli, "Libidinal Phases, Ego Development and Play." Psychoanalytical Study of the CHild, 1954, 9, 178-198.
 - Priaget, Jean, The Maral Judgment of the Child. Glencoe, Illinois: Free Press, 1932.
 - Piaget, Jean, Play, Dreams, and Imitation in Childhood. New York: Norton, 1951.
 - Piaget, Jean, "Response to Brian Sutton-Smith." <u>Psychological Review</u>, 1966, 73, 111-112.
 - Pintler, M. H., "Doll Play as a Function of Experimenter-Child Interaction and Initial Organization of Materials." Child Development, 1945, 16, 145-166.
 - Robinson, Eleanor L., "The Form and Imaginative Content of Children's Block Buildings." Dissertation Abstracts, 1959, 19, 2651.
 - Rowland, Sister Mary S., "A Study of Congitive Content in the Play Themes of Preschool Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 3335 A.
 - Russell, Arnulf, <u>Das Kinderspiel</u>. (Children's Flay). Munich, Germany: C. H. Beck, 1965.
 - Schlosberg, H., "The Concept of Play." <u>Psychological Review</u>, 1947, <u>54</u>, 229-231.
- Slobin, Dan, "The Fruits of the First Season: A Discussion of the Role of Play in Childhood." Journal of Humanistic Psychology, 1964, 4, 54-79.
- e Speeth, S. D., "The Rational Design of Toys." <u>Journal of Creative Behavior</u>, 1967, 1, 398-410.



e

Œ

- Sutton-Smith, B., "Play Preference and Play Behavior: A Validity Study." Psychological Reports, 1965, 16, 65-66.
- Sutton-Smith, B., "Piaget of Play: A Critique." <u>Psychological Review</u>, 1966, 73, 111-112. (To be republished in H. Munsinger (Ed.), <u>Readings</u> in Fundamentals of <u>Child Psychology</u>).
 - Sutton-Smith, B., "The Role of Play in Cognitive Development." Young Children, 1967, 6, 361-370. (Republished in W. .W Hartup and N. L. Smothergill (Eds.), The Young Child: Reviews of Research. Washington, D. C.: N.E.A. 1968).
 - Sutton-Smith, B., "Games, Play, Daydreams." Quest, 1968, 10, 47-58.
- Sutton-Smith, B., "Novel Responses to Toys." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1968, 14, 151-158.
 - Thompson, H., "Spontaneous Play Activities of Five Year Old Children." Psychological Bulletin, 193, 33, 751.
 - Valentine, C. W., "A STudy of the Beginnings and Significance of Play in Infancy. II." <u>British Journal of Educational Psychology</u>, 1938, 8, 285-306.
- Van Alstyne, Dorothy, <u>Play Behavior and Choice of Play Materials of Preschool Children</u>. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1932.
 - Vygotskii, L. S., "Igra i ee Rol'psikhicheskom Razvitii Rebenka." (The Role of Play in the Psychological Development of the Child.)

 <u>Voprosy Psikhologii</u>, 1966, 6, 62-76.
 - Waelder, Robert, "The Psychoanalytic Theory of Play." <u>Psychoanalytic</u> <u>Quarterly</u>, 1933, 2, 208-224.
- e Ward, Winifred, <u>Playmaking with Children</u>. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1957.
- e Winn, M. and Porcher, M. A., The Playgroup Book. Baltimore: Penguin, 1967.



Section 25:

SOCIAL BEHAVIOR

This section includes relevant general references on social behavior as well as references on such specific topics as: social competency; effects of social experiences on social competency; the formation and expression of friendships; patterns of social interaction; domination in social relations; and relevant assessment procedures and instruments. (For references on closely related topics see section 5: Altruism, Competition, Cooperation and sharing; section 24. Social and Solitary Play; and section 27: Social Science Education - Developments Relevant to the Affective Domain).

- Adams, Darrell K., "The Development of Social Behavior." In Yvonne Brackbill (Ed.), <u>Infancy and Early Childhood</u>. New York: Free Press, 1967.
- Ametjion, Armistre, "The Effects of a Preschool Program upon the Intellectual Development and Social Competency of Lower-Class Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1966, 27-A, 105 A.
- Anderson, H. H., "Domination and Socially Integrative Behavior." In R. G. Barker, J. Kounin and H. F. Wright (Eds.), Child Behavior and Development. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1943, 459-484.
- Anderson, J. E., "The Development of Social Behavior." American Journal of Sociology, 1939, 44, 839-857.
- Arrington, Ruth E., <u>Interrelationships in the Behavior of Young Children</u>. New York: Teachers College, Columbia University. 1932.
- Austin, Mary C. and thompson, George G., "Children's Friendships: A Study of the Bases on which Children Select and Reject Their Best Friends." Journal of Educational Psychology, 1948, 39, 101-116.
- Baer, Donald M. and Wolf, Montrose M., "The Entry into Natural Communities of Reinforcement." Paper presented at annual meeting of the American Psychological Association, Washington, 1967.
- Baldwin, Alfred, L., Baldwin, Clara P., Hilton, Irma and Lanbert, Nina W., with Epstein, R., Murphy, M. J., Samsky, J. and Seegmiller, B., "The Measurement of Social Expectations and Their Development in Children."

 Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development, 1969, 34, (No. 4, Seriol No. 128).
- Beaver, Alma P., The Initiation of Social Contacts by Preschool Children:

 A Study of Technique in Recording Social Behavior. New York: Teachers
 College, 1932.



- Becker, Wesley C. and Krug, Ronald S., "A Circumplex Model for Social Behavior in Children." Child Development, 1964, 35, 371-396.
- Bennis, W., et al., (Eds.) <u>Interpersonal Dynamics:</u> <u>Essays and Readings on</u> Human Interaction. Homewood, Illinois: Dorsey Press, 1968.
- Bishop, Barbara M., "A Study of Mother-Child Interaction." Psychological Monographs, 1951, 65 (Whole No. 328).
- Blurton, Jones N. G., "An Ethological Study of Some Aspects of Social Behavior of Children in Nursery School." In Desmond Morris (Eq.),

 Primate Ethology, Chicago: Aldine, 1967. (Also Garden City, New York: Doubleday [Anchor]Books).
- Bobbitt, R. A., Gourevitch, V. P., Miller, L. E. and Jensen, G. D.,
 "Dynamics of Social Interactive Behavior: A Computerized Procedure for
 Analyzing Trends, Patterns and Sequences." Psychological Bulletin,
 1969, 71, 110-112.
- Bonney, M. E., "Social Behavior Differences Between Second Grade Children of High and Low Sociometric Status." <u>Journal of Educational Research</u>, 1955, 48, 481-495.
 - Bonney, M. E. and Nicholson, E. L., "Comparative Social Adjustment of Elementary School PUpils with and without Preschool Training." Child Development, 1958, 29, 125-133.
 - Borgatta, E. F. and Crowther, B., A Workbook for the Study of Social Interaction Processes. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1965.
 - Bouchard, Ruth A. and Mackler, Bernard, "A Prekindergarten Program for Four-Year-Olds, with a Review of the Literature on Preschool Education." An occasional paper, 1967. (ED 026 125). (Also available for \$0.25 from: Center for Urban Education, 33 West 42nd Stree, New York, New York, 10038.)
 - Brenner, Anton and Samelson, Nancy M., "Kindergart in Behavior and First-Grade Achievement: A Case Study Exploration. Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1959, 5, 140-155.
 - Bridges, Katherine M., The Social and Emotional Development of the Preschool Child. London: Kegan Paul, 1931.
- 26 Butts, David S., "A Psycho-Sociological Comparison of Project Head Start Participating and Non-Participating Culturally Deprived and Non-Culturally Deprived First Graders in Durham, North Carolina."

 Dissertation Abstracts, 1970, 30-A, 3181 A 3882 A.
 - Campbell, John D., "Peer Relations in Childhood." In Martin L. Hoffman and Lois W. Hoffman (Eds.), Review of Child Development Research, Vol. I. New York: Russell Sage, 1964.
 - Campbell, J. L. and Yarrow, M. R., "Perceptual and Beahvioral Correlates of Social Effectiveness." Sociometry, 1961, 24, 1-20.
- Challman, Robert C., "Factors Influencing Friendships Among Preschool Children." Child Development, 1932, 3, 146-158.

ERIC

- Cox, Arthur L., "The Effects of Early Educational Stimulation on Selected Behaviors of First Grade Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 4177 A.
- Cratty, Bryant J., Perceptual and Motor Development in Infants and Children. New York: Macmillan, 1970.
- e Dowley, Edith, "Cues for Observing Children's Behavior." Childhood Education, 1969, 45, 517.
- Dunnington, M. J., "Behavioral Differences of Sociometric Status Groups in a Nursery School." Child Development, 1957, 28, 103-111.
 - Einhorn, Jane W., "The Relationship between Small Group Ties and the Development of Chearing." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 28-Λ, 4705 Λ - 4706 Λ.
 - ERIC Clearinghouse on Early Childhood Education, Urbana, Illinois. Early Childhood Selected Bibliographies Series No. 5, Bocial, 1968 (ED 024 472).
 - Fagot, Beverly J., "The Effect of Sex of Child upon Social Behavior in a Nursery School Setting." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1968, 29-B, 357 B.
- Faigin, Helen, "Social Behavior of Young Children in the Kibbutz." <u>Journal</u> of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1958, <u>56</u>, 117-129.
 - Feshbach, Norma D. and Devor, Geraldine, "Teaching Styles in Four-Year Olds." Child Development, 1969, 40, 183-191.
 - Flapan, Dorothy, Children's Understanding of Social Interaction. New York: Teachers College Press, 1968.
 - Flavell, John H., et al., The Development of Role-Taking and Communication Skills in Children. New York: Wiley, 1968.
 - Frank 1, Esther B., "The Social Relationships of Nursery School Children." Sociometry, 1946, 9, 210-225.
 - Furfey, P. H., "Some Factors Influencing the Selection of Boys' Chums."

 Journal of Applied Psychology, 1927, 11, 47-51.
 - Gellert, E., "Patterns of Dominance, Submission, and Resistance in the Interaction of Young Children." Unpublished Doctoral Thesis, Graduate School of Education, Harvard University, 1956.
 - Gellert, E., "Stability and Fluctuation in the Power Relationships of Young Children." Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1961, 62, 8-15.
 - Gewirtz, J. L., "A Learning Analysis of the Effects of Normal Stimulation, Privation and Deprivation, on the Acquisition of Social Motivation and Attachments." (Presented at Tavistock Seminar on Mother-Infant Interaction, London, England, Sept., 1959).
 - Gold, Hilary A., "The Classroom Isolate: An Additional Dimension for Consideration in the Evaluation of a Quality Education Program." Journal of Experimental Education, 1962, 31, 77-80.



- Goodenough, Florence L., "Inter-Relationships in the Behavior of Young Children." Child Development, 1930, 1, 29-47.
- e Gordon, Ira J., "Social and Emotional Development." In Robert L. Ebel (ED.)

 Encyclopedia of Educational Research. (Fourth Edition). Toronto:

 Collier-Macmillan, Ltd., 1969.
 - Green, Elise H., "Friendship and Quarrelling in Preschool Children." Child Development, 1933, 4, 237-252.
 - Greene, Elise H., "Group Play and Quarrelling among Preschool Children." Child Development, 1933, 4, 302-307.
- e Guilford, J. P., Hendriks, Moana and Hoepfner, Ralph, "Solving Social Problems Creatively." <u>Journal of Creative Behavior</u>, 1968, <u>2</u>, 155-164.
- Harlow, Harry, "Age-Mate or Peer Affectional System." In Daniel S. Lehrman,
 Robert A. Hinde and Evelyn Shaw (Eds.), Advances in the Study of
 Behavior, Volume II. New York: Academic Press, 1969.
 - Hartup, W. W., "Friendship Status and Effectiveness of Peers as
 Reinforcing Agents." <u>Journal of Experimental Child Psychology</u>, 1964,
 1, 154-162.
 - Hartup, W. W., "Peer Interaction and Social Organization." In P. H. Mussen (Ed.), <u>Carmichael's Manual of Child Psychology</u>, New York: John Wiley, 1970.
 - Hartup, W. W., Galzer, J. A. and Charlesworth, R., "Peer Reinforcement and Sociometric Status." Child Development, 1967, 38, 1017-1024.
 - Hartup, W. W., and Himeno, Y., "Social Isolation Versus Interaction with Adults in Relation to Aggression in Preschool Children." <u>Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology</u>, 1960, 59, 17-22.
 - Hattwick, L. Λ. and Sanders, M. K., "Age Differences in Beahvior at the Nursery School Level." <u>Child Development</u>, 1938, 9, 27-47.
 - Heathers, Glen, "The Adjustment of Two-Year-Olds in a Novel Social Situation." Child Development, 1954, 25, 147-158.
 - Hofman, H., "Behavioral Patterns in Kindergarten and First Grade."

 <u>Merrill-Palmer Quarterly</u>, 1957, 3, 136-144.
 - Huggins, Joyce M., "Social Behavior of Four-Year-Old Children During Outdoor Play in Day Care Centers." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, 27-A, 993 A 994 A.
- e Isaacs, Susan, Social Development in Young Children: A Study of Beginnings.

 New York: Harcourt, Brace and Co., 1933.
- e Isaacs, Susan, The Nursery Years. New York: Schocken Books, 1968.
 - James, J., "The Distribution of Free-Forming Small Group Size." American Sociological Review, 1953, 18, 569-570.



е

- Jersild, A. T. and Fite, M. D., The influence of Nursery School Experience on Children's Social Adjustment. New York: Teachers College Press, 1939.
- Kelley, Harold H. and Thibaut, John W., "Experimental Studies of Group Problem Solving and Process." In G. Lindsay (Ed.), <u>Handbook of Social</u> Psychology, Vol. II. Cambridge, Massachusetts: Adison-Wesley, 1954.
- King, Robert M., "The Development of Some Intention Concepts in Young Children and Their Relation to Interaction Skills." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-B, 3468 B 3469 B.
- Kinney, E. E., "A Study of Peer-Group Social Acceptability at the Fifth Grade Level in a Public School." <u>Journal of Educational Research</u>, 1953, 47, 57-64.
- Klein, Donald C. and Ross, Ann, "Kindergarten Entry: A Study of role Transition." In M. Krugman (Ed.), Orthopsychiatry and the School. New York: American Orthopsychiatry Association, 1958.
- Kohn, M., "The Child as a Determinant of His Peers Approach to Him." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1966, 109, 91-100.
- Lambe, Howard E., et al., "The Development of Self-Other Relationships During Project Head Start. 1965." (Ed 015 008).
- Lambert, William W., "Interpersonal Behavior." In Paul Mussen (Ed.),

 Handbook of Research Mathods in Child Development. New York: John
 Wiley, 1960.
- Lewis, Annabelle, "Developing Social Feeling in the Young Child Through His Play Life." <u>Individual Fsychology Bulletin</u>, 1947, <u>6</u>, 52-60.
- Lippitt, R. and White, R. K., "The 'Social Climate' of Children's Groups."
 In R. G. Barker, J. Kounin and H. F. Wright (Eds.), Child Beahvior and Development. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1943.
- Lorber, N. M., "Inadequate Social Acceptance and Disruptive Classroom Behavior." <u>Journal of Educational Research</u>, 1966, <u>59</u>, 360-362.
- Maas, Henry S., "Long-Term Effects of Early Childhood Separation and Group Care." <u>Vita Humana</u>, 1963, 6, 34-56.
 - Mallay, Helena, "A Study of Some of the Techniques Underlying the Extablishment of Successful Social Contacts at the Preschool Level."

 Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1935, 47, 431-457.
 - Marshall, H. R. and McCandless, B. R., "A Study in Prediction of Social Behavior of Preschool Children." Child Development, 1957, 28, 149-159.
 - McNamara, J. Regis, et al., "Evaluation of the Effects of Head Start Experience in the Area of Self-Concept, Social Skills, and Language Skills. Pre-Publication Draft." Dade County Board of Public Instruction, 1968 (ED 028 832).

133



- e Moore, S. G., "Correlates of Peer Acceptance in Nursery School Children."
 In W. W. Hartup and N. L. Smothergill (Eds.), The Young Child.
 Washington, D. C.: National Association for the Education of Young
 Children, 1967.
 - Moore, S. G. and Updegraff, R., "Sociometric Status of Preschool Children as Related to Age, Sex, Nurturance-Giving, and Dependence." Child Development, 1964, 35, 519-524.
- Morris, D. P., Soroker, E. and Burrus, G., "Follow-Up Studies of Shy, Withdrawn Children. I. Evaluation of Later Adjustment." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1954, 24, 743-754.
 - Ogilvie, Daniel M., "Distinguishing Social Beahviors of Competent and Incompetent Three to Six Year Old Children." Paper presented at the biennial meeting of the Society for Research in Child Development in Santa Monica, California, 1969.
 - Olpin, Michael and Kogen, Kate L., "Child Meets Child: Social Interaction between School-Age Boys." Perceptual and Motor Skills, 1969, 28, 751-754.
 - Parten, M. B., "Social Participation among Preschool Children." <u>Journal</u> of Abnormal and Social Psychology, 1932, <u>27</u>, 243-269.
 - Parten, M. B. and Newhall, S. M., "The Development of Social Behavior in Children." In R. Barker, J. Kounin and H. Wright (Eds.), Child Behavior and Development. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1943.
 - Patterson, Gerald R. and Reid, John B., "Reciprocity and Coercion: Two Facets of Social Systems." In Charles Neuringer and Jack L. Michael (Eds.), Behavior Modification in Clinical Psychology. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1970.
 - Pedersen, F. A. and Wender, P. H., "Early Social Correlates of Cognitive Functioning in Six-Year-Old Boys." Child Development, 1968, 39, 185-194.
 - Perkins, H. V., "Clarifying Feelings through Peer Interaction."

 Childhood Education, 1969, 45, 379-380.
 - Phypers, James. "Delay of Gratification and Adjustment in Elementary School Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-B, 4796 B 4797 B.
 - Pitts, Vera L., "An Investigation of the Relationships between Two Preschool Programs on the Adjustment and Readiness of Disadvantaged Pupils." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 28-A, 4389 A.
 - Pospekhov, I., "Izbiratel'nye Otnosheniya Mezhdu Det'mi v Detskom Sadu."
 (Selective Relationships between Kindergarten Children.) <u>Doshkol'noe</u>
 Vospitanie, 1968, 41, 26-32.
 - Raph, J. B., Thomas, A., Chess, S. and Korn, S. J., "The Influence of Nursery School on Social Interactions." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1968, 38, 144-152.



a

- Raths, Louis E. and Burrell, Anna P., "Meeting the Needs for Belonging and Achieving." In Jerome M. Seidman, (Ed.), Readings in Educational Psychology. Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1955.
- Rausch, J. L., "Interaction Sequences." <u>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</u>, 1965, 2, 487-499.
- Reichenberg-Hackett, Wally, "A Sociometric Technique for Preschool Children and Its Use in the Study of Individual Child Behavior." <u>Journal of</u> Humanistic Psychology, 1963, 3, 44-59.
- Rosenfeld, Howard M. and Russell, Richard L., "Influence Techniques in Dyads Composed of Interdependent Middle and Lower Class Preschool Children." Final Report: Project 35, Head Start Evaluation and Research Center, University of Kansas, Mimeo, 1967.
- e, Schmuck, Richard A., Luszk, Margaret B. and Epperson, David C., "Inter-12, 13 personal Relations and Mental Health in the Classroom." Mental Hygiene, 1963, 47, 289-299.
- e Schulman, Anne S., Absorbed in Living, Children Learn. Washington, D. C.:
 National Association for the Education of Young Children, 1960.

 (Available for purchase at \$5.50 from: Publications Office, National Association for the Education of Young Children, 1629 21st Street, N.W., Washington, D. C., 20009).
- Seagoe, May V., "Children's Play as an Index of Degree of Socialization."

 Proceedings of the 77th Annual Convention of the American

 Pyschological Association, 1969, 4, 683-684.
- Sells, S. B. and Roff, M., "Peer Acceptance-Rejection and Personality Development." Final Report, Project No.)E 5-0417, United States Department of Health, Education and Welfare, 1967.
 - Shapiro, Ben Z., "Dissolution of Friendship-Ties in Groups of Children."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, <u>27-A</u>, 3517 A 3518 A.
 - Sibley, Frances K., "A Comparison of Social Techniques of Younger and Older Nursery School Children." Unpublished M.S. Thesis (Home Economics), University of Californai, Berkeley, 1945.
 - Singer, J. E., "The Use of Manipulative Strategies: Machiavellianism and Attractiveness." Sociometry, 1964, 27, 120-150.
 - Smith, A. J., "A Developmental Study of Group Processes." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1960, 97, 29-39.
- Spitz, René A., No and Yes: On the Genesis of Human Communication.

 New York: International Universities Press, 1957.
- Stevenson, Harold W. and Stevenson, Nancy G., "Social Interaction in an Interracial Nursery School." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1960, 61, 37-75.
 - Stott, Leland H., "Identification of Four Childhood Personality Traits as Expressed in Social Interaction of Preschool Children." Merrill-Palmer Quarterly, 1959, 5, 163-175.



- Stott, Leland H., "Personality at Age Four." Child Development, 1962, 33, 287-311.
- Swift, Joan W., "Effects of Early Group Experience: The Nursery School and Day Nursery." In Martin L. Hoffman and Lois W. Hoffman (Eds.),

 Review of Child Development Research, Vol. I. New York: Russell Sage Foundation, 1964.
- Tausch, Anne-Marie, Barthel, Arnfried, Fittkau, Bernd and Hubsch, Heike, "Variablen und Zusammenhange der Sozialen Interaktion in Kindergarten." (Variables and Interrelationship of Social Interaction in Kindergartens.) Psychologische Rundschau, 1968, 19, 267-279.
- Thompson, Duane G., "An Appraisal of the Effects of an Experimental Early Experience Program on the First Grade Achievement and Adjustment of Culturally Deprived Preschool Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1967, 27-A, 2901-A.
- Thompson, G. G. and Horrocks, J. E., "A Study of the Friendship Fluctuation of Urban Boys and Girls." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1947, 70, 53-63.
- Torrance, E. Paul, "Small Group Behavior of 5-Year-Old Children under Three Kinds of Educational Stimulation." Journal of Experimental Education, 1970, 38, 79-82.
- Vance, Barbara J., "The Effect of Preschool Group Experience on Various Language and Social Skills in Disadvantaged Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 28-A, 4499 A 4500 A.
 - Vinacke, W. E. and Gullickson, G. R., "Age and Sex Differences in the Formation of Coalitions," Child Development, 1964, 35, 1217-1231.
 - Wahler, Robert G., "Child-Child Interactions in Free Field Settings:
 Some Experimental Analyses."

 Psychology, 1967, 5, 278-293.
 - Weller, Mary A., "An Analysis of the Effects of a Formal Pre-Kindergarten School Experience on the Adjustment of Children . Enrolled in a Regular Kindergarten Program." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 3786 A - 3787 A.
- Wender, Paul H., Pedersen, Frank A. and Waldrop, Mary F., "A Longitudinal Study of Early Social Beahvior and Cognitive Development." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1967, 37, 691-696.
 - Withall, J. and Lewis, W. W., "Social Interaction in the Classroom." In N. L. Gage (Ed.), <u>Handbook of Research in Teaching</u>. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1963.
 - Wood, J. R., Weinstein, E. and Parker, R., "Children's Interpersonal Tactics." Sociological Inquiry, 1967, 37, 129-138.



- Wright, M. E., "The Influence of Frustration upon Social Relations of Young Children." Character and Personality, 1943, 12, 111-122.
 - Zak, J., "Z Badan Mad Rozwajem Wspaldzialania Dzieci w Wieku Przedszkalnym."
 (A Study of the Interaction Development among Preschool Children.)
 Psychologia Wychowawcza, 1968, 1, 75-85.



Section 26:

SOCIAL BACKGROUND AND PERSONALITY CHARACTERISTICS OF MINORITY AND CULTURALLY DISADVANTAGED CHILDREN

This section includes references dealing with several interrelated aspects of racial, ethnic and poverty factors in early childhood development and education.

Among these are: the controversy concerning the bases for a effects of educational intervention programs; studies on the effects of racial integration of young children; the effects of racial discrimination on young children; the development of racial or ethnic identity; studies which focus on the performance and personality traits of children from minority and disadvantaged groups; and the social climate and value systems of minority and disadvantaged subcultures. (For references on closely related topics the reader is referred to section 16: Interpersonal perception; section 23: self-concept and self-esteem; and section 27: social schence education—developments relevant to the affective domain).

- Amram, Fred M. and Diese, David L., "Creativity Training--A Tool for Motivating Disadvantaged Students." 1968 (ED 018 210).
- Ausubel, D. and Ausubel, P., "Ego Development among Segregated Negro Children." In J. I. Roberts (Ed.), School Children in the Urban Slum. New York: Free Press, 1967.
 - Baratz, Stephen S. and Baratz, Hoan C., "Early Childhood Intervention: The Social Science Base of Institutional Racism." <u>Harvard Educational</u> Review, 1970, 40, 29-50.
- Battle, E. S. and Rotter, J. B., "Children's Feelings of Personal Control as Related to Social Class and Ethnic Group." <u>Journal of Personality</u>, 1963, 31, 480-482.
 - Baughman, E. Earl and Dahlstrom, W. Grant, <u>Negro and White Children</u>. New York: Academic Press, 1968.
- 8 Boydston, E. H., "Concepts of Good and Bad Behavior of Negro and White Kindergarten Children and Their Parents." Unpublished M.S. Thesis, University of California at Berkeley, 1955.
 - Brown, Claude, Manchild in a Fromised Land. New York: Macmillan, 1965.
 - Butts, David S., "A Psycho-Sociological Comparison of Project Head Start Participating and Non-Participating Culturally Deprived and Non-Culturally Deprived First Graders in Durham, North Carolina." Dissertation Abstracts, 1970, 30-4, 3181 A 3182 A.



- Caliguri, J., "The Self-Concept of the Poverty Child." <u>Journal of Negro</u>
 <u>Education</u>, 1966, 35, 280-282.
- Cameron, A. and Sturm, T., "Achievement Motivation in Canadian Indians, Middle- and Working-Class Children." <u>Psychological Reports</u>, 1965, 16, 459-463.
 - Caplin, Morris D., "The Relationship between Self-Concept and Academic Achievement." Journal of Experimental Education, 1969, 37, 13-16.
- Carpenter, Thomas R. and Busse, Thomas V., "Development of Self-Concept in Negro and White Welfare Children." Child Development, 1969, 40, 935-939.
- e Cheyney, Arnold B., <u>Teaching Culturally Disadvantaged in the Elementary</u>
 School. Columbus, Ohio: Merrill, 1967.
- e Clark, Donald, Goldsmith, Arlene and Pugh, Clementine, Those Children.

 Case Studies From Inner-City Schools. Belmont, California:

 Wadsworth, 1970.
- e Clark, K. B., Dark Ghetto. New York: Harper and Row, 1965.
- 23 Clark, K. B. and Clark, Y. K., "The Development of Consciousness of Self and the Emergence of Racial Identification in Negro Preschool Children." <u>Journal of Social Psychology</u>, 1939, 10, 591-599.
- e Clift, Virgil A., "Curriculum Strategy Based on the Personality Characteristics of Disadvantaged Youth." <u>Journal of Negro Education</u>, 1969, 39, 94-104.
- Coles, Robert, Children of Crisis: A Study of Courage and Fear. Boston: Little, Brown, 1967.
 - Coles, Robert, "Violence in Ghetto Children." Children, 1967, 14, 101-104.

 (Republished in Stella Chess and Alexander Thomas (Eds.), Angual

 Progress in Child Psychiatry and Child Development. New York.

 Brunner/Mazel, 1968.).
- e Cowles, Milly, (Ed.) <u>Perspectives in the Education of Disadvantaged</u>
 <u>Children.</u> New York: World Publishing Co., 1967.
 - Dai, B., "Some Problems in Personality Development among Negro Children." In H. A. Murray and C. Kluckhorn (Eds.), <u>Personality in Nature</u>, <u>Society, and Culture</u>. New York: Knopf, 1953.
- Davis, Allison and Dollard, John, Children of Bondage: The Personality

 Development of Negro Youth in the Urban South. Washington, D. C.:

 American Council on Education, 1940.
 - deCharms, Richard, et al., "Can Motives of Low Income Black Children be Changed? Theory, Ethics, and Implementation of Motivational Change in Elementary School Children." Symposium prepared for the Annual Meeting of the American Educational Research Association, Los Angeles, February, 1969 (ED 033 978).



17

- Deutsch, Martin, "Some Psychosocial Aspects of Learning in the Disadvantaged." In Paul E. Torrance and Robert D. Strom (Eds.), Mental Health and Achievement. Wiley, 1965.
- Douglass, Joseph H., "Mental Health Aspects of the Effects of Discrimination Upon Children." Young Children, 1967, 22, 298-305.
- Drager, R. M. and Miller, K. S., "Comparative Psychological Studies of Negroes and Whites in the United States." <u>Psychological Bulletin</u>, 1960, 57, 361-402.
- e, Epps, Edgar G., "Interpersonal Relations and Motivation: Implications for 2, 23 Teachers of Disadvantaged Children." Journal of Wegro Education, 1970, 39, 14-25.
 - Erikson, Erik H., "Childhood and Tradition in Two American Indian Tribes."

 Psychoanalytic Study of the Child, 1945, 1, 319-350. (Republished in Clyde Kluckholm and Henry A. Murray (Eds.), Personality in Nature, Society and Culture. New York: Knoph, 1948; in Erik H. Erickson Childhood and Society. New York: Norton, 1950; and in D. G. Maring (Ed.), Personal Character and Cultural Milieu. Syracuse, New York: Syracuse University, 1949.
- e Fantini, Mario and Weinstein, Gerald, "Taking Advantage of the Disadvantaged."

 The Record, 1967, 69, 103-114.
- e Fantini, Mario and Weinstein, Gerald, <u>Making the Urban School Work</u>. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1968.
- e Fantini, Mario and Weinstein, Gerald, <u>The Disadvantaged: Challenge to</u>
 Education. New York: Harper and Row, 1968.
 - Fantini, Mario and Weinstein, Gerald, A Model for Developing Relevant

 Content for Disadvantaged CHildren. New York: Fund for Advancement
 of Education, Ford Foundation, in press.
- Fish, Caroline C., "Impulsivity in Culturally Deprived Children."
 Dissertation Abstracts, 1969, 29-A, 4322 A 4323 A.
- Foster, Judilynn T., "Some Effects of Preschool Experience on the General Intelligence and Creativity of Culturally Disadvantaged Children."

 Dissertation Abstracts, 1967, 27-Λ, 2067 Λ 2968 A.
- e Frost, J. L. and Hawkes, G. R., (Eds.) <u>Disadvantaged Child: Issues and Innovations</u>. New York: Houghton Mifflin, 1970 (2nd Edition).
- e Goldberg, Miriam, "Adapting Teacher tyle to Pupil Differences: Teachers for Disadvantaged Children." Frill-Palmer Quarterly, 1964, 10, 161-178.
 - Greene, Mary F. and Ryan, Orletta, <u>The Schoolchildren</u>. New York: Pantheon, 1965.
 - Groufe, L. Alan, "A Methodological and Philosophical Critique of Intervention-Oriented Research." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1970, 2, 140-145.



е

e

- 2 Guggenheim, Fred, "Self-Esteem and Achievement Expectations for White and Negro Children." Journal of Projective Techniques and Personality Assessment, 1969, 33, 63-71.
 - Halpern, Betty W., "Role Playing: Its Therapeutic and Educative Application to the Black Ghetto Child." <u>Lissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 4374 A 4375 A.
- e Hamilton, Charles V., "Race and Education: A Search for Legitimacy."

 Harvard Educational Review, 1968, 38, 669-684.
- e Hamlin, Ruth, Mukerji, Rose and Yonemura, Margaret, Schools for Young

 <u>Disadvantaged Children</u>. New York: Teachers College, Columbia

 University, 1967.
- 8 Harris, Helena, "Development of Moral Attitudes in White and Wagro Boys."

 <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1970, 2, 376-383.
- e Hellmuth, Jerome, (Ed.) <u>Disadvantaged Child, Volume I.</u> Seattle: Special Child Publications, 1967.
 - Hellmuth, Jerome, (Ed.) <u>Disadvantaged Child</u>, <u>Volume II</u>: <u>Head Start Early Intervention</u>. New York: Brunner/Mazel, 1969.
 - Henderson, Norman B., Goffeney, Berbara and Butler, Bruce V., "Do Negro Children Project a Self-Image of Helplessness and Inadequacy in Drawing a Person?" Proceedings of the 77th Annual Convention of the American Psychological Association, 1969, 4, 437-438.
- 5, Hillery, Milton C., et al., "A Descriptive Study of Cognitive and
 Affective Trends Differentiating Selected Groups of Preschool
 Children." (University of Wisconsin) Report No. 0E0-1401, 1969
 (ED 031 314).
 - Horowitz, R. E., "Racial Aspects of Self-Identification in Nursery School Children." <u>Journal of Psychology</u>, 1939, 7, 91-99.
 - Howard, Douglas P., "Needs and Problems of Socially Disadvantaged Children as Perceived by Students and Teachers." <u>Exceptional Children</u>, 1968, 34, 327-335.
- Iscoe, I. and Pierce-Jones, J., "Divergent Thinking, Age, and Intelligence in White and Negro Children." Child Development, 1964, 35, 785-797.
- e The Journal of Negro Education. "Educational Planning for Socially Disadvantaged Children and Youth." Summer 1964, 33, Series of papers.
- e. Karon, B. P., <u>The Negro</u> Personality. New York: Springer, 1953.
- 2 Katz, I., "The Socialization of Academic Motivation in Minority Group Children." Nebraska Symposium on Motivation, 1967, 15, 3-91.
 - Keach, Everett T., Fulton, Robert and Gardner, William E., (Eds.)

 Education and Social Crisis--Perspectives on Teaching Disadvantaged

 Youth. New York: Wiley, 1967.



Э

2

ρ

- e Keller, Suzanne, "The Social World of the Urban Slum Child: Some Early Findings." American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1963, 33, 823-831.
- e Kohl, Herbert, 36 Children. New York: New American Library, 1967.
- e Kozol, Jonathan, Death at an Early Age: The Destruction of the Hearts
 and Minds of Negro Children in the Boston Public Schools. Boston:
 Houghton Mifflin, 1967.
- Kozol, Jonathan, "Halls of Darkness: In the Chetto Schools." Harvard Educational Review, 1967, 37, 379-407.
 - Kunz, Jean, "A Study of Selected Characteristics of a Group of Ecomonically Disadvantaged Five-Year-Old Children." Dissertation Abstracts, 1968, 28-A, 2444 A.
 - Kvaraceus, William C., Gibson, John S., Patterson, Franklin, Sholes, Bradbury S. and Grambs, Joan D., Negro Self-Concept: Implications for School and Citizenship. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1965.
 - Lessing, E. E., "Racial Differences in Indices of Ego, Functioning Relevant to Academic Achievement." <u>Journal of Genetic Psychology</u>, 1966, 68, 153-157.
- Lief, Harold I., "An Atypical Stereotype of the Negro's Social World."

 American Journal of Orthopsychiatry, 1962, 32, 86-88.
- Long, Barbara H. and Henderson, E. H., "Self-Social Concepts of Disadvantaged School Beginners." Journal of Genetic Psychology, 1968, 113, 41-51.
 - McCloskey, Elinor F., Urban Disadvantaged Pupils. A Synthesis of 99

 Research Reports. Portland, Oregon: Northwest Regional Educational
 Laboratory, 1967.
 - McKee, J. P. and Leader, F. B., "The Relationsips of Socio-Economic Status and Aggression to the Competitive Behavior of Preschool Children." Child Development, 1955, 26, 131-142.
 - Miller, James O., "Disadvantaged Families: Desphir to Hope." In Frances F. Korton, et al. (Eds.), <u>Psychological Association</u>, 1970. Society. Washington, D. C.: American Psychological Association, 1970.
- 2 Mingione, A. D., "Need for Achievement in Negro and White Children."

 Journal of Consulting Psychology, 1965, 27, 108-111.
- e, Munat, Charles E., "Four, Poor, Nonwhite and Gut-of-Sight." Young Children, 1968, 24, 4-14.
 - Nelson, L. and Madsen, M. C., "Cooperation and Competition in 4-Year-Olds as a Function of Reward Contingency and Subculture." <u>Developmental Psychology</u>, 1969, 1, 340-344.
 - Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory. "The Alaskan Readers. A
 Reading and Language Development System for an Intercultural Setting."
 Portland, Oregon: NREL.



e

- Owens, K. L., "Competition in Children as a Function of Age, Race, Sex, and Socioeconomic Status." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-B, 3873 B.
- e Pavenstedt, Eleanor, (Ed.) The Drifters: Children of Disorganized Lower-Class Families. Boston: Little, Brown, 1967.
- e Pearl, Arthur, "Personality Profiles of Disadvantaged Youth."
- e Pettigrew, I. F., A Profile of the Negro American. Princeton:
 Van Nostrand, 1964.
- e, Poussaint, Alvin F., and Atkinson, Carolyn O., "Negro Youth and Psychological Motivation." <u>Journal of Negro Education</u>, 1968, 37, 241-251.
 - Proshansky, H. and Newton, P., "The Nature and Meaning of Negro Self-Identity." In M. Deutsch, I. Katz and A Jensen (Eds.) Social Class, Race and Psychological Development. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1968.
- e Riessman, Frank, The Culturally Deprived Child. New York: Harper, 1962.
- e Riis, Jacob A., How the Other Half Lives. New York: Hill and Wang, 1966.
 - Rosenfeld, Howard M. and Russell, Richard L., "Influence Techniques in Dyads Composed of Interdependent Middle and Lower Class Preschool Children." Final Report: Project 35, Head Start Evaluation and Research Center, University of Kansas, 1967.
- e, St. John, Nancy Y., "The Effecto f Segregation on the Aspirations of Negro Youth." <u>Harvard Educational Review</u>, 1966, 36, 284-294.
- Soares, Anthony T. and Soares, Louise M., "Self-Perception of Culturally Disadvantaged Children." American Educational Research Journal, 1969, 6, 31-45.
 - Standage, F., (Ed.) Creativity and the Disadvantaged Student. Morehead, Kentucky: Operation Talent Search, Morehead State University, 1969.
 - Stevenson, Harold W. and Stevenson, Nancy G., "Social Interaction in an Interactial Nursery School." Genetic Psychology Monographs, 1960, 61, 37-75.
 - Stodolsky, S. and Lesser, G., "Learning Patterns in the Disadvantaged."

 <u>Harvard Educational Review</u>, 1968, 37, 546-593.
- Stoll, Clarice S. and INbar, Michael, "Socialization and Games: An Exploratory Study of Race Differences." Sociological Quarterly, Summer, 1970.
 - Stone, James C. and Schneider, Frederick W., <u>Teaching in the Innercity</u>.

 A Book of Readings. New York: Crowell, 1970.



е

- Suttles, Gerald D., The Social Order of the Slum. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1968.
- Taba, Hilda, Teaching Strategies for the Culturally Disadvantaged. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1966.
- Tiedt, Sidney W., (Ed.) <u>Teaching the Disadvantaged Child</u>. New York: Oxford University Press, 1968.
- Torrence, E. Paul, "Creative Positives of Disadvantaged Children and Youth."

 Gifted Child Quarterly, 1969, 13, 71-81.
 - Vontress, C., "The Negro Personality reconsidered." <u>Journal of Negro</u> Education, 1966, 35, 210-217.
 - Warden, Sandra A., The Leftouts: Disadvantaged Children in Heterogeneous Schools. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1968.
 - Wasik, Barbara H., Senn, S. Kathy and Epanchin, Alex, "Cooperation and Sharing Behavior among Culturally Deprived Preschool Children." Psychonomic Science, 1969, 17, 371-372.
- Williams, Daniel E., "Self-Concept and Verbal Mental Ability in Negro Preschool Children." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>. 1969, 29-B, 3475 B.
 - Young, Donald R., "The Socialization of American Minoirty Peoples." In David A. Goslin (Ed.), Handbook of Socialization Theory and Research. Chicago: Rand McNally, 1969.



Section 27:

SOCIAL SCIENCE EDUCATION: DEVELOPMENTS

RELEVANT TO THE AFFECTIVE DOMAIN

This section includes references describing programs in intergroup relations (the breaking down of group-related prejudices and hostilities) and also references on innovative social science programs designed to foster positive social values and attitudes. (For references on closely related topics the reader is referred to section5: Altruism, Competition, Cooperation, and Sharing, section 8: Character and Moral Development; section 16: Interpersonal Perception; and section 26: Social Background and Personality Characteristics of Minority and Culturally Disadvantaged Children.)

- e Brandwein, Paul F., Toward a Discipline of Responsible Consent. New York. Harcourt, Brace and World, 1969.
- e Bruner, J. S. and Dow, P.B., <u>Man! A Course of Study</u>. Cambridge, Massachusetts: Education Development Center, 1969.
- e Burns, James W., "Paperback Books for the Elementary School Studies Program." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1970, 30-A, 2898 A.
 - Danziger, K., "Children's Earliest Conceptions of Economic Relationships."

 Journal of Social Psychology, 1958, 47, 231-240.
- e Dunfee, Maxine and Sagle, Helen, <u>Social Studies through Problem Solving:</u>

 <u>A Challenge to Elementary School Teachers.</u> New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1966.
 - Easton, D. and Dennis, J., "The Child's Image of government." Annals of the American Academy of Political Science, 1965, 361, 4057.
 - Georgeoff, Peter J., "The Elementary Curriculum as a Factor in Racial Universtanding, Final Report, 1967." Lafayette, Indiana: University Report No. BR-6-1698, 1967 (ED 019 392).
- e Gibson, John S., "A Program for Elementary School Education: The Intergroup Relations Curriculum: Volumes I and II, 1969." (ED 030 605). (Also available at \$5.00 from: Lincoln Filene Center for Citizenship and Public Affairs, Tufts University, Medfor, Massachusetts, 02155).
- e, Grambs, Jean D., <u>Intergroup Education: Methods and Materials</u>. Englewood 7. 22 Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1969.
 - Greenstein, F. I., Children and Politics. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1965.



- Guetzkow, Harold, (Ed.) <u>Simulation in Social Science</u>; <u>Readings</u>. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1962.
- Handler, Jane M., "An Attempt to Change Kindergarten Children's Attitudes of Prejudice Toward the Negro." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1967, 27-Δ, 2942 Δ.
- e Heil, Lillian H., "Wonder Tales in Social Studies Programs of the Primary Grades." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 29-A, 2376 A 2377 A.
- e Herman, Wayne L., Jr., <u>Current Research in Elementary School Social Studies</u>.
 New York: Macmillan, 1969.
- e Hess, Robert, "PoliticalAttitudes in Children." Psychology Today, 1969, 2,
- e Hess, Robert, and Torney, Judith V., <u>The Development of Political Attitudes</u>
 in Children. Chicago: Aldine, 1967.
- e Human Rights Year, 1968: Suggested Activities and Reading Materials for Elementary Schools. Washington, D. C.: U. S. Government Printing Office, 1968.
 - Intergroup Relations, Albany: The University of the State of New York, State Education Department, 1968.
- Jahoda, G., "Developemnt of Scottish Children's Ideas and Attitudes about Other Countries." <u>Journal of Social Psychology</u>, 1962, <u>58</u>, 91-108.
 - Janoda, G., "Children's Concepts of Time and History." Educational Review, 1963, 15, 87-104.
 - Jahoda, G., "The Development of Children's Ideas about Country and Nationality: Part I, The Conceptual Framework." <u>British Journal of Educational Psychology</u>, 1963, 33, 47-60.
 - Jahoda, G., "The Development of Children's Ideas about Country and Nationality: Part II, National Symbols and Themes." <u>British Journal of</u> Educational Psychology, 1963, 33, 143-153.
 - Jahoda, G., "Children's Concepts of Nationality: A Critical Study of Piaget's Stages." Child Development, 1964, 35, 1081-1092.
 - Janzen, Verna G. and Gallagher, James J., "The Social Choices of Students in Racially Integrated Classes for the Culturally Disadvantaged Talented." Exceptional Children, 1966, 22--226.
 - Kutcher, Ernest L., "The Relationship between the Use of the Human Values Series Readers and Reading Comprehension." <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1969, 30-A, 2258 A.
 - Lilly, Martin S., "An Exploratory Study of Methods for Improving Social Acceptance of Children of Low Sociometric Status and Low Academic Achievement." Dissertation Abstracts, 1970, 30-A, 4332 Λ 4333 A.

146



- e Litcher, J. H. and Johnson, D. W., "Changes in Attitudes toward Negroes of White Elementary School Students after Use of Multiethnic Readers."

 Journal of Educational Psychology, 1969, 60, 148-152.
- Marshall, Allen R. and Magruder, Lucille, "Relations between Parent Money Education Practices and Children's Knowledge and Use of Money."

 Child Development, 1960, 31, 253-284.
- e <u>Martin Luther King Booklets</u>. Boston: Educational Development Corporation.
- e, Miel, Alice and Brogan, Peggy, More Than Social Studies: A View of Social
 Learning in the Elementary School. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey:
 Prentice-Hall, 1957.
- e Morrison, I. E., "Democracy and Interpersonal Relations in the Classroom."
 Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, Stanford University, 1953.
- Morriss, D., "I veloping Global Units for Elementary Schools." In D. C. King (Author and Editor), <u>International Education for Spaceship Earth</u>.

 (New Dimensions Booklet Number 4). New York: Foreign Policies
 Association, 1970.
 - Muuss, R. E., "The Effects of a One- and Two-Year Causal Learning Program." Journal of <u>Personality</u>, 1960, <u>28</u>, 479-491.
- e Nechaev, V. G., Markova, T. A., Zhukovskaya, R. I. and Pen'evskaya, L. A.,

 Formirovanie Killektivnykh Vzaimcotnoshenii Detei Starshego Doshkol'nogo

 Vozrasta. (Formation of Collective Interrelationships of Older

 Preschool Children). Moscow, USSR: Prosveshchenie, 1968.
- Neidall, Sophie G., "An Exploration of Young Children's Concepts of People of Foreign Origin and Implications for Kindergarten Curriculum."

 <u>Dissertation Abstracts</u>, 1966, <u>26</u>, 4506.
- e Newberg, Norman and Borton, Terry, Education for Student Concerns. New York:

 McGraw-Hill, in preparation.
 - Ojemann, Ralph H., "The Human Relations Program at the State University of Iowa." Personnel Guidance Journal, 1958, 37, 199-206.
 - Ojemann, Ralph H., "Investigations of the Effects of Teaching on Understanding and Appreciation of Behavior Dynamics." In G. Caplan (Ed.)

 Prevention of Mental Disorders in Children. New York: Basic, Books, 1961.
 - Ojemann, Ralph H., "Incorporating Psychological concepts in the School Curriculum." <u>Journal of School Psychology</u>, 1967, <u>5</u>, 195-204.
 - Palomares, Uvaldo, "Desegragating People's Minds." <u>Civil Rights Digest</u>, Summer, 1969, 39-43.
 - Proshansky, H. M., "The Development of Intergroup Attitudes." In L. W. Hoffman and M. L. Hoffman (Eds.), Review of Child Development Research, Vol. II. New York: Russell Sage, 1966.



- e, Roberts, J. J., (Ed.) School Children in the Urban Slum: Readings in Social Science Research. New York: Free Press, 1967.
 - Roen, Sheldon R., "Primary Prevention in the Classroom through a Teaching Program in the Behavioral Sciences." In Emory L. Cowen, Elmer A Gardner and Melvin Zax (Eds.), Emergent Approaches to Mental Health Problems. New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts (Meridith Division), 1967.
 - Schmuck, R., Chester, M. and Lippitt, R., <u>Problem Solving to Improve</u>
 Classroom Learning. Chicago: Science Research Associates, 1966.
- Shaftel, Fannie R., Role-Playing for Social Values. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1967.
 - Stendler, Celia and Martin, William, <u>Intergroup Education in Kindergarten-Primary Grades</u>. New York: Macmillan, 1953.
 - Williams, John E. and Edwards C. Drew, "An Exploratory Study of the Modification of Color and Racial Concept Attitudes in Preschool Children." Child Development, 1969, 40, 737-750.

